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Infrastructural projects acquired 54.7% of the net BADEA’s financing which amounted to
$ 2724.114 million. View of the Dam in Lesotho within the small farms irrigation project in 

Usutho river area, to which BADEA participated in its financing.
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BASIC INFORMATION

Establishment

The Arab Bank for Economic Development in Africa (BADEA) was established pursuant to the 
resolution of the 6th Arab Summit Conference at Algiers (28th November 1973). The Bank began its 
operations in March 1975. Its headquarters is located in Khartoum, the capital of the Republic of the 
Sudan.

Definition

BADEA is a financial institution owned by eighteen Arab countries members of the League of 
Arab States (LAS) which signed its Establishing Agreement in 18th February 1974. The Bank is an 
independent international institution enjoying full international legal status and complete autonomy 
in administrative and financial matters. It is governed by the provisions of its Establishing Agreement 
and the principles of international law.

The Bank was created for the purpose of strengthening economic, financial and technical 
cooperation between the Arab and African regions and for the embodiment of Arab-African solidarity 
on foundations of equality and friendship. To achieve this end, the Bank was given a mandate to:

• Participate in financing economic development in African countries,

• Stimulate the contribution of Arab capital to African development,

• Help provide the technical assistance required for the development of Africa.

Lending Activities

The projects financed by the Bank are priority projects of the beneficiary countries and usually 
form part of their development plans. In some instances, these projects are of a regional character 
benefiting several countries simultaneously and helping in their economic integration. BADEA’s 
contribution to the financing of any given project can reach 60% of the total cost of the said project 
provided that the amount of financing for the said project may not exceed $ 18 million. However, for 
small projects with total cost not exceeding $ 15 million, financing may be increased to 90% of the 
total cost of such projects; BADEA can grant two loans to a country in one year provided that the 
amount of such loans may not exceed $ 18.00 million. BADEA also provides technical assistance 
in the form of non-refundable grants and provide finance for exports from Arab countries to African 
countries eligible for BADEA’s assistance.

Board of Governors

The Board of Governors is the highest authority in the Bank .It consists of a Governor and a 
deputy Governor for each member state. The Governors are usually the Ministers of Finance of the 
member states. The Board of Governors is authorized to delegate all or some of its powers to the 
Board of Directors, except those expressly stated in the Establishing Agreement, including increasing 
the Bank’s capital, appointing the Directors General, appointing external auditors for the audit of its 
accounts, approval of the Bank’s Financial Accounts, the allocation of net project, and interpretation 
and amendment of the Establishing Agreement. It holds one annual meeting in ordinary session.
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is composed of 11 members and has the powers necessary for management 
of the Bank, except those vested in the Board of Governors. These powers include of the following:

• Making of the Bank’s general policies and follow-up of their implementation in line with the 
Establishing Agreement and the directives of the Board of Governors,

• Setting rules and regulations and taking the measures necessary for the management of the 
Bank on the basis of economy in running expenses and operational efficiency, 

• Determining the Bank’s programmes of operations and approval of loans and grants,

• Making decisions concerning borrowing and issuing of bonds,

• Preparing for the meetings of the Board of Governors,

• Establishing agencies, branches and offices for the Bank as it may be necessitated 
operationally.

The nine members holding the largest number of share shall be permanent members of the Board 
countries fulfilling this criteria at present are: the United Arab Emirates, the People’s Democratic 
Republic of Algeria, the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, Republic of Iraq, Sultanate of Oman, State of 
Qatar, State of Kuwait, the Great Arab Libyan People’s Socialist Jamahiriya and the Kingdom of 
Morocco. The other members of the Bank jointly select the remaining tow non- permanent members 
of the Board in accordance with their voting power in the Board of Governors; for this term the 
remaining two members are the Kingdom of Bahrain and the Republic of Tunisia.

Membership in the Board of Directors is for a four-year renewable term. The Board of Directors 
elects a Chairman, from amongst its members, for a two-year renewable term. The Board meets 
every four months or whenever the activities of the Bank may so require.

The Director General
The Board of Governors shall appoint a Director General, from non – members of the Board for 

a three year term renewable twice. The Director General is the chief executive officer of the Bank 
and is responsible for management of the business of the Bank under the supervision of the Board 
of Directors, in accordance with the Bank’s rules and regulations and in line with the directives of the 
Board of Governors and the Board of Directors. He is the legal representative of the Bank. 
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The Board of Governors

BADEA’s Board of Governors at its Thirty-Three Meeting within the framwork of joint Annual 
meeting of the Arab financial Institutions in Sanaa, Yemen, 2-3 April 2008.



8

ARAB BANK FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN AFRICA

*  Representation has been modified during 2008. The United Arab Emirates used to be represented by Hon. Dr. Mohamed Khalfan Ben Kharbash (till 
February 2008), The Republic of the Sudan by Hon. Ustaz.Elzubeir Ahmed Hassan, (Up to February 2008), The Republic of Lebanon by Hon Ustaz. Gihad 
Azour ( Up to June 2008), The Islamic Republic of Mauritania was represented by Hon Ustaz Abderrahamane Ould Hama Vezaz (up to August 2008).

**  Hon. Dr. Abdoul Hafeez Al- Zeletethni has been nominated as a Secretary of the General People’s Committee of planning and Finance in the Great Arab 
Libyan People’s Socialist Jamahiriya in March 2009, his name shall appear as a governor in the 2009 Report.

Hon. Dr. Hamad Al- Kassasba 
Minister of Finance

Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Hon. Ustaz. Obaid Humaid Al- Tayer*

State Minister for Financial affairs 
The United Arab Emirates

Hon. Skeikh Ahmed Ben Mohammed Al Khalifa

Minister of Finance
Kingdom of Bahrain

Hon. Ustaz Mohamed Nouri Jouni

Minister of Development and International 
Cooperation 

Republic of Tunisia

Hon. Ustaz Karim Djoudi

Minister of Finance
People’s Democratic Republic of Algeria

Hon. Dr. Ibrahim Ben Abdel Aziz Al Assaf

Minister of Finance 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Hon. Dr.Awad Ahmed Algaz* 

Minister of Finance and National Economy
Republic of the Sudan

Hon. Dr. Mohamed Al - Hussein 

Minister of Finance
Arab Republic of Syria

 Hon. Ustaz Bager Gabr Soulaq Al-zebeedy

Minister of Finance
Republic of Iraq

Hon. Ustaz Ahmed Ben Abdel Nabi Maki

Minister of National Economy and Deputy Chairman
Financial Affairs and Energy Resources Council

Sultanate of Oman

Hon. Dr. Salaam Fayad 

Prime minister& Minister of Finance 
Palestinian National Authority 

State of Palestine

Hon. Ustaz Yousif Hussein Kamal

Minister of Economy and Finance,
 State of Qatar

Hon. Ustaz Mustafa Jasim Al- Shamaly 

Minister of Finance  
State of Kuwait

Hon. Dr. Mohamed Shatah*

Minister of Finance
Republic of Lebanon

Hon. Ustaz Mohamed Ali Al- Hwaige**

Secretary of the General People’s Committee of Finance
Great Arab Libyan People’s Socialist Jamahiriya

Hon. Ustaza Fayza Abu al Naja

Minister of International Cooperation
Arab Republic of Egypt

Hon. Ustaz Salah Aldeen Al-Mizwar 

Minister of Economy and Finance
Kingdom of Morocco

Hon. Ustaz Sid Ahmed Ould Rais*

Minister of Finance 
Islamic Republic of Mauritania
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Chairman
H.E. M. Yousouf Ibn Ibrahim Al- Bassam*

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Members

The Board of Directors

BADEA’s Board of Directors at its Third Session in Khartoum, Sudan, 6-7 October, 2008.

* The Representation in the Board of Directors has changed during 2008.The Kingdom of Saudi Arabia used to be represented by the  Hon.Ustaz Ahmed 
Abdallah Al Akeil (Chairman of the board); the Arab Republic of Egypt has been nominated as a member of the Board after the expiry of the term of 
membership of The Kingdom of Bahrain.

H. E. Ustaz Mohamed Ebaid Mohamed Faris Al-Mazroui
The United Arab Emirates

Hon. Ustaz Mohamed Ali Alhabib Al-Molahi
Republic of Tunisia

H.E. Ustaz Miloud Boutaba
People’s Democratic Republic of Algeria

H.E. Dr. Huda a Hadi Sulman
Republic of Iraq

H.E. Ustaz Hamoud Ben Abdallah Al-Alawi
Sultanate of Oman

H.E. Ustaz Ahmed Saleh B.Matar Al - Muhannadi
State of Qatar

H.E. Ustaz Fawzi Yousouf Al Haneef
State of Kuwait

H.E. Ustaz Alhady Ahmed Mansour
Great Arab Libyan People’s Socialist Jamahiriya

H.E. M.Morwan Badr*
Republic of Egypt

H.E. Ustaz Zuhair Al-sharafi
Kingdom of Morocco

Director General

H.E. Ustaz Abdelaziz Khelef

Poeple’s Democratic Republic of Algeria
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Hon. The Chairman, Board of Governors
Arab Bank for Economic Development in Africa

Hon. Chairman,

Pursuant to Articles 25/6, 34/2 and 35 of the Establishing 
Agreement of the Arab Bank for Economic Development in Africa 
I have the honour to submit to the esteemed Board of Governors 
on behalf of the Board of Directors, the Annual Report of the Arab 
Bank for Economic Development in Africa for the year 2008.

The Report contains the Bank’s audited accounts for the year 
2008 and the most important activities and new operations in 
the African countries that benefited from its financing during the 
year, in addition to a description of financed projects and technical 
asistance operations.

Please accept the assurance of my highest consideration.

Yousouf Ibn Ibrahim Al- Bassam
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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The most important performance Indicators of the Bank 
2007-2008

Particulars 2007 2008

Total Financial Allocations ($ million) 180.0 190.0

Projects loans ($ million) 173.5 183.25

Technical Assistance Grants ($ million) 6.5 6.75

Total Commitments ($ million) 179.6 189.95

Project loans ($ million) 173.1 183.25

Technical Assistance Grants ($ million) 6.5 6.75

Total Number  of Operations 56 54

Projects 25 23

Technical Assistance: 31 31

Feasibility studies 8 8

Institutional Support 23 23

Average Grant Element for Project Loans 58% 50.5%

Total Project Coasts ($ million) 730.1 1069.42

BADEA’s Contribution to HIPC Initiative ($ million) 15.9 -

Foreign Trade Finance ($ million) 38.4 45

Total Revenue ($ million) 174.9 (109.7)

Net Income ($ million) 164.2 (90.6)
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OVERVIEW OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

1- Global Growth and International Financial Crisis

The global economy is facing a marked decline in the rate of growth which follows years of strong 
growth as a result of the severe crisis which affected the financial markets since the 1929 Great 
Depression. The housing mortgage crisis, has erupted in the U.S.A since August 2007 as a result 
of unjustified increase in the housing sector prices and the liberal lending policies that banks have 
adopted in granting unsecured loans. This lead to many defaults and a collapse in the housing 
market prices. The high mortgage and inability of many mortgage owners to service their debts 
lead to foreclosures. The collapse in the prices of assets in the housing market exposed many 
banks to liquidity problems therefore leading to their collapse and affecting many institutions 
which provided such banks with guarantees.
This situation and the consequent liquidity crisis prompted many western governments to 
intervene in scales unknown before in the markets by pumping a lot of funds. The crisis has 
naturally overflowed the U.S. markets to have its impact on the markets of developed and
under-developed markets; leading in the end, to an international economic crisis.
In light of these events global GDP has declined from 5% in 2007 to 3.4% in 2008 representing 
the lowest level of growth since 2002.This has brought the economies of the developed world to 
a state of recession in the last quarter of 2008.
The IMF reports that the growth of the U.S economy has declined from 2% in 2007 to1.1% in 
2008. In the Euro zone, the growth rate recorded in 2007 was 2.6% and it declined to 1% in 2008. 
Britain which registered growth rate of 3% in 2007 has slumped to 0.7% growth in 2008, which 
indicates that 2009 will be year where all the countries with witness recession.
The GDP Growth in developing countries and the Emerging Markets Countries (EMCs) has 
declined from 8.3% in 2007 to 6.3% in 2008. In China GDP declined from 9.3% in 2007 to 7.5% 
in 2008, while India witnessed a decline in GDP from 9.3% in 2007 to 7.3% in 2008 due to 
the decline in the investments, net exports and the decline in the trade and business activities. 
The countries in this group which have strong economic linkages with the U.S in the European 
Community have accordingly faced a remarkable decline in their rates of  growth.
In Africa, the GDP growth has declined from 6.1% in 2007 to 5.2% in 2008; while in sub-Saharan 
African (SSA) countries GDP has declined from 6.9% in 2007 to 5.4% in 2008. In the latter countries 
the oil- producing countries has performed better than the non- oil producing counterparts.

2- Inflation, Employment and Unemployment

A-Inflation

The IMF reports that inflation in the developed countries has increased from 2.2% in 2007 to 
3.6% in 2008 and it is expected to decline further in 2009. This decline in 2009 is expected to 
come as a result of the decline in inflation rates in the U.S and the Euro zone as a result of the 
housing market crisis, the financial crisis and the decline in the commodities and oil prices in the 
international markets in the developing countries and the EMCs inflation has increased from 6.4% 
in 2007 to 9.2% in 2008.
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In Africa, inflation rates have increased from 6.2% in 2007 to 10.2% in 2008, while in SSA countries 
inflation has increased from 7.1% in 2007 to 11.9% in 2008.

B- Employment and Unemployment

The total number of persons in age of employment were estimated to be around 3 billion in 
2007 an increase of 1.6% from 2006.Employed persons are expected to have increased by 40 
million in 2008, while unemployed persons were expected to have increased by 5 millions in 2008 
representing unemployment rate of 6.1% in 2008, when the total unemployed persons reached 
190 million globally.
In Africa, unemployment has stabilized at 9.5% both in 2007 and 2008.In SSA Countries 
employed persons stood at 297 million of whom 29.5 million earn the equivalent of one dollar a 
day. Unemployment rate stood at 8.2% per annum both in 2006 and 2007(1).

3-International Trade

International trade indexes have registered a marked decline in 2008 in comparison with 2007. 
The volume of trade in goods and services has registered a growth rate of 4.3% in 2008 as 
compared to 6.4% in 2007; this comes about a result of the decline of exports and imports of the 
developed countries, developing countries and Emerging Markets countries (EMCs) due to the 
impact of the financial crisis.
In SSA countries export growth has increased from 5.4% in 2007 to 5.9% in 2008 at a time when 
imports have slumped from 11.9% in 2007 to 7.6% in 2008(2). A big decline is expected in imports 
in 2009.

4- Foreign Debt and Debt Service

 A-Foreign Debt

Total foreign debt of the developing countries and EMCs has increased from $ 3392.3 billion in 
2006 to $ 4043.6 billion in 2007, and in spite of the lack of information about foreign debt in 2008 
some reports, howevere, suggest that the percentage of debt to GDP has declined from 26.9% in 
2007 to 24.2% in 2008.
In Africa, total debt has increased from $ 236.5 billion in 2006 compared to $ 252 billion in 2007. 
The percentage of debt to exports has declined from 69% in 2006 to 65% in 2007, while the 
percentage of debt to GDP for the continent stood at 23.1% in 2007 as opposed to 26.2% in 
2006.
In SSA Countries total foreign debt stood at $ 200.9 billion in 2007 compared to $ 202.1 in 2006 
the percentage of debt to exports has declined from 79% in 2006 to 74% in 2007 and as a 
percentage of GDP from 28.1% in 2006 to 24.4% in 2007. This decline reflects the impact of HIPC 
and the growth in the economies of these countries.

B- Debt service

The IMF reports that debt service to GDP in the developing countries and the countries with 
Emerging markets has declined from 4.8% in 2007 to 4.1% in 2008. As for Africa, debt service has 
declined from $ 37.7 billion in 2006 to $ 31.3 billion in 2007. Debt service as a percentage of GDP 
has declined from 4.1% in 2006 to 3% in 2007. The percentage of Exports of goods and services 
has declined from 17.9% in 2006 to 7.8% in 2007.

(1) International Labour Organization (ILO).
(2) Global Economic Prospects 2009, World Bank.
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In SSA Countries debt services payments has increased marginally from $ 22.9 billion in 2006 to 
$ 23.6 billion in 2007.  As a percentage of GDP this percentage has declined from 3.2% in 2006 
to 2.9% in 2007.

5- HIPC Countries

These are countries which accumulated foreign debt during the seventies and eighties and for 
which foreign debt service represents a heavy burden too heavy for them to confront without 
aid.  This led the donor community to come up with the HIPC(1) Initiative in 1996 and followed it 
up with the Multilateral Debt Relief Initiative (MDRI)(2) in 2006. The Countries qualifying for these 
initiatives to date stand at 41.

By the end of 2008 the total number of countries that benefited from the initiative globally stood at 
33, of which 23 reached the Completion point. Of these 23 countries, 18 are SSA countries. Eight 
countries reached the decision point of which six are SSA Countries. 

The total global debt relief within the two initiatives reached 68 billion in 2007, with BADEA’s 
contribution to the initiative from 1997 till 2008 standing at $148.6 million for the benefit of 16 
countries eligible for BADEA’s aid.

6- Economic Forecast 2009

Global growth is expected to decline to 0.5% in 2009, which shall be the lowest rate recorded 
since World War II. Economic forecasts indicate that the global economy is expected to witness 
a growth of 3% in 2010 due to the concerted efforts to ease the credit squeeze and adoption of 
expansionary financial and fiscal policies. Uncertainty still reigns. Therefore the contraction in 
the economies of developed economies is expected to reach -2% in 2009, with the US economy 
registering -1.6% and the Euro- zone economies -2% and the U.K -3.9%. As for the developing 
countries and countries with Emerging markets growth is expected to slip from 6.3% in 2008 to 
3.4% in 2009, while in Africa Growth is expected to slip from 5.2% in 2008 to 3.4% in 2009. In SSA 
countries growth is expected to slip from 5.4% in 2008 to 3.5% in 2009.

The IMF reports that developing countries in Africa are better equipped to face the challenges of 
the global economy in the coming years because of the improvement that they have achieved in 
macro- economic policy reforms. This should not preclude the vulnerability of African contries due 
to their dependence on primary commodities. The decline in the demand for such commodities 
and the decline in their prices together with the collapse of oil prices will lead to low growth in 
many economies which depend exclusively on primary commodities.

Inflation is expected to abate as a result of the decline in economic activity. In the developed 
economies inflation is expected to decline from 3.5% in 2008 to an unprecedented low of 0.25% 
in 2009, while in developing countries inflation is expected to be 5.9% in 2009 as compared to 
9.2% in 2008.

As for trade, the volume of trade in goods and services is expected to decline by -2.8% in 2009.  
The exports of developed countries are expected to shrink by -3.7% in 2009 and in the developing 
economies by -2.2% in 2009.

(1) Highly Indebted Poor Countries Initiative.
(2) Multilateral Debt Relief Initiative
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PART ONE

LENDING OPERATIONS

The year 2008 is the fourth year of the Fifth Five Year Plan (FFYP : 2005-2009). It signifies an 
important step in developing BADEA’s work progress which has been characterized by expansion 
and diversification of activities and focus on projects that have a direct positive economic and social 
impact on BADEA’s beneficiaries. The plan has among its priorities the objective of coping with the 
developments witnessed in the African economies and to adjust its financing modalities so as to cope 
with the needs of these countries and to  the world trends in the economic development field. The plan 
thereby aims at alleviating poverty and improving the standards of living of beneficiaries achieving 
food security, supporting human resources development and encouraging women’s participation in 
development and conservation of the environment. 

The plan also highlights BADEA’s interest in projects in different development sectors of the 
economy and in projects carried out in countries affected by natural disasters to reduce the impact 
of such mishaps. It emphasizes BADEA’s policy of increasing the grant element of the loans it offers 
and assuring flexibility of its lending terms.

Allocations approved for the FFYP period, amounted to $ 900 million, provided from the Bank’s 
internal equity sources. Within the framework of the Plan, priority was given to agriculture and rural 
development and infrastructure sectors without neglecting other important sectors such us industry 
power, health, education and the environment.

Since commencement of its operations, all 43 african countries eligible for BADEA’s aid benefited 
from its technical assistance operations while 42 countries benefited from project loans. Moreover, a 
number of regional organizations benefited from BADEA’s aid (Annex II).

During 2008, BADEA provided assistance to the African countries recipient of its aid according to 
the guidelines of the Plan; the Bank was able to fully execute its operations’ program for 2008 using 
all the allocations approved for the year.

Commitments During 2008

The total budgeted allocation for loans and technical assistance operations in 2008 reached
$ 190 million with an increase of $ 10.00 million over the allocation of 2007. Of the total allocation for 
2008, $ 183.25 million was earmarked for projects whereas $ 6.75 million was budgeted for technical 
assistance operations. The approved commitments amounted to $ 190 million with an increase of 
$10.4 million compared to the approved commitments of 2007 which amounted to $ 179.6 million (a 
rate of increase of 5.79%). These commitments were allocated to finance 56 operations, including 25 
development projects and 31 technical assistance operations. Hence, the commitments during 2008 
exceeded the average annual commitments for the period 1975-2008 amounting to $95.15 million 
by some $ 94.85 million (i.e an increase of approximately 99.68%).

Loan Commitments and Their Sectoral Distribution during 2008

Allocations for loans during 2008 were made in accordance with the Five Year Plan’s guidelines 
the priorities of the recipient countries and their basic needs, and the policies and strategies of the 
Bank. The loan commitments in 2008 amounted to $ 183.25 million and were extended for projects 
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in infrastructure, agriculture and rural development, the social sector, the energy sector and the 
private sector. The projects financed aimed at improving the living standards of the beneficiaries 
contributing to food security, social stability in rural areas, poverty alleviation and improving efficiency 
of infrastructure.

In recognition of the needs of the beneficiary countries to support and develop roads, water 
supply and education projects, the infrastructure sector was accorded the greatest share of these 
commitments ($ 97 million i.e. 52.93% of the total); covering roads, airports, water supply, sanitation 
and the environment (waste management and coast protection). In addition, the Bank continued to 
focus on agriculture and rural development sector due to its important role in achieving food security 
and improving the standards of living of the beneficiaries. An allocation of $ 43.2 million (about 23.58% 
of total loan commitments) was made to this sector which includes land reclamation, irrigation, and 
natural resources. The energy sector received $ 9 million (about 4.91% of total commitments), while 
the social sector received $ 19.55 million (about 10.67% of total commitments), earmarked for 4 
projects in education and vocational training. The private sector received $ 14.5 million (7.91% of 
total commitments) for two projects (Table III).

Table III
Distribution of BADEA’s Loans By Sector (2007 and 2008)

The Bank continued to provide its loans in concessionary terms that suit the nature of the funded 
projects and the economic realities of the borrowing countries, mostly low income countries. These 
concessionary terms enabled the beneficiary countries to obtain loans with high grant elements 
that suit their economic conditions and the orientations of the donor community in dealing with 
low-income countries. The weighted-average interest rate charged on BADEA’s loans decreased to 
1.50% in 2008 compared to 1.28% in 2007, even though six loans were offered at interest rate of 2% 
or more, whereas the 20 remaining loans were offered a rate of 1%. The weighted average of the 
loan period was 27.4 years in 2008 compared to 28.66 years in 2007. The weighted average for the 
loans’ grace period slightly decreased to 8.46 in 2008 compared with 9.22 years in 2007 (Tables I 
and II). Moreover, the grant element, which is the measure of the softness of the loan, was 50.48% in 
2008 compared to 57.94% in 2007 (both at a discount rate of 6.5%) (Table II)(1). The increase in the 
Bank’s lending grant element indicates that BADEA is continuing its efforts to reduce the debt burden 
on the African countries which face critical economic and financial circumstances.

Breakdown By Sector Number of Projects
Amount 

($ Million)
Percentage 

(%)

2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008

Infrastructure & Environment 16 11 134.50 97.70 77.70 52.93

Agriculture and Rural Development 3 5 16.90 43.20 9.77 23.58

Energy 1 1 9.00 9.00 5.20 4.91

Social Sector 3 4 9.70 19.55 5.60 10.67

Private Sector -2 2 3 14.50 1.73 7.91

Total 25 23 173.10 183.25 100 100

(1)  The discount rate was changed from 10% to 5% in 2003 due to reduced interest rates in the world financial markets, hence a lower 
interest for the dollar. Hence, the commercial Interest Reference Rate CIRR indicating the rate for commercial loans for six months, 
published by OECD, was used. This rate is used for calculating the grant element by international development finance institutions 
amounting on average in 2007 some 6.5%. It is worth to mention that there are no commitment charges on Badea loans. Moreover, 
the Bank gives a reduction of 0.25% on interest rate or administrative expenses in order to encourage those countries that honour their 
commitments within 30 days of maturity. This was not taken into account when calculating the grant element.
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Table (I)
Loans & Technical Assistance Approved During 2008

* Calculated on the basis of 5% discount rate in 2003. As for 2006, 2007 and 2008 the discount rate used was 6.5%

Beneficiary 
Country or 
Institution

Project
Date of Board 

Approval
Amount in
($ million)

Interest 
Rate
(%)

Maturity 
(Years)

Grace 
Period 
(Years)

Grant 
Element 

(%) *

A- Loans:

1. Ethiopia Rural Electrification in «Sawla-Key Afer» 6/3/2008 9.00 1.0 30 10 59.2

2. Burkina Faso «Samindini» Dam   6/3/2008 10.0 1.0 30 10 59.2

3. Burundi «Bobonza-Andora» Road project 6/3/2008 10.0 1.0 30 10 59.2

4. Senegal
Livestock development in Eastern Senegal and 
«Casamance» Area

6/3/2008 6.20 1.0 30 10 59.2

5. Swaziland Construction of «Sicunusa-Nhlangano» Road 6/3/2008 8.00 2.5 22 4 32.4

6. Guinea
«Labi - Sariba- Madina Gonas» Road (section 
«Koramangi-Manda Sentioro»)

6/3/2008 13.50 1.0 30 10 59.2

7. Kenya «Bura» Irrigation and Resettlement   6/3/2008 8.00 1.0 30 10 59.2

8. Malawi Construction of «Thyolo-Bangula» Road 6/3/2008 10.00 3.0 30 4 59.2

9. Mozambique Sanitation Project for central Beira City 6/3/2008 8.00 1.0 30 10 59.2

10. Regional
Line of Credit for Islamic Institution for Private Sector 
Development

26/6/2008 10.00 L+0.25% 7 3 10.7

11. Tanzania Construction of two Secondary schools in Zanzibar 26/6/2008 6.00 1.0 30 10 59.2

12. Gambia «Brikama- Dimbaya- Dar Silami» Road 26/6/2008 7.50 1.0 30 10 59.2

13. Cape Verde
Rehabilitation of Water Basins in Santo antao and 
Sao Nicolau Islands

26/6/2008 9.00 2.0 28 7 43.9

14. Zambia Rehabilitation of «Copper Belt» Feeder Roads 26/6/2008 8.00 1.0 30 10 59.2

15. Senegal
Linguère – Matam Road (1st phase : Linguère - 
Boulal (A.L)

26/6/2008 8.00 1.0 30 10 59.2

16. Seychelles
Infrastructure of Social Services (Education + Health) 
in «Perseverance» Island

26/6/2008  6.00 2.5 22 5 33.4

17. Niger Construction of «Kandadji» Dam 26/6/2008 10.00 1.0 30 10 59.2

18. Benin Additional loan for Health (1) 6/10/2008 1.55 1.0 30 10 59.2

19.  Burkina 
Faso

«Koudougou-Dédougou» Road 6/10/2008 8.00 1.0 30 10 59.2

20. Ghana
Radiotherapy and Nuclear Medicine Treatment 
Services

6/10/2008 6.00 1.0 30 10 59.2

21. Cameroon
Additional loan to «Limbé» Industrial and naval 
shipyard

6/10/2008 6.00 3.0 20 5 29.0

22. Mauritius «Terre Rouge-Verdan-Iban» Road: Phase II 6/10/2008 10.00 3.0 20 5 27.8

23. Uganda
Second Line of Credit to Uganda Development Bank 
Limited (UDBL)

6/10/2008 4.50 2.5 25 4 34.7

Total 173.1
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Table (I) cont.

Beneficiary Country 
or Institution

Project
Date of Board 

Approval
Amount

(in million $)

B- Technical 
Assistance

Eritrea1. Institutional support to the Ministry of Finance 6/3/2008 0.235

Regional2. 
Training Session in the Area of Procurement of Goods and Services for the benefit of  
cadres from Lesotho, Swaziland, Botswana, and Namibia

6/3/2008 0.200

Regional3. 
Training Session on remote sensing and the application of Geographic Information Systems 
in Agriculture

6/3/2008 0.150

Burkina4.  Faso
Techno-economic feasibility study for the land reclamation project on the Right Bank of River 
«Nakabi»

6/3/2008 0.300

Burundi5. Techno-economic feasibility study for the Development of the Livestock Sector 6/3/2008 0.400

Cape6.  Verde
Techno-economic feasibility study for the expansion of the International Airport in «Praia» 
town

6/3/2008 0.400

Swaziland7. Techno-economic feasibility study for the Irrigation Project in «Lovamisa» area 6/3/2008 0.350

Mozambique8. 
the provision of the services of an Arab Expert in the field of water and sanitation as an 
Institutional support to the Ministry of General Facilities and Housing

6/3/2008 0.235

Uganda9. 
Institutional support to the «Uganda Investment Authority» through financing studies on 
investment promotion

6/3/2008 0.140

Regional10. 
Training Session in the field of Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises Credit Risk 
Management

26/6/2008 0.165

Regional11. 
Training Session in the Area of Regional Economic Coordination and Integration for Staff of 
the African Union Commission and Regional Economic Commissions

26/6/2008 0.150

Regional12. Training Session on the Maintenance and Management of Roads 26/6/2008 0.170

Regional13. Training Session in the field of Maintenance of Electrical Power Networks 26/6/2008 0.170

Regional14. 
Meeting of High Level Experts on Agriculture Development and Food Security in Africa and 
the Arab world

26/6/2008 0.050

Regional15. Study on the Mechanisms to promote Arab investments in Africa 26/6/2008 0.170

Regional16. First Forum for Arab and African Contracting Firms- Senegal 26/6/2008 0.145

Regional17. Second Forum for Arab and African Consultancy Firms-Tunisia 26/6/2008 0.090

Gambia18. 
Institutional support to the Meteorology Division of the Department of State for Fisheries and 
Water Resources

26/6/2008 0.220

Senegal19. 
Institutional support to the National Authority For Land Reclamation & Development of the 
River Basin of «Senegal» area

26/6/2008 0.130

Congo20. Institutional Support to the Ministry of Economy, Finance and Budget 26/6/2008 0.240

Mozambique21. Techno-economic feasibility study for the Rural Electrification Project in «Niasa» Province 26/6/2008 0.400

Regional22. First Meeting of the Chambers of Commerce and Industry in Africa and the Arab World 6/10/2008 0.075

Regional23. Training Programme in the area of Integrated Rice Management for Rice Production 6/10/2008 0.320

Regional24. Training Session in the Area of Procurement of Goods and Services 6/10/2008 0.190

Regional25. Training session in support to the Tsetse-Trypanosomiasis Control and Eradication initiative 6/10/2008 0.170

Regional26. 
Training session in the area of livestock census-taking for cadres from the CILSS Countries 
and from the West Africa Economic Community

6/10/2008 0.090

Regional27. Training session in the area of Potable Water and Waste Water Treatment Technology 6/10/2008 0.150

Burkina28.  Faso Techno-economic feasibility study for the «Yako-Koudougo» Road Project 6/10/2008 0.300

Sao29.  Tome and 
Principa

Institutional Support to the Water and Electricity Authority 6/10/2008 0.250

Mali30. Techno-economic feasibility study for the Irrigation Development Project in «Dire-Ansongo» area 6/10/2008 0.450

Uganda31. Institutional Support to the Ministry of Local Government 6/10/2008 0.245

Total Technical 
Assistance 

6.750 

Grand Total ( Loans and Technical Assistance) 190.000
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Year
Annual Financing 

(Million $) (1)

Net Annual 
Commitments (million 

$)(2)

Interest Rate
(%)

Repayment
Period (Years)

Grace
Period (Years)

Grant Element
% (3)(4)(5)

1975 85.500 68.033 3.70 23.60 5.20 44.68

1976 62.000 56.823 2.90 22.80 5.00 49.78

1977 66.290 64.226 5.00 16.10 4.40 29.91

1978 72.870 48.601 3.70 18.10 5.20 40.84

1979 49.070 41.916 4.30 17.20 4.40 35.20

1980 71.950 48.066 5.60 15.90 3.80 25.44

1981 76.026 41.284 5.90 14.40 4.20 23.01

1982 90.000 48.180 6.00 16.00 4.70 23.84

1983 83.933 62.120 6.50 15.00 4.20 19.72

1984 87.960 44.483 6.60 14.20 3.70 18.24

1985 73.790 35.948 5.90 15.90 4.30 24.05

1986 58.605 36.937 4.20 16.50 4.20 35.02

1987 71.423 28.604 4.60 16.20 4.70 32.84

1988 66.720 49.151 4.30 17.00 4.30 34.90

1989 72.000 53.674 4.20 18.00 5.20 37.61

1990 73.682 34.366 3.90 18.40 4.30 39.16

1991 74.235 34.613 3.90 17.80 3.80 37.43

1992 73.726 55.136 3.40 17.93 4.20 40.97

1993 74.654 51.269 3.40 17.50 4.20 40.97

1994 74.307 56.366 3.40 18.00 4.10 42.00

1995 79.930 74.739 3.15 18.17 4.42 43.45

1996 89.938 80.134 3.26 18.50 4.34 42.61

1997 99.830 90.527 3.05 17.80 4.36 43.75

1998 109.940 82.434 3.10 18.10 4.38 42.70

1999 119.520 115.194 3.05 18.20 4.77 43.70

2000 123.950 122.658 2.29 25.95 5.62 58.15

2001 129.200 112.525 2.03 26.23 5.65 58.80

2002 134.390 133.897 1.43 27.25 7.21 65.40

2003 139.990 124.378 1.70 27.45 6.73 36.40

2004 144.970 139.282 1.36 27.67 7.62 42.72

2005 159.939 152.594 1.15 29.08 8.56 45.11

2006 169.945 169.734 1.31 28.78 9.20 54.94

2007 179.600 179.456 1.28 28.66 9.22 57.94

2008 190.000 189.946 1.50 27.40 8.46 50.48

Table II
BADEA’s Financing During The Period 1975-2008

(Loans and Grants)

(1) Including technical assistance operations.
(2) Cancellations have been deducted from total commitments of the appropriate year when the Board of Directors gave its approval. 
(3) Interest rate on loans, loan period repayment, and grace period for loans are weighted averages, weighted by the value of the loans authorized in a given 

year.
(4) A loan is considered concessionary if the grant element is 25% or more.

The discount rate was changed from 10% in 2002 and before to 5% in 2003. The Grant element was calculate in 2006 and 2007 on the basis of a discount  
rate of 6.5%.
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Loan Commitments and their Sectoral Distribution during the period 1975-2008

The total cumulative commitments made by BADEA during the period 1975-2008 stood at
$ 3329.883 million; of which $ 3226.17 million was allocated to finance 450 development projects 
(Table VII). Net loan commitments amounted to $ 2640.344 million, out of which infrastructure and 
environment sector received $ 1490.288 (56.44%), the agriculture and rural development sector 
received $ 681.445 million (25.81%), energy received $ 174.995 million (6.63%), industry received 
$ 52.928 million (2.0%), the social sector received $ 150.113 million (5.69%), the private sector 
$ 77.94 million (2.95%), and the Urgent Aid Programme received $ 12.635 million (0.48%) (Table IV). 
As for the loans of Special Arab Aid for Africa (SAAFA(1)) totaling 59 loans, loans provided to African 
countries in support of their balance of payments, the total commitments under this Programme 
amounted to $ 214.244 million. Total cumulative commitments of SAAFA and those of project loans 
amounted to $ 2854.588 million after deducting the cancellations.

Table IV
Sectoral Distribution of Loans 1975-2008

Technical Assistance Commitments and their Sectoral Distribution for 2008

In accordance with the guidelines of the Fifth Five Year Plan (2005-2009), BADEA continued 
to provide technical assistance to the African countries beneficiaries of its aid through financing 
feasibility studies for development projects and institutional support operations. The latter involve 
training courses for the benefit of public and private sectors employees and provision of experts 
equipment, tools and instruments and organising forums for active economic players in Africa 
and the Arab countries. The beneficiary of this assistance is usually a government department or 
corporations a private sector firms or a regional African organizations. 

The technical assistance operations approved during 2008, consisted of 31 operations for which 
$ 6.750 million was allocated (i.e. 100% of total allocation for 2008). The sum approved for feasibility 
studies amounted to $ 2.770 million (i.e. about 41%) which was used to finance 8 technical and 
economic feasibility studies including, 4 studies in the agriculture and rural development sector, two 
studies in the infrastructure sector and one study in the energy sector. In addition, 23 institutional 
support operations were approved at a total cost of $ 3.980 million (i.e. 59% of total financing approved). 
These operations consisted of 11 training courses in the sectors of infrastructure,agriculture, finance 

Sector In $ million %

Infrastructure and environment  1490.288 56.44

Agriculture and rural development 681.445 25.81

Energy 174.995 6.63

Industry 52.928 2.00

Social 150.113 5.69

Private 77.940 2.95

Urgent Aid Programme 12.635 0.48

Total 2640.344 100

(1)  The Special Arab Aid for Africa ( SAAFA) was established in November 1973 and started its operations in 1974 to provide loans to African countries to help 
them overcome difficulties in obtaining foreign financing and in support of their balance of payments. It was administered by the League of Arab States 
up to 1976 when BADEA took over the management of its operations. In 1977 its resources were merged into BADEA’s capital and its basic operations of 
non- project lending came to an end .
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economics, and water at a total cost of $1.925 million and for the benefit of 300 participants. The 
institutional support operations included financing of the services of five Arab experts in the fields 
of information technology, water supply, sanitation, projects, and urban planning. The technical 
assistance operations in 2008 included 2 operations in the field of procurement of equipment 
and training national cadres. It also included 4 operations within the framework of BADEA’s new 
orientation, of organizing the first Meeting of the Chambers of Commerce and Industry in Africa and 
the Arab World, the second forum for Arab and African Consultancy Firms, the first forum of Arab 
and African contracting firms and the meeting of High Level Experts on Food Security, these events 
were organized at a total cost of $ 0.360 million (i.e 5.3% of total financing for technical assistance 
programme).

The sectoral distribution of the technical assistance commitments in 2008 continued to reflect the 
priorities of African beneficiary countries. Accordingly, $2.545 million were allocated to the agriculture 
and rural development sector (i.e.37.7%) $ 1.750 million to infrastructure sector (i.e.25.9%), $ 1.490 
million to the financial sector (i.e.22.1%) $ 0.570 million to the energy sector, (i.e. 8.4%) and $ 0.360 
million (i.e. 5.3%) to financing meetings and forums, and 0.6% was allocated to other sectors.

Technical Assistance Commitments and their Sectoral Distribution (1975-2008)

Since its commencement in 1975 up to 2008, the total technical assistance commitments of 
BADEA amounted to $103.713 million to finance 438 operations consisting of feasibility studies 
and institutional support operations. All 43 countries eligible for BADEA’s aid benefited from these 
operations, along with 5 regional groups and 17 regional institutions.

Total allocation for feasibility studies during 1975-2008, amounted to $ 53.042 million (i.e. 51.1% 
of the total) in comparison with $ 50.671 million (48.9%) for institutional support (Table V). 

Table V
Technical Assistance Extended by BADEA during 1975-2008

Date
Feasibility studies Institutional support Total

Number
Amount

(Million US$)
Number

Amount
(Million US$)

Number
Amount

(Million US$)

1998-1975 114 29.057 83 17.262 197 46.319

1999 7   2.220 14 2.780 21 5.000      

2000 7 2.285 14 2.675 21 4.960

2001 7 2.385 12 2.815 19 5.200  

2002 7 2.645 13 2.755 20 5.400

2003 7  2.200 15 3.400 22 5.600

2004 6  1.830 18 3.940 24 5.770

2005 7 2.000 21 3.989 28 5.989

2006 8 2.740 23 3.590 24 6.225

2007 8 2.910 229 3.980 31 6.500

2008 8 2.770 23 ** 3.980 31 6.750

Total 188 53.042 252 50.671 438 103.713*

% 42.5 51.1 57.5 48.9 100 100

* The net commitments for technical assistance amounts to $83.770 million after the deduction of $ 19.943 million representing the value of cancellations of 
some grants and the remaining balances of some completed operations during the period 1976 – 2008 valued $ 17.923, and a sum of $ 2.020 million allocated 
for eight feasibility studies which resulted in projects BADEA contributed to their financing and the sums spent were considered part of the approved loans.

** Including 4 operations allocated for the organization of the Second Forum for Arab and African Consultancy Firms, the first forum for Arab and African 
contracting firms, the first meeting of chambers of commerce and industry in Africa and the Arab world and the meeting of the highly level experts on food 
security within the framework of BADEA’s new orientations. 
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Due to its significant development role, the agriculture and rural development sector received 
during the period 1975-2008 the largest share of technical assistance allocations amounting to 
$42.589 million (41.1%), followed by infrastructure sector which received $ 39.398 million (38%). 
BADEA allocated $ 13.868 million (i.e. 13.4% of total technical assistance allocations) for capacity 
building to the financial administration sector in African countries. The allocation for the industrial 
sector stood at $ 4.943 million representing 4.7% and the energy sector received $ 2.951 million 
representing 2.8% (Table VI).

Table VI
Distribution of Technical Assistance Operations By Sector

1975-2008 ($ Million)

Feasibility Studies
As a matter of policy, the implementation of feasibility studies under the Technical Assistance 

Program is assigned to Arab, African or Arab/African consulting firms and institutions. Studies directed 
toward the agriculture and rural development sector and the infrastructure sector were allocated the 
biggest share of the total technical assistance programme’s budget, absorbing 49.6% and 41.2% 
respectively, whereas the industrial and energy sectors received 4.4% and 4.5% respectively during 
the period 1975-2008. 

Institutional Support  

The allocation for institutional support amounted to $50.671 million and covered training courses 
provision of Arab experts and other operations; following is a brief description of BADEA’s operations 
in this field:

Breakdown of Technical Assistance into Feasibility
Studies and Institutional Support (1975 - 2008) 

Institutional Support
252

Operations
57.5%

Feasibility Studies 
186

Operations
42.5%

50.671
$ Million
48.9 %

53.042
$ Million
51.1 %

Graph 1

Sector Infrastructure Agriculture Industry Energy Finance Total

Technical Assistance Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %

Feasibility Studies 26.292 49.6 21.837 41.2 2.343 4.4 2.400 4.5 0.170 0.3 53.042 100

Institutional Support 

Experts 4.481 28.0 6.613 41.3 0.310 1.9 0.235 1.5 4.369 27.3 16.008 100

Training 1.630 9.3 7.895 45.0 1.775 10.1 0.280 1.6 5.965 34.0 17.545 100

Other Operations 6.995 40.8 6.244 36.5 0.515 3.0 - - 3.364 19.7 17.118 100

Sub-Total 13.106 25.9 20.752 41 2.600 5.1 0.515 1.0 13.698 27 50.671 100

Grand total 39.398 38.0 42.589 41.1 4.943 4.7 2.915 2.8 13.868 13.4 103.713 100
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Training sessions
The importance that BADEA has accorded to training courses gained momentum since 1997. 

Since then, the funding for training programmes witnessed intensification and diversification to cope 
with the developments in the world economy and the increasing need in the field of human resources 
development and capacity building in the public and private sectors in the continent. It also reflects 
BADEA’s interest in assisting the African countries recipient of its aid in the implementation of their 
respective economic and social development programmes effectively. The 159 training courses 
offered during 1975-2008 covered all the sectors and 3929 trainees benefited from them. The total 
cost of such programmes stood at about $ 17.55 million. 141 training sessions of the above 159 
were offered during the period 1997 – 2008 to train 3658 participants, representing about 93.1% of 
the total number of trainees. During 2008 training was offered to 300 participants representing about 
7.6% of the total participants during 1975 – 2008.

In executing of the training programmes, BADEA continued to make use of Arab, African and 
Arab-African training organizations so as to further strengthen the Arab-African cooperation exchange 
of expertise and achieve the Bank’s objectives. 

Provision of Services of Experts
The provision of the services of Arab experts to African countries has been an important component 

of BADEA’s Technical Assistance Programme. It plays a key role in transmitting knowledge and 
expertise and training local cadres, and hence yields a positive impact on Arab-African cooperation. 
The total number of experts approved for African countries during the period 1991-2008 stood at 87 
at a total cost of $ 16.01 million, including 7 experts provided for BADEA’s beneficiaries in 2008.

Supporting Joint Arab-African Trade Fairs
In cooperation with the secretariat of the League of Arab States and the African Union Commission 

BADEA has been keen to contribute to the establishment of Arab-African trade fairs. In order to support 
the economic cooperation between Africa and the Arab world, the Bank’s contribution in this regard 
included funding the cost of organizing of show areas and covering the expenses of the logistics of the 
exhibitor’s displays. Moreover, the Bank had previously contributed to the establishment and support 
of all Arab-African trade fairs and to the organization of Arab-African Business-men weeks held in 
1995 and 1998. The total allocation earmarked to these activities amounted to $ 1.57 million.
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Other Operations
In addition to the above, the technical assistance operations included the provision of equipment 

such as computing and office equipment, schools and medical laboratories equipment. They also 
included the organization of forums for Arab and African consulting firms, meetings of the chambers 
of commerce and industry in Africa and the Arab world, and meetings of high level experts on food 
security. The total cost of such operations stood at $ 17.12 million.

Social Projects
Since the establishment of BADEA, the social sector was accorded great importance; up to 1995 

BADEA’s funding to the sector included supporting social components in development projects. The 
Third Five Year Plan introduced the direct financing of health and education projects in accordance with 
the recent development trends, which consider poverty alleviation and human resources development 
as the corner stones in the development process. During 2008, BADEA continued financing social 
projects directly and approved four projects in the Republics of Benin, Tanzania, Seychelles, and 
Ghana at an allocation of $19.55 million. Total commitments to this sector amounted to $ 150.113 
million for 39 projects in the field of health and education during the period 1995-2008.

Private sector
BADEA continued to support the private sector so as to enable it to play a bigger role in economic 

development of the different African countries. For this purpose it allocated lines of credit for national 
and regional development institutions and banks in eligible countries to be on lent to the private sector 
enterprises to finance sub-projects. BADEA’s contribution to the development of the private sector 
also took the form of extending loans to the governments for further on-lending to the private sector 
and also through financing components targeting the private sector through projects in different 
sectors. Since commencement of operations, the total number of loans extended to the private 
sector stood at 32 (including 21 lines of credit and one micro-finance loan). The total net cumulative 
commitments amounted to $77.94 million, directed towards small projects in industry, agriculture 
and rural development. BADEA also undertook the financing of a number of feasibility studies, which 
culminated in projects suitable for private sector financing, in addition to the benefits that accrued to 
the private sector from training courses and fairs funded by BADEA

Regional Operations
The Bank continued its focus on projects and technical assistance operations of regional nature 

which are intended to have a positive impact on more than one African country and/or connect 
neighbouring Arab countries, thereby creating opportunities for cooperation between these countries 
through facilitating transport and improving the standards of services as well as contributing to poverty 
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alleviation. In this regard, the Bank financed, during 2008, three road projects aiming at achieving 
regional integration. These road projects are: “Brikama - Dimbaya - Dar Silami” road in Gambia 
connecting the latter with Senegal, ‘’Labi-Comba’’ road in Guinea, which is the first phase of “Labi - 
Sariba- Madina Gonas” road connecting Guinea and Senegal, and “Koudougou-Dédougou” road in 
Burkina Faso which connects this country with Mali. Total commitments for these projects amounted 
to $ 29 million (15.8% of total project loans for 2008). In this regard and within the technical Assistance 
operations, BADEA financed one feasibility study during 2008 which is the ‘’Technical and Economic 
Feasibility for the “Yako-Koudougo” road project in Burkina Faso at a budgeted cost of $ 0.3 million. 
Total commitments for regional operations during the year amounted to $ 29. 3 million.

Foreign Trade Between Arab and African Countries ( Export Financing)
Due to the role of trade in strengthening Arab African cooperation, and its positive impact on the 

development process, BADEA contributed $ 10 million to the capital of AFREXIM BANK and initiated 
a programme for financing Arab exports to African countries eligible for its aid. A sum of $ 100 
million was allocated to BADEA Foreign Export Financing Scheme (BEFS) to finance Arab exports to 
African countries ($ 75 million is managed by the Islamic Development Bank out of which $ 50 million 
was entrusted to IDB since 1998, in accordance with an agreement signed with BADEA). BADEA 
manages the remaining $ 25 million independently. Since the start of the programme, 23 operations 
were funded at a total cost of $123.098 million to finance Arab countries’ export to African countries. 
These operations went to the benefit of 8 countries including Tanzania, Guinea, Mauritius, Uganda 
Zimbabwe, Seychelles, Kenya and Gambia,; some of these countries benefited from this programme 
by more than one operation.

Evolution of Commitments and Disbursements (1975-2008)
Between (1975-2008), the total gross commitments of loans and grants amounted to $ 3329.883 

million, while the net commitments stood at $ 2724.114 million; excluding the loans granted by 
SAAFA (59 loans with a sum of $ 214.244 million). The difference between the total gross and net 
commitments is $605.769 million, representing cancellations effected during the period (1975–2008). 
The total cumulative disbursements reached $ 1965.984 million by the end of 2008 compared to
$ 1825.125 million at the end of 2007; including disbursements out of SAAFA. The ratio of cumulative 
disbursements to cumulative net commitments of both BADEA and SAAFA less cancellation stood at 
67% at end of 2008 (Table VII). It is worth noting that disbursements during the 9 years (2000-2008) 
have exceeded repayments of loan principals by $ 429.313 million, since disbursements stood at
$ 809.578 million, whereas repayments stood at $ 380.265 million reflecting better loan management 
and follow-up and an increase in BADEA’s loans during the same period. As for the year 2008 
disbursements reached $ 135.840 million while repayments reached $ 38.194 million.

Graph 4
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Table VII
Evolution of BADEA’s Commitments and Disbursements (1974-2008)

($ Million)

(1) This sum is the total cumulative loan and grants commitments without cancellations, of which $ 3226.17 million is for loans and
$ 103.713 million for grants. The net cumulative commitments is $ 2724.114 million ($ 2640.344 for loans and $ 83.77 million for grants 

(2) Includes $65.084 million grant deducted against income
(3) The table includes SAAFA commitments, which started in 1974.
(4) Includes sums deducted against income totalling $65.084 million.

Disbursements 
as Percentage of 
Commitments (%)

Total Cumulative 
Disbursements (4

BADEA & SAAFA 
Cumulative Net 
Commitments (4)

SAAFA
Commitments(3)

BADEA 
Net Annual 

Commitments(2)

Annual 
Financing

Year

1974ــ100.0079.85079.85079.850
68.00144.500212.53364.65068.033 85.5001975
62.00203.097325.85656.50056.823 62.0001976
56.00223.959403.32613.24464.226 66.2901977
72.8701978 48.601ـ62.00279.635451.927
49.0701979 41.916ـ67.00331.591493.843
71.9501980 48.066ـ70.00379.446541.909
76.0261981 41.284ـ71.00416.428583.193
90.0001982 48.180ـ71.00453.240631.373
83.9331983 62.120ـ71.00492.894693.493
87.9601984 43.178ـ73.00534.797736.671
73.7901985 35.948ـ75.00576.362772.619
58.6051986 36.937ـ77.00625.576809.556
71.4231987 28.604ـ79.00660.747838.160
66.7201988 49.151ـ77.00685.596887.311
72.0001989 53.674ـ75.00709.227940.985
73.6821990 34.350ـ75.00732.516975.335
74.2351991 34.613ـ77.00775.3461009.948
73.7261992 55.132ـ76.00810.7391065.080
74.6541993 49.782ـ75.00833.5361114.862
74.3071994 55.998ـ74.00868.8111170.860
79.9301995 74.746ـ73.00907.6901245.606
89.9381996 80.197ـ72.00950.1771325.803
99.8301997 90.527ـ70.00992.8861416.330
109.9401998 86.651ـ69.001042.6121502.981
119.5201999 115.677ـ69.001113.9371618.658
67.001170.7661741.746-123.088 123.9502000
67.001238.8221858.308-116.562 129.2002001
66.001309.0971992.413-134.105 134.3902002
65.001386.8192120.166-127.753 139.9902003
65.001477.2082259.679-139.513 144.9702004
65.001567.8902419.370-159.692 159.9392005
65.001677.2912589.281-169.911 169.9452006
66.001.825.1252.768.833-179.551179.6002007
67.001.965.9842.938.358-189.946190.0002008

-1965.9842938.358214.2442.724.1143.329.883 (1)Total
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Sectoral Distribution of Loans and Grants Commitments (1975-2008) 
Total net commitments for projects and technical assistance operations during the period

1975-2008 amounted to $ 2724.114 million, distributed over the following sectors: infrastructure
$ 1490. 288 million (54.7%), agriculture and rural development $ 681.445 million (25.0%), energy 
sector $ 52.928 million (1.9%), the social sector $150.113 million (5.5 %), the private sector
$ 77.940 million (2.9%), and lastly the Urgent Aid Programme $ 12.635 million (0.5%). As for technical 
assistance, its net commitments amounted to $83,770 million (3.1%). (Annexes III and IV).

Projects and Technical Assistance Operations Completed During 2008
During 2008, 29 projects were completed in the infrastructure sector (roads), water supply and 

sewage, airports, social sector (education and health) and energy sector, with a total financing of
$ 198.7 million. These operations were earmarked to the benefit of 20 countries so as to contribute 
to the improvement of the standards of living and quality of life of their populations. In addition, 25 
technical assistance operations were completed during the year including 6 feasibility studies, 19 
institutional support operations including 11 training sessions with a total cost of $ 4.861 million.

Signature of Loan Agreements
During 2008, 26 Loan Agreements were signed with 20 African countries. The total value of the 

loans extended by virtue of these Agreements amounted to $ 206.95 million.

BADEA’s Contribution Towards Debt Relief
Within the framework of its Five Year Plan, BADEA contributed to the debt relief of some African 

countries through facilitating the repayment of arrears before the International Monetary Fund 
and the World Bank undertook the HIPC initiative to solve the problem of indebtedness. Along 
with other international financing institutions, BADEA participated in the HIPC initiative since its 
commencement in 1997. BADEA works within HIPC initiative and its MDRI with parties to the HIPC 
to contribute to the efforts of reducing the debt burden through the contribution it has to provide to 
each country in accordance with the conditions agreed with each eligible country separately. Within 
the HIPC framework, The Bank provided assistance estimated at $ 148.638 million for the following 
countries:

• Uganda ($ 7.2 million), • Burkina Faso ($ 16.3 million), 
• Mozambique ($ 11.3 million), • Niger ($ 19.6 million) ,
• Mali ($ 4.0 million), • Benin ($ 2.6 million)

Emergency Aid 12.635 (0.5%)

Infrastructure and environment
1490.288 (54.7%)

Technical Assistance 83.770 (3.1%)

Social Sector 150.113 (5.5%)

Industry 52.928 (1.9%)

Private Sector 77.940 (2.9%)

Energy 174.995 (6%)

Agricultture and Rural
Development

681.445 (25%)

$ million

Sectoral Distribution of BADEA‘s Commitments
(1975 - 2008)

Graph 5



28

ARAB BANK FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN AFRICA

• Senegal ($ 5.1 million), • Ethiopia ($ 6 Million),
• Tanzania ($ 14.7 million), • Ghana ($ 8.3 million).
• Rwanda  ($ 24.3 million), • Zambia ($ 11.846)
• Madagascar ($ 1.506 million), • Malawi ($ 4.216 million)
• Sierra Leone ($ 9.766 million), • Cameroon ($ 1.904 million)

BADEA is also considering providing its assistance to debt relief within the HIPC initiative gives an 
additional support to its role in the Continent’s development. Hence, BADEA is considering providing 
assistance to eligible African countries that reached the Completion Point. Moreover, BADEA adopted 
a lending policy characterized by highest degree of concessionality in its lending terms for countries 
that reach the Completion Point.

BADEA’s Financing and Poverty Reduction
The most fundamental goal of BADEA in its intervention in all sectors is poverty alleviation. To 

that end, priority is given to development projects with direct impact on poverty alleviation in rural 
development and agriculture sector, along with infrastructure sector (which helps providing the 
necessary conditions for improving access to services and increase production in agriculture and 
rural development), rural electricity, water supply and sanitation, provision of health and education 
services, in addition to creation of employment opportunities to enable the poor segments in the 
community; all of which shall in the end lead  to increase their incomes and improve their living 
conditions. The Bank aims at reinforcing women’s role in general and rural women in particular 
because of the impact such thrust shall create on poverty reduction; BADEA seeks to contribute to 
the conservation of the environment to avoid the deterioration of the natural resources. The loans 
for projects earmarked for poverty alleviation are provided on soft terms and are flexible enough to 
enable financing of the components of projects in local currency.

Co-financing
BADEA accords great importance to co-financing development projects with other development 

finance institutions (particularly the Arab ones) due to the financial potentialities such an approach 
provides for financing large projects proposed for funding by the beneficiaries. During 2008, BADEA 
co-financed 18 out of the approved projects with Arab and non-Arab financing institutions and 
beneficiary governments. The percentage of BADEA’s financing in relation to the total cost of these 
projects amounting to $ 1029.368 million, stood at 14.16%. The contribution of other Arab funds 
(Saudi Fund, Kuwait Fund, and Abu Dhabi Fun for Development), the Islamic Development Bank 
and the OPEC Fund for International Development (OFID) amounted to about 47.41%. BADEA 
financing when added to that of the Arab funds, the Islamic Development Bank and the OFID Fund 
stood at about 61.57% as compared to that of non-Arab institutions amounting to 13.76%. The 
share of the African governments and local beneficiary entities was 24.67% (Table VIII). BADEA co 
financed with beneficiary governments the 3 projects, with a total cost of $ 25.556 million allocating 
$ 23million, representing 90% of the total cost. The remaining two projects (project loan and credit 
line) were financed solely by BADEA allocating $14.5 million representing 100% of total cost.

Table VIII
Cofinancing During 2007-2008 ($ Million)

20082007
Cofinanciers

%$ Million%$ Million

14.16145.75018.8127.3001- BADEA

47.41488.07042.8289.5302- Arab Funds, Islamic Development Bank & OFID

13.76141.63016.4111.1103- Non-Arab Financing Institutions

24.67253.91822.0149.3554- Beneficiary Countries & Local Entities

1001029.368100677.295Total
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The total cost of projects co-financed by BADEA, with all institutions during the period
1975 – 2008, amounted to $ 15112.451 million (Table IX). The contribution of BADEA represented 
about 15.72%, while the contribution of Arab Funds, the Islamic Development Bank and the OFID 
Fund jointly stood at 22.31%, hence Arab financing institution, the Islamic Development Bank and 
OFID fund amounted to 38.03%. Other sources of external financing, which include the World Bank 
Group, the African Development Bank Group, governments of industrialized countries, the European 
Union, the International Fund for Agricultural Development and the West African Development Bank 
jointly contributed about 36.56%. The contribution of beneficiary governments and local entities 
stood at 25. 41%.

Table IX
Cofinancing During the Period 1975-2008

Amount
%$ Million

100.0015.112.451Total cost of projects

Financing:

15.722376.3801- BADEA

22.313371.4552- Arab Funds, ISDB and OFID 

10.201540.890*3- World Bank Group

10.551593.590**4- African Development Bank Group

4.93744.9605- The European Union 

10.881644.8506- Industrial Countries 

25.413840.5967- Beneficiary countries and local entities

* Including $ 20.09 million provided by the International Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD)
** Includes $ 8.13 million provided by BIDIC, $ 8 million provided by the Bank of Western Africa for the “Samindini” Dam in Burkina Faso. It also includes 

$ 40 million provided by the African Development Bank, $ 8 million provided by the Bank of Western Africa, and $ 7.5 million provided by BIDIC for the 
construction of “Kandadji” Dam in 2008.
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Coordination with the development financing Institutions
Since its establishment, BADEA has accorded great importance to coordinating its activities 

with sister financial institutions particularly the Arab ones due to the positive role that coordination 
can play on enhancing the effectiveness of financing economic and social development projects in 
developing countries and on increasing the effectiveness of development projects. In this respect, 
BADEA attended the annual meeting of the International Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD) 
in February 2008. It also attended the League of Arab States meetings held in March 2008. Besides, 
the Bank participated in the eleventh African Union summit in June/ July 2008 and signed a 
memorandum of agreement with the African Union. The Bank participated in the Coordination Group 
meetings at the presidents’ level in April and at the directors’ of operations level in July 2008, and at 
the Islamic Development Bank group meeting in May 2008. BADEA also attended the African Bank 
Group meetings in May 2008. It participated in the meetings of the presidents of the Arab financial 
institutions in October 2008 to prepare for the Arab Economic Summit to be held in January 2009.

Furthermore, BADEA attended the Annual Meetings of the World Bank and the International 
Monetary Fund and the Development Committee meetings in October 2008 and various periodic 
meetings.

These meetings availed opportunities for BADEA to coordinate with other institutions, international 
organizations and African leaders so as to promote coordination and agree on future work programmes 
in addition to following-up on the progress of implementation of joint projects. The Bank participated 
in many co-financers meetings. It also participated in other international development meetings 
concerned with development issues. Many delegations visited BADEA’s Headquarters to review 
the progress and promotion of cooperation. Likewise numerous BADEA delegations visited many 
African countries recipient of its aid.
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Countries that benefited from the financing of Projects and 
Technical Assistance Operations during 2008
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PART TWO
DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF LOANS AND TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 

OPERATIONS DURING 2008

The Arab Bank for Economic Development in Africa (BADEA) contributed to the financing of 23 projects and 31 
technical assistance operations during 2008. The detailed description of these projects and technical assistance 
operations, written in the order of dates of their approval by BADEA’s Board of Directors is as follows:

A-LOANS

Rural Electrification Project in “Sawla” - “Key Afer”

Sector: Energy

The Federal Republic of Ethiopia

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION 

(YEAR)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNNUAL INTEREST 
RATE

43.89 9 6/3/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at providing reliable electric power supply to rural areas in “Sawla” and “Key Afer” in the 

Southern people regional state, which will improve the leaving standard of the people, contribute to the poverty 
reduction and reduce the scale of migration to urban areas.

Project description:
The project, which involves the electrification of 131 rural towns located in the southern region of the 

country, it consists of the supply and erection of 132 kV, 120 km steel towers transmission line from “Sawla” 
to “Key Afer”, supply and erection of 132/33 kV substation at “Key Afer”, supply and erection of distribution 
network to supply electricity to 131 rural towns using concrete poles. The distribution network will comprise 
1636 km of 33 kV lines, 405 units of 33/0.4 kV distribution stations, 403 km of 380 V low voltage lines and 164 
km of street lighting and consultancy Services, which include preparation of detail design, tender document 
tendering and supervision.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 9 million to the project financing (about 20.51% of the total project cost). OFID 

contributes $ 20 million (about 45.56%), and Government contributes $ 14.89 million (about 33.93%)

Availability of energy is a vital factor in increasing production, stability, minimize migration from 
rural areas and reduction of poverty, to that end BADEA provided $ 175 million to that sector.
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“Samindini” Dam Project

Sector: Agriculture and rural development
Burkina Faso

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION 

(YEAR)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNNUAL INTEREST 
RATE

130.00 10.00 6/3/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at increasing agriculture production by constructing 

a dam on “Mohon” river to store water for irrigation. The project will 
envisage development of 1500 hectares of land for cultivation, which 
will increase to 23.000 hectares in the long run in order to increase 
agricultural production, in its two forms (plant and animal) and generation 
of hydropower. The project also helps to regulate water flows in river 
“Mohon” to reduce risks and conservation of the environment.

Project description:
The project comprises the construction of a 2900 m long and 20 m high 

dam on the “Mohon” river having a reservoir volume of 1050 million cu. m. , 
electrical works including Hydro Power generation with a capacity of 2.6 MW, 
development of 1500 hectare of land and construction of main and secondary 
canals for irrigation and drainage, environmental mitigation program and 
construction of houses and provision of social services for the people to be 

resettled, consultancy services, which includes design review and supervision during construction support of the 
Project Implementation Unit, provision of training and agricultural extension services, and auditing of project account. 

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 10.00 million to the project financing (about 7.69% of the total project cost), Islamic 

Development Bank contributes $ 36.5 million (about 28.08%), Saudi Fund contributes $ 12.00 million (about 
9.23%), Kuwait Fund contributes $ 12.00 million (about 9.23%), Abu Dhabi Fund contributes $ 10.00 million 
(about 7.69%), Bank of Western Africa contributes $ 8.00 million (about 6.15%), OFID contributes $ 7.00 million 
(about 5.39%), Entrepreneuship and Development Bank for West Africa Economic Association contributes $ 
8.13 million (about 6.25%), and Government contributes $ 26.37 million (about 20.29%).

“Bobonza” - “Andora” Road Project (Phase I)
Sector: Infrastructure

The Republic of Burundi

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION 

(YEAR)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNNUAL INTEREST 
RATE

22 10.00 6/3/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The project, which is part of the government’s program  to develop the 

road sector and upgrade the national road network, aims at connecting the 
provinces of “Bobonza” and “Sibitoki” with “Entemba” and “Andora”. The 
project will facilitate transportation of passengers and goods between the 
provinces, reduce cost of transportation, and contribute to the economic 
and social development of the region.

Project description:
The project involves construction of a 40.65 km long road in the Western 

part of the country. To facilitate financing the project is divided into two 
phases. The first phase covers the section “Bobonza-Entemba” with a length 
of 26.30 km while the second phase covers the section “Entemba-Andora” 
with a length of 14.35 km. The first phase of the project consists of civil Works 
and Ancillaries: asphalting of the road with a length of 26.30 km, consultancy Services: Includes detailed engineering 
design and preparation of tender documents for the two phases and supervison of construction for the first phase, 
institutional Support to the Project Implementation Unit, and land acquisition.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 10.00 million to the project financing (about 44.45% of the total project cost), OFID 

contributes $ 10.00 million (about 45.45%), and Government contributes $ 2.00 million (9.1%).

BADEA contributes positively to the 
development of the agricultural sector as 
a backbone for food self sufficiency and 
creating opportunities for employment.

Project Area
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Livestock development Project in Eastern Senegal and “Casamance” Area
Sector: Agriculture and rural development

The Republic of Senegal

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION 

(YEAR)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNNUAL INTEREST 
RATE

18.38 6.20 6/3/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The objective of the project is to contribute to alleviation of poverty 

and improving food security and the living standard of the rural 
population in the project area, through the improvement of livestock 
production and health, environmental protection, make use of agro-
pastoral infrastructure and natural resources, and fight against 
desertification.

Project description:
The project consists of the infrastructure construction which 

includes pastoral water and rural water structures, cattle breeding 
structures and administration building, support to production and 
agro-pastoral organization, micro- credit facilities and reinforcement 
of human capacities for the financial institution which distributes 
micro-credit.

Natural resource management, support to the Project Implementation 
Unit (PIU), and consultancy service for preparation of detail study, 
tender document for the civil works and construction supervision; expert 
services for Monitoring and evaluation to support the PIU and auditing of the project annual accounts.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 6.2 million to the project financing (about 33.73% of the total project cost), Islamic 

Development Bank contributes $ 10.34 million (about 56.26% of the total project cost), and Government 
contributes $ 1.84 million (about 10.01%). 

Construction of “Sicunusa” - “Nhlangano” Road Project
Sector: Infrastructure
Kingdom of Swaziland

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

42.57 8.00 6/3/2008 22 18 4 2.5%

Project Objectives:
The project contributes to the socio-economic development of the area 

it crosses by improving the efficiency of road transport thus leading to 
reduction of transportation costs and to facilitating transport of agricultural 
products to marketing centers, in addition to linking Swaziland with South 
Africa.

Project description:
The project is located in the district of “Shiselweni” in the southern part 

of the country. The project consists of civil works for the construction of an 
asphalt road with a total length of about 43.5 km 7.3 m width and two paved 
shoulders each is 2 m wide, and consultancy services for the preparation 
of detailed design and tender documents, assisting the executing agency in 

launching the tender, evaluation of offers and award of contract and supervision of construction.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 8.00 million to the project financing (about 18.79% of the total project cost), OFID 

contributes $ 22 million (about 58.73%) and Government contributes $ 9.57 million (about 22.48%).

Development of animal resources has a direct 
impact on increasing meat and milk productions 

as well as creating employment opportunities 
which lead to improvement of standard of life 
combat poverty and preserve environment.

Project Area
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“Labi” - “Sariba” - “Madina Gonas” Road Project (“Koramangi” - “Manda Sentioro” section)
Sector: Infrastructure

The Republic of Guinea

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

15.00 13.50 6/3/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The project is part of the government’s program to improve the 

transport sector and to upgrade the standard of the national road network. 
The project, which aims at upgrading the road connecting Guinea with 
Senegal, will ease the traffic congestion, connect and integrate the area 
with other regions. The project will also reduce passengers and goods 
transportation cost, operational and maintenance cost, facilitate traffic flow 
and improve safety, in addition to its contribution to poverty alleviation.

Project description:
The project consists of the civil works and ancillaries for construction of 

an asphalt road 35 km long and 7m wide with two shoulders each is 1.5 m 
wide, and consultancy services to review the engineering design and tender 
documents and to assist the implementation unit during tendering and tender 
evaluation and supervision of construction. 

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 13.50 million to the project financing (about 90% of the 

total project cost), and Government contributes $ 1.50 million (about 10%).

“Bura” Irrigation and Resettlement Project
Sector: Agriculture and rural development

The Republic of Kenya

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

42.403 8.00 6/3/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The objective of the project is to create job opportunities and improve the living 

standard of the people in the project area by supporting resettlement of 2590 
household farmers. The resettlement project will include rehabilitation works for 
irrigation, drainage and infrastructure; and provision of water for irrigation of 5460 
hectares of land on the west bank of “Tana” river.

Project description:
The Project consists of emergency maintenance works for the ongoing 

project, which include rehabilitation of the existing water intake at “Nanighi” and 
maintenance of existing main water conveyance canal, construction of a 26 km 
supply Canal connecting the new intake site to the existing main supply canal 

and rehabilitation of irrigation and drainage networks for irrigating an area of about 5460 ha, construction and 
rehabilitation of the main and feeder roads with a total length of 261 km and construction of 4 bridges across the 
main canal, supply of earthmoving equipment and machineries for construction of canals, roads and pumping 
equipment. Provision of means of transport for follow-up of project implementation and supply of equipment 
and materials for the project implementation unit, agricultural extension services, provision of micro-credit 
facilitates for farmers, consultancy Services: Includes detailed Engineering, river hydrology assessment, and 
preparation of detailed design, tender documents, supervision of the project implementation, and technical 
assistance provided by Kuwait Fund for the preparation of the technical and economic feasibility study.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 8.00 million to the project financing (about 18.87% of the total project cost), Kuwait Fund contributes $ 20.72 

million (about 48.86%), OFID contributes $ 6.00 million (about 14.15%), and Government contributes $ 7.683 million (about 18.12%).

Construction or Roads facilitates the 
transportation of goods and passengers and 

help link the country with its neighbors.

The project aims at rehabilitation of 
thousands of families and provide 
employment as well as reducing 

migration to urban centers.
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Construction of “Thyolo” - “Bangula” Road Project
Sector: Infrastructure

The Republic of Malawi

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

66.965 10 6/3/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The project, which is part of the government’s plan to improve the 
national road network in the country, aims at contributing to the social 
and economic development of the southern region by connecting the 
region to the other regions of the country. The project will facilitate 
transport of agricultural products from the project area to consumers 
and export centers in central and north of Malawi, and further to 
neighboring countries. The project will also make traveling to schools 
and health centers much easier

Project description:
The project lies in the southern part of the country in “Thyolo” and 
“Nsanje” provinces and connects the towns of “Thyolo” and “Bangula” 
passing through “Makwasa” and “Muouna”. The total length of the road is about 91 km. The project includes 
civil works and ancillaries for the construction of an asphalt road and provision of consultancy services. The 
road will follow the same alignment in most of its sections and will not acquire land acquisition.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 10 million to the project financing (about 14.9% of the total project cost). Kuwait Fund 
contributes $ 14.44 million (about 21.6%), Saudi Fund contributes $ 12.00 million (about 17.9%),OFID 
contributes $ 10 million (about 14.9%), and Government contributes $ 20.525 million (about 30.7%).

Sanitation Project for central “Beira” City
Sector: Infrastructure

The Republic of Mozambique

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

8.889 8.00 6/3/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at improving the health and environmental condition for the 
population of “Biera” town by way of prevention and control of diseases and 
epidemics caused by lack of sewerage system and storm water drainage.

Project description:
The project is located in “Beira” town (capital of “Sofala” province), some 
1220 km north of the capital “Maputo”. “Beira” is considered as the second 
largest town next to the “Maputo”, in terms of size and inhabitants. The 
project consists of civil works and ancillaries for construction of sewerage 
network. These include supply and installation of about 30 km of pipes with 
diameters ranging from 200 to 600 mm, construction and equipping of 2 
lift pumping stations, the first includes 2 pumps each with 50 cubic meters 
capacity and the second includes 3 pumps each with 180 cubic meters 
capacity, construction of storm water drainage network consists of concrete 

channels with a total length of about 20 km, consultancy services for the review of the detailed design and 
tender documents and supervision of construction, and support of the project implementation unit, which 
includes a vehicle, two computers with accessories, and office furniture.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 8.00 million to the project financing (about 90% of the total project cost), and Government 
contributes $ 0.889 million (about 10%).

BADEA provides financing to water 
and sanitation projects to improve 

living conditions for the populations 
and to deter outbreak of diseases.

Project Area
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Line of Credit for Islamic Institution for Private Sector Development

Sector: Private

Regional (Group of African countries)

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

10.00 10.00 26/6/2008 7 4 3 (L+0.25)%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at contributing to the development of the private sector in the recipient countries in cooperation 
with the Islamic Institution for private sector Development to eliminate poverty and improve living conditions 
through availing credits to finance industrial, social and services projects which will help in achieving the 
predominant development in 15 sub Saharan African countries.

Project description:
The project includes the provision of line of credit to Islamic Institution for Private Sector Development which 
will utilize it to finance private sectors projects in the sub Saharan African countries members of the ICO on 
the bases of the economic priorities, financial return, the expected economic benefits and financial cover and 
risk.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 10.0 million to the project financing (100% of the total project cost).

Construction of two Secondary schools Project in Zanzibar
Sector: Social (Education)

The United Republic of Tanzania

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

6.667 6.0 26/6/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at contributing to the human resource development in 
Zanzibar through expansion of the infrastructure for secondary education 
and provision of equipment and teaching materials for two secondary 
schools. 

Project description:
The project is located in “Angoga” Island in “kibotini” area and “Pemba” 
Island in the town of “Mkaniagini” in “Mkwana” area and comprises 
of the civil works and ancillaries for the construction and furnishing of 
two secondary schools of two stories reinforced concrete. Each school 
includes classroom block of 14 classrooms with a capacity of 560 
students.  The project also includes the construction and furnishing 
of administration building, multi purpose hall, boys and girls hostels, 
canteen/kitchen, staff quarters, mosque, provision of borehole, power 
transformer, and standby generator, provision of furniture, provision of 
schools and laboratories equipment, provision of institutional support for the PIU, and consultancy services 
for the preparation of detailed design and tender documents, tendering process and contract awarding, and 
supervision of the construction.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 6.0 million to the project financing (about 90% of the total project cost) and Government 
contributes $ 0.667 million (about 10%)

BADEA’s financing in the social sector 
(Education – Health) reached $ 150.1 

million since 1995 to date.
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Rehabilitation of Water Basins Project in “Santo Antao” and “Sao Nicolau” Islands

Sector: Agriculture and rural development

The Republic of Cape Verde

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

10.00 9.00 26/6/2008 28 21 7 2.0%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at irrigation development through construction of structures for flood protection and water 
storage, protection of the environmental and natural resources and supporting institutional capacity of rural 
communities. The project aims also at supporting agricultural production in order to improve the incomes of 
the farmers, participating in poverty alleviation and supporting the food security and sustainable development 
in the project area. 

Project description:
The project consists of flood protection structures, including drainage and retaining walls, irrigation development 
including construction of dam, main supply canals, water tank and rehabilitation of the existing canals,support to 
Institutional capacity through organizing of awareness and guidance sessions including provision of audio visual 
equipment and provision of loans for agriculture, assistance to the Project Implementation Unit, and consultancy 
services for preparation of detail study and tender documents and supervision during implementation. 

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 9.0 million to the project financing (about 90% of the total project cost), and Government 
contributes $ 1.0 million (about 10%).

The project aims at water storage and support agricultural production to attain sustainable development.
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“Brikama” - “Dimbaya” - “Dar Silami” Road Project

Sector: Infrastructure
The Republic of Gambia

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

16.67 7.50 26/6/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at rehabilitation of “Brikama- Dimbaya- Dar Silami” road, 
which connect the towns of “Dar Silami” and “Dimbaya” (close to the 
Senegalese border) with “Brikama”. The project will improve the traffic 
congestion and reduce the cost of operation of the vehicles, in addition to 
reducing transportation cost.

Project description:
The project is located in “Kombo” region in the western part of the country 
and consists of civil works and ancillaries, which include the construction 

of an asphalt road, about 25 km long, 6 m wide, with two shoulders each is one 1 m wide, construction of storm 
water drainage structures, rivers’ crossings and safety works, acquisition of land lies in the alignment of the 
road, and consultancy services for review of tender documents, assisting the Executing Agency in procurement 
and supervision of the execution of works. 

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 7.50 million to the project financing (about 45.00% of the total project cost), Saudi Fund 
contributes $ 7.50 million (about 45.00% of the total project cost), and Government contributes $ 1.67 million 
(about 10%)

Rehabilitation of “Copper Belt” Feeder Roads Project

Sector: Infrastructure
The Republic of Zambia

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

15.00 8.0 26/6/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The project shall provide feeder roads network in the project area in order to 
remove the isolation of the project area and alleviate poverty. 

Project description:
The project comprises of the civil works and ancillaries for the reconstruction of 
210 km of gravel roads with width ranging from 5 to 6 m along with the storm water 
structures, and consultancy services for the preparation of detailed design and 
supervision of the construction

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 8.0 million to the project financing (about 53.3% of the total 
project cost), OFID contributes $ 6.0 million (about 40% of the total project cost) 

and Government contributes $ 1.00 million (about 6.7%).

Roads projects contribute to 
connecting production areas 
with marketing centers and 

smoothness of traffic as well 
as reducing transport costs.
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“Linguère” – “Matam” Road Project (1st phase: “Linguère” - “Boulal”) (AL)
Sector: Infrastructure

The Republic of Senegal

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION 

(YEAR)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD (YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD
(YEAR)

ANNNUAL INTEREST 
RATE

Additional Cost
29.60

8.00 26/6/2008 30 20 10 1%

Original Cost
20.00

10.00 20/3/2003 26 20 6 2%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at connecting the north eastern parts of the country with 
other parts, facilitating local and regional marketing of agricultural food 
products, reducing poverty in the project area, facilitating transport of people 
and consumable goods to the local markets in the country, especially, the 
city and Port of Dakar. 

Project description:
The phase I of the project comprises the upgrading of the existing earth 
road between the towns of “Linguere” and “Bola” to conform with the 
specifications of the other parts of the national road no.3. The project 

consists of civil works for the construction of an asphalt road 120 km long and 7 m wide with two shoulders 
each 2,5 m wide, in addition to consultancy services for design of the total road between “Linguere” and 
“Matam” and the supervision of phase I.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 8.00 million to the project financing (about 27% of the additional project cost), OFID 
contributes $ 8.00 million (about 27% of the total project cost and Government contributes $ 13.60 million 
(about 46% of the additional project cost).

Infrastructure of Social Services Project in “ Perseverance” Island

Sector: Social (Education + Health)
The Republic of Seychelles

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

18.04 6.0 26/6/2008 22 17 5 2.5%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at providing primary and secondary education to the children 
of the Island by constructing schools. The numbers of students in these 
schools are expected to reach 10 to 14 thousand by 2011. The Project also 
aims at providing health services for the citizens of the Island by constructing 
and equipping a primary health center.

Project description:
The project consists of civil works for construction of two primary schools, 
each school consists of 18 classrooms to accommodate about 540 students; 
kindergarten consists of 12 classrooms to accommodate 360 students and 1 
secondary school, which comprises 26 classrooms to accommodate 780 students. The civil works also include 
the external works, the administrative buildings, teachers’ offices, and other buildings, supply of equipment, 
furniture and all facilities for all the schools. The Project includes also the construction of health center and 
provision of medical equipment and consulting services.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 6.0 million to the project financing (about 33.26% of the total project cost). OFID 
contributes $ 8.0 million (about 44.35% of the total project cost), and Government contributes $ 4.04 million 
(about 22.39%).

Project Area

Perseverance Island
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Construction of “Kandadji” Dam Project

Sector: Agriculture and rural development

The Republic of Niger

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

317.25 10.00 26/6/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at protecting the ecosystem of Niger river and ensures availability of water supply throughout 
the year for irrigation of 2000 hectares of land in the first phase (to be increased to 31 thousand hectares by 
2034) and for generation of electricity. The project will improve the food security and living standard of the 
people and will fight poverty.

Project description:
The project comprises of the civil works for construction of 8400 meter long earth fill dam on the Niger river 
with a storage capacity of 1.56 billion cubic meters, equipment required for the dam and the power generation 
plant consultancy service for supervision of the civil construction and for the environmental and social program 
which include resettlement of affected people and cultivation of 2000 hectares of land for their benefits and 
construction of  social and health facilities and other services, and management of the project by supporting 
the PIU and Auditing the project account by legal auditing firm.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 10.00 million to the project financing (about 3.15% of the total project cost), Islamic 
Development Bank contributes $ 50.00 million (about 15.76%), Saudi Fund contributes $ 20.00 million (about 
6.31%), Kuwait Fund contributes  $ 20.00 million (about 6.31%), Abu Dhabi Fund contributes $ 20.00 million 
(about 6.31%), World Bank contributes $ 25.00 million (about 7.88%), African Development Bank contributes  
$ 40.00 million (about 12.61%), OFID contributes $ 12.00 million (about 3.78%), Bank of Western Africa 
contributes $ 8.00 million (about 2.52%), BIDIC contributes $ 7.50 million (about 2.36%), and Government 
contributes $ 104.75 million (about 33.02%).

Agricultural sector projects received substantial portion of BADEA’s financing as it amounted to
$ 681.5 million to achieve food security and combat poverty.
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Health (1) Project (AL)

Sector: Social (Health)

The Republic of Benin

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION 

(YEAR)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD (YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD
(YEAR)

ANNNUAL INTEREST 
RATE

Additional cost
6.00

1.55 6/10/2008 30 20 10 1%

Original cost
8.51

6.65 15/10/2001 28 22 6 1%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at the improvement of health services in the rural areas in 
general and in the project area in particular and the participation in increasing 
hygienic awareness and teachings and fight of poverty.

Project description:
The project includes the construction of 30 health centers, 15 centers in two 
provinces of “Atlantique” and “Littoral” and 15 centers in the two provinces of 
“Zoo” and “Collines”. The project also includes the civil works, the supply of 
medical furniture and equipment, means of transport and institutional support 
for training and consultancy services.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 1.55 million to the project financing (about 25.8% of the 
total project cost), OFID contributes $ 4.00 million (about 66.6% of the total 
project cost) and Government contributes $ 0.45 million (about 7.6%)

“Koudougou” - “Dédougou” Road Project

Sector: Infrastructure

Burkina Faso

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

65.12 8.0 6/10/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at connecting the central and western region of Burkina 
Faso, which are rich in their agricultural and livestock resources, to the 
national network, facilitating transportation between the region and Mali 
and contributing to poverty reduction.

Project description:
The project, which is located in the central region of western Burkina 
Faso, envisages upgrading the existing gravel road to asphalt road with 
specification similar to existing national asphalted roads.  The project 
consists of civil works and ancillaries, which include the construction of 
an asphalt road about 130 km long, 7 m wide, including two shoulders 
each 1.5 m wide, consultancy services for reviewing the detail study 
and supervision of the execution of works, institutional support to the 
Administration of Roads, project auditing, and acquisition of land

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 8.0 million to the project financing (about 12.38% of the total project cost). Kuwait Fund 
contributes $ 12.0 million (about 18.43% of the total project cost), Saudi Fund contributes $ 12.0 million (about 
18.43% of the total project cost), Islamic Development Bank contributes $ 11.0 million (about 16.89% of the 
total project cost), OFID contributes $ 7.0 million (about 10.75% of the total project cost), and Government 
contributes $ 15.12 million (about 23.22%).

BADEA pays special attention to 
finance projects in the Social Sector 

(Education and Health) as they 
are closely connected to the living 

conditions of the population.

Project Area
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Radiotherapy and Nuclear Medicine Treatment Services Project

Sector: Social (Health)
The Republic of Ghana

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

14.78 6.00 6/10/2008 30 20 10 1%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at the expansion and upgrading the range of radiotherapy 
and nuclear medicine services to ensure continuity of services delivery, thereby 
improving chances of cure and reducing the mortality rate attributed to cancer 
diseases, particularly for women, children and the productive age group.

Project description:
The project envisages expansion and upgrading the range of radiotherapy 
and nuclear medicine services at the centre at “Korle – Bu” Teaching Hospital 
(KBTH), in “Accra”, the capital and the centre at “Komfo” Anokye Teaching 
Hospital (KATH) in “Kumasi”, the capital of Ashanti Region. The project consists 
of civil works and ancillaries for the expansion of the buildings for the two 
centers with a total area of about 2900 m2, and supply of these buildings with 
electrical and mechanical equipment, communication and water networks and its connection, procurement of 
medical equipment and furniture in accordance with the specifications and standards set by the International 
Atomic Agency, procurement of non-medical furniture for doctors, technicians and nurses offices and patients’ 
waiting hall, institutional Support for the Project Implementation Unit (PIU), and consultancy services for review 
of detailed design and preparation of tender documents and the supervision of the project implementation.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 6.00 million to the project financing (about 40.6% of the total project cost), OFID contributes 
$ 7.50 million (about 50.7% of the total project cost and Government contributes $ 1.28 million (about 8.7%).

Industrial and Naval shipyard Project in Limbé (AL)

Sector: Infrastructure
The Republic of Cameroon

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION 

(YEAR)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD (YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD
(YEAR)

ANNNUAL INTEREST 
RATE

Additional cost
44.61

6.00 6/10/2008 22 17 5 3%

Original cost
97.56

12.00 15/3/2001 22 17 5 3%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at making the Cameroonian Industrial shipyard one of 
the distinguished companies in West Africa in the field of maintenance and 
rehabilitation of naval structures. The project also aims at carrying out about 
50% of all marine maintenance for the next 10 years by the construction of 
shipyard at “Limbe” to maintain ships floating and semi floating paltforms.

Project description:
The first phase of the project involves the construction of the southern waves 
dikes, marine platforms, dredging of the inlet channel, filling, procurement of 
the equipment for repair and maintenance, portable cranes, equipment forming 
floating platforms and land works, acquisition of land for the project, in addition to 
the consultancy services. The second phase of the project involves the extension 

of the southern waves dike, transfer of the floating maintenance workshop (“Bamoso”) from its current location to 
“Limbé”, extension of the marine platform and the supply of a crane on a mobile marine platform.
The third phase of the project consists of the construction of the eastern waves dike and a floating marine platform 
and some equipment.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 6.00 million to the project financing (about 20.4% of the total project cost), OFID contributes $ 
12.00 million (about 40.7% of the total project cost and Government contributes $ 11.45 million (about 38.9%).

Limbé Shipyard project provides 
services to Ships and Docks.

Project Area
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“Terre Rouge” - “Verdan” - “Iban” Road Project (Phase II)
Sector: Infrastructure

The Republic of Mauritius

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

21.66 10.0 6/10/2008 20 15 5 3%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at linking the North of Mauritius with its south without passing 
through the center of “Port Louis”. It would also connect the “New Urban City” 
named “Highlands” with the existing road network. The project will contribute 
to social and economic development of the project areas specially “Moka” and 
“Babmelimos”.

Project description:
The project represents the second part of the road which connects between 
“Terre-Rouge” in the North of the capital “Port Louis” with “Terranon” in the 
South. The total length of the road is about 26, 65 km. The main components 
of project are civil works and ancillaries, which include the construction of 
an asphalt road, about 10.86 km long, dual carriageway of 7.0 m wide each, 
composed of two lanes in each way and including two shoulders, the width of 

each shoulder varies from 2.0 meters to 2.7 meters which change to platforms in urban areas, consultancy 
services: consisting of preparing detailed designs and tender documents and construction supervision, and 
land acquisition.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 10.00 million to the project financing (about 46.17% of the total project cost), OFID contributes 
$ 8.07 million (about 36.27% of the total project cost and Government contributes $ 3.59 million (about 16.57%).

Second Line of Credit to Uganda Development Bank Limited
Sector: Private

The Republic of Uganda

PROJECT COST
($ Million)

BADEA’S LOAN 
AMOUNT
($ Million)

APPROVAL 
DATE

LOAN 
DURATION
(YEARS)

LOAN 
REPAYMENT 

PERIOD
(YEAR)

GRACE PERIOD ANNAUAL INTEREST 
RATE

- 4.50 6/10/2008 25 21 4 2.5%

Project Objectives:
The project aims at the contribution in raising the economic and social 
development indicators in the country and increasing the national production 
to meet the demand for consumption and exporting and availing jobs 
opportunities.

Project description:
The Project consists of the financing of small and medium scale and micro-
enterprises in the fields of Agriculture Agro-industry and Industry; Services; 
and Micro-enterprises sectors.
Unless BADEA shall otherwise agrees the maximum re-lending by UDBL from the Loan account to any 
Investment Project shall not exceed one million dollars ($1,000,000) and the minimum re-lending by UDBL 
from the Loan Account to any Investment Project shall not be less than fifty thousand dollars ($ 50,000).
The loan may also be used to provide loans for the micro-enterprises sector. UDBL shall select a few competent 
micro-finance institutions to channel funding to this sector through them.

Project Financing Plan:
BADEA contributes $ 4.50 million to the project financing (100% of the total project cost)

BADEA’s financing in construction 
of Roads amounted to $ 928 

million towards the cost of 116 
Roads in Africa.
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B- TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE

Institutional support to the Ministry of Finance

Eritrea

Objective: 
The objectives of the operation is to provide support to the Inland Revenue Department of the 
Ministry of Finance through funding the services of an Arab Expert in the information technology 
for a period of two years with a view to raise the level of technical competencies of those employed 
by the Department, in addition to the provision of office and computer equipment and means of 
transportation for the expert.

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable  grant of $ 235.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/03/2008

Terms of reference of the expert:
The main duties of the Expert include: Assessment of the current status of the existing information 
management system in IRD and identify needed equipment, softwares and national network 
infrastructure requirements; contribute to formulating priorities, operational guidelines, security 
systems, and mechanisms for regular review of the system; undertake venders selection, evaluation 
of the bids for procurement and establish contracting conditions; identify specifications, components 
and strategies for improvement of business solutions; and training IT Unit’s staff. 

Training Session in the Area of Procurement of Goods and Services 

Regional

Objective: 
The training session targets building the capacities of 30 cadres 
from Lesotho, Swaziland, Botswana and Namibia working at 
government agencies and units responsible for the procurement 
of goods and services, and staff working in ministries and 
government directorates responsible for external cooperation in 
these countries. Its objective is to develop their capacities in the 
areas of procurement of goods and services so that they may 
in turn train and raise the competencies of other middle ranking 
cadres, hence contributing to improving their effectiveness in 
development project implementation. The training shall be executed in English language by the 
International Development Law Organization (IDLO) in Mohales Hoek, Kingdom of Lesotho. 

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 200.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/3/2008

Field of Training: 
The main components of the two-week training session are as follows: Principles of international 
goods and services’ procurement; negotiation skills and techniques; techniques for the evaluation 
and selection of consultants and contractors, contracts for procurement of services.
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Training Session on remote sensing and the application of Geographic Information Systems in Agriculture

Regional

Objective: 
The objective of this operation is to train 20 cadres from 
French-speaking African countries to develope their 
professional competencies in the use of space geographic, 
climate monitoring and early warning system applications 
and GIS remote sensing techniques for development of 
agriculture and natural graze lands through technical and 
practical teaching. The training shall be executed by the 
Royal Center for Space Teledetection (CRTS) in Morocco 
and supervised by the Arab Organization for Agricultural 
Development (AOAD).
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 150.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/03/2008
Field of training: 
The three-week training course covers the following main subjects: principles of remote space 
data collection and data processing in agricultural planning and monitoring; techniques of analysis 
of space photos for agricultural project preparation and management, surveying and monitoring 
techniques including space area-wide geographic scanning principles; and application of GIS for 
land use planning for the sustainable development of agricultural and natural forestry resources. 

Techno-economic feasibility study of the land reclamation project on the Right Bank of River “Nakabi”

Burkina Faso
Objective: 
The technical assistance aims at sponsoring the funding of the preparation of a techno-economic 
feasibility study for the reclamation of 2000 hectares of irrigable land to contribute to the realization of 
sustainable development in the country, increase job opportunities, improve income of the population 
achieve better natural resources management, improve and diversify agricultural productivity, avail 
the necessary irrigated agricultural and rural infrastructures and development of small agricultural 
enterprises.
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 300.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/03/2008
Terms of reference of the Study: 
The feasibility study shall cover, inter alia, the following elements: Diagnosis of the current agricultural 
policies and defining the characteristics, problems and priorities of irrigated areas, undertaking a 
sectoral analysis study and of the infrastructure required to increase production, carrying out market 
studies to promote the marketing and distribution of agricultural products, their cost and ultimate 
economic viability; carry out field geo-technical and soil studies; undertake project cost analysis 
study of the economic and financial returns, and propose a relevant institutional implementation 
framework; prepare the preliminary technical designs, and study the environmental impact of the 
project. 

Techno-economic feasibility study of the Development of the Livestock Sector

Burundi

Objective: 
The technical assistance aims at sponsoring the funding of the preparation of a techno-economic 
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feasibility study of the development of the livestock sector to contribute to sustainable food security 
and to meet the local demand on livestock and diary products, enhance livestock production through 
improvement of local livestock brands and achieve a better integration of the animal resources and 
agricultural sectors leading to increasing job opportunities, improving income of the population, and 
contribute to poverty reduction through the implementation of development policies for livestock and 
foster the development of small farms.

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 400.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/03/2008

Terms of reference of the Study: 
The feasibility study consists of the following components to be achieved in three phases: 
Phase I: Diagnosis of the current situation of the sector, defining the characteristics, demand and 

supply and expected difficulties, undertaking sectoral development studies.
Phase II: Study of the infrastructure required for increasing livestock production, defining the 

standards for marketing livestock products, and proposing a national livestock sectoral 
development programme,

Phase III: Within the findings, identify preliminary sub-projects that may be executed according to 
predefined priorities, undertake cost analysis, study of the economic, social and financial 
returns, and propose a relevant institutional implementation frameworks for project 
inception.

Techno-economic feasibility study of the expansion of the International Airport Project in
“Praia” town

Cape Verde

Objective: 
The objectives of this operation is to fund conducting a techno–economic feasibility study for the 
expansion of the international Airport in “Praia”, the capital of the Republic of Cape Verde, to meet 
the current needs of the increasing air traffic and play a more vital role in economic development and 
tourism by 2015. 

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 400.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/03/2008

Terms of reference of the Study: 
The study will cover, inter alia, the following components: evaluation of the current and potential 
air traffic of the existing airport and evaluate its capacity and potential, conduct a market analysis 
for air traffic, assess legal and institutional implementation frameworks; study of ideal preliminary 
technical designs for the project; preparation and definition of the project’s priorities, and calculate 
the economic and financial returns of the project. 

Techno-economic feasibility study for the Irrigation Project in “Lavomisa” area

Swaziland

Objective: 
The technical assistance aims at sponsoring the funding of the preparation of a techno–economic 
feasibility study for the irrigation project in “Lavomisa” area to outline an integrated plan for the 
development of Lovamisa area through undertaking a comparative advantage study between two 
alternative plans: the development of the Western area for irrigation of arable lands with an estimated 



48

ARAB BANK FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN AFRICA

area of 5760 ha, or the development of the Northern area for the irrigation of the arable lands with an 
estimated area of 14 600 ha; to come up with the better viable project inception alternative.

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 350.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/03/2008

Terms of reference of the Study: 
The components of the study include, inter alia, the following: Research and update preliminary 
topographical, hydrological, geographical, and geotechnical studies for the river basin “Bongola” re-
assess the different alternatives proposed by the last study and choose the most appropriate site for 
development; undertake a study on an electricity sub-project and on animal resources in the area 
for the possible implementation of a relevant development plan, analyze the economic and financial 
returns and the environmental impact of the project; and preparation and definition of the project’s 
priorities and propose implementation time-frameworks for project inception.

Institutional support to the Ministry of General Facilities and Housing

Mozambique

Objective: 
The objectives of the operation is to provide support to the Ministry of General Facilities through 
funding the services of an Arab Expert in the field of water and sanitation for a period of two years 
with a view to raise the level of technical competencies of those employed by the ministry and 
assist in the follow up, design and implementation of ongoing projects financed by the government 
and funding agencies in addition to the provision of office and computer equipment and means of 
transportation for the expert.

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable  grant of $ 235.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/03/2008

Terms of reference of the expert:
The main duties of the Expert include: Provide technical advice with regard to the development of 
water and sanitation infrastructures, participation in the follow up and coordination of water and 
sanitation projects; participate in the supervision and contribute to the progress of the implementation 
of ongoing water and sanitation projects; determine the weaknesses that hinder their implementation 
as well as that of approved program objectives; identify the obstacles that may affect sector 
development; participate in the cost evaluation of the projects and establish the contracting conditions 
of  government-funded projects; training of Ministry staff on the management and supervision of 
project implementation, and in formulating future plans for this sector. 

Institutional support to the “Uganda Investment Authority”
 

Uganda

Objective: 
The objectives of this operation is to contribute to the Republic of Uganda Foreign Investment 
Promotion and Attraction Programme of UIA; and aims at assisting the Government of Uganda 
in attracting financial flows for investment from the public and private sectors of Arab and Islamic 
countries through financing sector identification studies, training and capacity building activities 
and promotion of projects and investments chances (10 projects $, 10 million each), and making 
available the supporting services. It will be carried out and implemented by the Islamic Corporation 
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for the Insurance of Investment and Export Credit (ICIEC); as part of ICIEC Cooperation Agreement 
with BADEA.
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 140.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/03/2008
Components of the technical assitance:
The terms of reference of the operation cover the following main components:

Sector1.  Identification and sub-sector analysis studies, produce sector and target specific 
promotional materials, identify administrative or infrastructural barriers for investing in these 
sub-sectors and recommend policies for reform;
Training2.  and Capacity Building of the UIA: Training program on responding to investor 
perceptions, Training program on sector identification and database maintenance, Training 
program on direct marketing methods;
Promotion3.  of Projects and Investments chances;
Making4.  available the Supporting Services: legal, consulting and financial services to assist 
the investor. 

Training Session in the field of Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises Credit Risk Management

Regional

Objective: 
Train 20 participants in order to enhance the skills and competencies of English-speaking African 
professionals participating in the programme in the area of small and medium-sized enterprises 
loan and risk management, improve capacity of banks and financial institutions to appraise SME 
credit requests and manage SME loan portfolios, and promote effective analysis of credit risk and 
credit worthiness of SME projects and enterprises. The training session will be executed by the Arab 
Center for Human Resources Development of the Arab Labor Organization in Amman, Hashemite 
Kingdom of Jordan. 
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 165.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 26/06/2008
Field of training: 
The three-week training session covers the following main components: Types of SME business 
and SME banking and funding needs, SME-related bank risk management, ways and techniques for 
financial analysis and how to use its results to evaluate the performance of SME enterprises applying 
for credit; credit appraisal fundamentals and loan documentation, calculation of performance and 
activity growth and gross assets, financial standards of SME’s project valuation, control and periodical 
performance appraisal through estimated budgets, and practical procedures of defining and dealing 
with credit risk.

Training Session in the Area of Regional Economic Coordination and Integration for Staff of 
the African Union Commission and Regional Economic Commissions

Regional

Objective: 
Capacitate 20 English-speaking professional level cadres of the African Union Commission and 
Regional Economic Commissions to answer to their needs in promoting the skills and competencies 
of their staff in the field of achieving regional socio-economic integration and coordination as a basis 
for economic development. The training is executed by the UN Institute for Economic Development 
and Planning (IDEP) in Dakar, Senegal. 

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 150.000 
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Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 26/06/2008

Field of training: 
The three-week training session covers theoretical and practical aspects of issues and challenges 
relating to the following main components: economic integration, concepts, principles and theories 
of Pan-African integration context; the African region and its status in the world economy; economic 
integration experiences in Africa; issues for economic integration in Africa; monetary cooperation 
and economic integration in Africa.

Training Session on the Maintenance and Management of Roads

Regional

Objective: 
Strengthen the competencies of 20 French-speaking African technical engineers in the design and 
implementation of regular road maintenance operations in order to enhance and sustain their efficiency 
decrease traffic jams and increase safety, in view to achieve sustainable economic development in 
African countries through contributing to attracting investments in infrastructure sectors, facilitating 
and reducing the cost of transport of people and goods, and promoting trade. The training session is 
executed by the National School for Public Works (ENTP) in Algeria. 

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 170.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 26/06/2008

Field of training: 
This three-week training course covers the following main theoretical and practical components: 
Objectives of road maintenance plans and projects, national road policy and safety; planning financing 
and implementation of regular maintenance of roads; techniques of roads maintenance evaluation of 
the size and types of current and potential traffic. 

Training Session in the field of Maintenance of Electrical Power Networks

Regional

Objective: 
Train 20 French-speaking African professionals in order to enhance the skills and competencies in 
the area of operation, administration and maintenance of the electricity power generation units and 
networks in view of implementing sustainable programs for maintaining electrical supply in sub-
Saharan African countries. The training session will be executed by the National Electricity Office 
(ONE) in Casablanca, Kingdom of Morocco. 

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 170.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 26/06/2008

Field of training: 
The three-week training session covers the following main components: Techniques for operating 
and maintaining thermal power generation units and internal and external facilities in order to improve 
their efficiency and enhance security levels during operation; aerial and land-based electrical power 
supply high-voltage and low-voltage networks and equipment; study and evaluate the current 
situation of electrical power demand; evaluate existing capacity and potential of such facilities.
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Meeting of High Level Experts on  Agriculture Development and Food Security
 in Africa and the Arab world

Regional

Objective:
The objective of this operation is to contribute to co-finance the organization of a High Level Experts 
Meeting to review the current state of affairs regarding food security and agricultural development 
and production in the Arab and African regions, and explore ways, means and opportunities to ensure 
food security for the two regions in view to strengthen Afro-Arab cooperation. 

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 50.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 26/06/2008

Content of the Meeting: 
The High Level Experts meeting, organized by AU and LAS, brings together high level experts from 
African and Arab regional or specialized organizations, farmers and private sector organizations civil 
Society representatives as well as agriculture and food security research centers. 
Presentation of work papers about adopting a common understanding and programmes of action 
to promote natural resources and potentialities and to ensure their complementarities; identification 
of actions to promote Afro-Arab trade in general and food and agricultural products marketing in 
particular; highlight the need for joint agricultural investment in the two regions.

Study on the Mechanisms to Promote Arab Investment in Africa
 

Regional

Objective: 
The objectives of this study are to identify Arab investment and trade prospects between sub-Saharan 
countries and neighboring Arab countries; and identify means to promote it, with deeper involvement 
from the Arab private sector through direct investment in Africa. 

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 170.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 26/06/2008

Terms of reference of the Study:
The terms of reference of the study cover the following main components: Collection and analysis 
of current macro economic data pertaining to the economies of sub-Saharan African countries; and 
their prospects for growth distributed along the main sectors of the economy taking stock of certain 
economic inputs such as mineral resources, metals, agricultural and animal resources, industry 
infrastructure, tourism, transport; review the current situation of investments and proposing new areas 
for attracting investments, along with mechanisms to promote the general investment framework for 
achieving sustainable economic development in such countries;  calculating the funding gaps for 
sections of the economies and proposing new sources for funding such investments; studying the 
role of Public Private Partnerships and their economic impact in sub-Saharan African development.

First Forum of Arab and African Contracting Firms 

Regional

Objective:
The objective of this forum, is to support Afro-Arab cooperation by promoting dialogue between the 
African and Arab contracting firms, encourage the presence and active involvement of Arab contracting 
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firms in African business, exchange of views on the difficulties facing Arab and African Contracting 
Firms in doing business in Africa, propose mechanisms to overcome them, and to encourage them 
to jointly provide contracting services with a view of increasing the efficiency of the role played by 
Arab and African contractors in the execution of BADEA sponsored development projects in Africa. 
The forum also provides African and Arab contractors with the opportunity to meet and exchange 
views on the different issues concerning contracting services and seek new modalities for activating 
Afro-Arab cooperation in contracting services. 

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 145.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 26/06/2008

Objectives of the Forum: 
The Forum brings together representatives from African and Arab contracting firms, including firms 
which have worked with BADEA in the past, representatives of Arab funding agencies which are 
members of the Coordination Group. 
Presentation of six working papers about BADEA and its role in development finance and in 
strengthening Arab-African cooperation, its rules and procedures for the procurement of goods and 
services, and the current situation of the contracts granted to African and Arab firms, review firms’ 
experience and examining current difficulties in doing business. This forum is an opportunity to 
examine the prospects for new means of cooperation between African and Arab contractors. 

Second Forum for Arab and African Consultancy Firms 

Regional

Objective:
The objective of this forum is to continue to support, develop and strengthen Afro-Arab cooperation 
through encouraging participation of African and Arab consulting firm in the preparing techno–
economic feasibility studies and supervision of project implementation; with a view of increasing the 
efficiency of the role played by Arab and African consultants in the execution of BADEA sponsored 
development projects in Africa.
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 90.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 26/06/2008

Content of the Forum: 
The Forum brings together 50 representatives from African and Arab consulting firms, including firms 
which have worked with BADEA in the past as well as those which participated in the First Forum, 
representatives of Arab funding agencies which are 
members of the Coordination Group. 
Presentation of six work papers about evaluating the 
results of the development achieved regarding the First 
Forum’s recommendations, review firms’ experience 
and examining current status and prospects for 
preparation of techno–economic feasibility studies 
and supervision of project implementation; the 
financial and legal frameworks and implications of 
project implementation; and examining the prospects 
for new means of cooperation between African and 
Arab consultants with their contractor counterparts.
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Institutional support to the Meteorology Division of the Department of State for Fisheries 
and Water Resources

Gambia

Objective: 
Provide support to the Meteorology Division of the Department of State for Fisheries and Water 
Resources in the development of its human capacity and to strengthen its climate monitoring and 
early warning system and the promotion of its role in the area of scientific analysis and experiments 
for the benefit of the major socio-economic sectors of the country including agriculture and tourism; 
through funding the purchase of equipment, tools and instruments for the Division; and building the 
capacities of their staff through funding training programmes. 

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 220.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 26/06/2008

Components of te Technical Assistance: 
The institutional support includes the following main components: 

- Provision of hydrological and meteorological equipment and instruments;
- Provision of telecommunications, remote sensing, and data processing equipment;
- Training of 6 hydrological and meteorological forecasters of the Division for a period of 3 – 6 

months at the Institute of Metrological Training and Research (IMTR) in Kenya;
- In-country training of 80 data collectors and sensitization of local communities and farmers 

for a period of 5 days by experts from the National Agricultural Development Agency and the 
Department of Water Resources.

Institutional support to the National Authority For Land Reclamation & Development of the 
River Basin of “Senegal” area  

Senegal

Objective: 
Provide support to the National Authority for Land Reclamation and Development of the River Basin of 
“Senegal” (SAED) so that it may fulfill its role in development of irrigable lands and to achieve proper 
management of the available water resources in the basin to contribute to improved agricultural yield 
and diversify, and to the realization of sustainable agricultural development and food security in the 
country; through funding the purchase of equipment, tools and instruments for the Authority; and 
building the capacities of their staff through funding a training programme for professional cadres. 

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 130.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 26/06/2008

Components of te Technical Assistance: 
The institutional support includes the following main components: 

- Provision of hydrological and meteorological equipment and instruments for water flow 
measurement, chemical laboratory analysis which will enable improved management of water 
flow estimations of 5 rivers in the basin, prepare preliminary topographical studies, carry out 
field geo-technical and soil studies, and better analyze the physio-chemical and biochemical 
elements and their environmental impact;

- Training of 6 staff for a period of 3 weeks in the area of surface water, hydrological and 
underground water database management systems.
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Institutional Support to the Ministry of Economy, Finance and Budget
 

Congo

Objective: 
Provide technical support to the Ministry of Economy, Finance and Budget, specially to the Department 
of Documentation and Poverty Alleviation Strategy by funding the technical and administrative 
services of an Arab Expert in the field of economics for two years to assist in the supervision of 
the design, evaluation, implementation and follow-up of projects and programmes financed by the 
government and funding agencies falling under the scope of the Department; in addition to the 
provision of office and computer equipment and means of transportation for the expert.

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 240.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 26/06/2008

Terms of reference of the expert: 
The main duties of the Expert include: offer technical support to the Department  in developing 
and implementing poverty alleviation programmes, participate in development of organizational 
coordination frameworks among the different departments of the Ministry, contribute to the supervision 
follow up and evaluation of projects. 

Techno-economic feasibility study for the Rural Electrification Project in “Niasa” Province

Mozambique

Objective: 
The technical assistance operation aims at financing the cost of undertaking a technical and economic 
feasibility study to select the best alternative to supply electrical power to the rural areas in “Niasa” 
Province which shall improve the standard of living of the population, alleviate poverty and contribute 
to the development of agricultural, industrial and tourism activities in the area.

BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 400.000 

Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 26/06/2008

Terms of reference of the Study: 
The study will cover, inter alia, the following components: study and evaluate the current situation 
of electrical power supply plants and facilities in the area and evaluate existing mechanical and 
electrical equipment, capacity and potential of such facilities; conduct field market analysis for power 
demand shortages in the area’s villages, study of ideal technical alternative proposals for the project; 
undertake preliminary technical designs and specifications for project preparation, definition of the 
project’s priorities in terms of equipment; and calculate the economic and financial returns of the 
project and its environmental impact. 

First Meeting of the Chambers of Commerce and Industry in Africa and the Arab World

Regional

Objective: 
The objective of this operation is to contribute to co-finance the organization of the First Meeting of 
Chambers of Commerce and Industry in Africa and the Arab World in view to strengthen economic 
cooperation between the two regions through fostering the role of business committees in the 
establishment of enduring channels and economic communication and cooperation. The meeting 
was organized by ASSECAA in Cape Town, South Africa.
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 75.000 
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Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/10/2008
Content of the Meeting: 
The meeting brings together Chambers of Commerce and Industry from 12 Arab countries and 53 
African countries. 
Presentation of work papers to discuss modes of economic information exchanges regarding national 
tariff regimes, local products, availability of mineral resources, business laws and regulations, 
privatization programmes, indigenization scheme and barriers to inter-regional trade; highlight 
investment opportunities and resources availability in the two regions; draw modalities and emphasize 
areas of regional trade cooperation and investment for the benefit of Africa and the Arab world.

Training Programme in the area of Integrated Rice Management for Rice Production 

Regional

Objective: 
The objectives of this operation is to provide for the organization of two training sessions, one in 
English and the other in French aiming at strengthening the participants’ knowledge in the field of 
Integrated Rice Management (IRM) practices and promote its dissemination among rice producers. 
The programme aims at training of 60 cadres (30 participants from English speaking African Countries 
and 30 participants from French speaking African Countries) and will be executed by the Africa 
Rice Centre (ARC) - West Africa Rice Development Association (WARDA) in Cotonou, Republic of 
Benin.
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 320.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/10/2008
Field of training:
The two-week training sessions include the following main components: seed production and 
distribution, varietal maintenance and tests, complementary technologies, participatory varietal 
selection, production support, capacity building for agencies involved in agricultural extension and 
support (e.g. NGOs, private sector, etc…).

Training Session in the Area of Procurement of Goods and Services 

Regional

Objective: 
The training session targets building the capacities of 25 cadres from Senegal, Mali, Togo, Burkina 
Faso, and Cape Verde working at government agencies and units responsible for the procurement 
of goods and services, and staff working in ministries and government directorates responsible for 
external cooperation in these countries. Its objective is to develop their capacities in the areas of 
procurement of goods and services so that they may in turn train and raise the competencies of 
other middle ranking cadres, hence contributing to improving their effectiveness in development 
project implementation. The training shall be executed by the UN International Law Development 
Organization (IDLO) at the premises of the Institute for Economic Development and Planning (IDEP) 
in Dakar, Senegal. 
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 190.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/10/2008
Field of Training: 
The main components of the two-week training session are as follows: Principles of international goods 
and services’ procurement; negotiation skills and techniques; techniques for the evaluation and selection 
of consultants and contractors, contracts for procurement of services, training of trainers techniques.
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Training session in Support to the implementation of the Tsetse-Trypanosomiasis Control 
and Eradication initiative

Regional

Objective: 
The objectives of this operation is to train 20 cadres working in the field of tsetse-trypanosomiasis 
control and eradication from the Commission of the African Union and from sub-Saharan African 
countries implementing national projects with the PATTEC Office of the AU; with a view to apply the 
fundamental principles of the theory and practice of modern project management concepts to the 
execution of tsetse and trypanosomiasis eradication projects. The training will be executed by the 
Management Development Institute in Mbabane, Kingdom of Swaziland.
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 170.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/10/2008
Field of training:
The three-week training session includes the following main components: Internalize and digest 
the general principles of modern project management, principles of baseline data collection and 
application of GIS in tsetse eradication project planning and monitoring; project preparation themes 
and principles of tsetse biology and ecology, surveying and monitoring techniques including area-wide 
principles, the sterile insect techniques, SIT and the sequential aerosol technique SAT trypanosomiasis 
diagnostic techniques, community empowerment and involvement in T & T eradication projects, land 
use planning for the sustainable use of tsetse-free land. 

Training session in the area of livestock census-taking for the CILSS Countries

Regional

Objective: 
The objectives of this operation is to train 15 cadres working in the field of statistics, planning 
supervision and implementation of development policies for livestock in the ministries of livestock 
development or ministries of animal resources in order to raise their knowledge and technical skills 
in the area of modern livestock statistics and census-taking techniques. Participants will be from 
different English-speaking Sahel countries (CILSS) and from the West Africa Economic Community 
(CEDEAO) and the training will be executed by the AGHRYMET Centre in Niamey, Niger.
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 90.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/10/2008
Field of training:
The two-week training session includes the following components: Overview of the techniques for 
livestock census, familiarization with the softwares for statistical projections in the Sahel region, use 
of softwares for animal development evaluations and expectations and for the analysis of the impact 
of veterinary inputs, of drought and of the climate on the livestock development.

Training session in the area of Potable Water and Waste Water Treatment

Regional

Objective: 
The objectives of this operation is to train 20 cadres working in the field of water and sanitation 
to enhance the technical knowledge and skills of the African participants on both the theoretical 
and practical aspects of conventional and advanced surface water and waste water treatment 
technologies; with a view to improve the level of efficiency of water and sanitation engineers and 
workers from English-speaking African countries in the area renewable water and sanitation systems. 
The training will be executed by the Technical and Vocational Institute - Arab Academy for Science 
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Technology and Maritime Transport in Alexandria, Egypt.
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 150.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/10/2008
Field of training:
The three-week training session includes the following main components: Overview of the techniques 
for applying the practical aspects of conventional and advanced surface water and waste water 
treatment technologies; internalize and digest the general principles of modern water analysis 
coagulation, flocculation, sedimentation, filtration and disinfection processes; studying water quality 
through laboratory and software applications on water treatment techniques; population estimating 
and design of flash and gentle mixing tanks and sedimentation tanks; waste water collection, types 
sewerage systems, schemes of waste water treatment plants; and physical, chemical and biological 
processes in treatment, tertiary treatment, water disposal and sludge treatment; water supply 
purification, storage and distribution.

Techno-economic feasibility study for the “Yako” - “Koudougo” Road Project

Burkina Faso

Objective: 
The technical assistance aims at sponsoring the funding of the preparation of a technical and 
economic feasibility study for “Yako-Koudougo” Road Project. The project aims at connecting and 
integrating the Northern parts of the country,  facilitate the transportation of persons and goods 
contributing to poverty alleviation of the isolated parts of Northern Burkina Faso. The project shall 
reduce passengers’ and goods’ transport cost, ease transportation to centers of social services in the 
Capital, and connect Mali and the Northern area of Burkina Faso with the sea ports of Ghana.
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 300.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/10/2008
Terms of reference of the study: 
The techno-economic feasibility study covers the following components: Study of the project area 
evaluation of the size and types of current and potential traffic; laboratory testing of the environment 
to examine the types of soil along the route and to determine the geo-technical issues that may be 
faced during the construction phase; prepare preliminary designs, cost estimates, the economic 
feasibility report and study the environmental impact of the project, and collect basic information on 
the areas which could supply earth soil, water and rocks for completing the road project.

Institutional Support to the Water and Electricity Authority
 

Sao Tome & Principe

Objective: 
The objectives of the operation is to provide support to the Water and Electricity Authority through 
the provision of the services of an Arab Expert in the field of potable water supply to contribute in 
upgrading the technical capacity of employees in project preparation and follow up, in addition to 
assisting the Department of Natural Resources and Energy in planning for the water supply sector. 
The technical assistance will include provision of means of transportation, computer equipment and 
programs for the expert.
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 250.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/10/2008

Terms of reference of the expert: 
The expert’s main duties include: participate in the supervision and contribute to the progress of the 
implementation of ongoing water projects; determine the weaknesses that hinder their implementation 
as well as that of approved national water program objectives; following up on new water supply 
projects as well as maintenance operations; supervision and follow up of studies carried out by the 
specialized technical directorates or by the consulting firms; training of staff on the management 
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and supervision of project implementation, and in formulating future plans for this sector. Participate 
in development of the national general framework policy for the water supply; provide technical 
advice with regard to the development of water infrastructures; identify the obstacles that may affect 
sector development; participate in the cost evaluation of the projects and establish the contracting 
conditions of government-funded projects. 

Techno-economic feasibility study for the Irrigation Development Project in “Dire” - “Ansongo” area

Mali

Objective: 
The technical assistance aims at preparing a study for irrigation 
development in “Dire-Ansongo” area including identification of 
areas to be irrigated and preparation of a development plan 
to ensure sustainable development in the area through proper 
management of natural resources and improvement and 
diversification of agricultural products through availing water 
for agricultural irrigation. The project aims also at provision of 
infrastructure facilities, improving income of the population, 
poverty alleviation, creating job opportunities and development 
of small enterprises.
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 450.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/10/2008
Terms of reference of the study: 
The feasibility study consists of the following components to be achieved in two phases: 
Phase I:  Study of the project area; namely “Tusa” Dam area between “Dire” and “Ansongo” and 

undertaking sectoral analysis studies.
Phase II: Undertaking preliminary technical, economic and financial feasibility studies for the project 

inception for the reclamation of 4500 ha of irrigable agricultural lands.

Institutional Support to the Ministry of Local Government
 

Uganda

Objective: 
The objectives of this technical assistance operation is to provide technical support to the Ministry 
of Local Government by funding the technical and administrative services of an Arab Expert in the 
field of urban planning for two years, in view of supporting and enhancing the level of technical and 
human capacities of the Ministry and the promotion of its role in the area of local urban development 
in addition to funding the purchase of training materials and softwares for raising the level of technical 
competencies of those employed by the Ministry, and provision of computer equipment and means 
of transportation for the expert. 
BADEA funding: A Non-refundable grant of $ 245.000 
Date of Board of Directors’ Approval: 6/10/2008
Terms of reference of the expert: 
The terms of reference of the expert include the following main components: provide technical advice 
on the current institutional structures at the municipal and local provincial council levels, identify human 
resource shortages and technical qualifications gaps and obstacles that may affect development and 
implementation of urban planning projects, participation in development of the organizational frameworks 
advise on contracting conditions for procurement of equipment, services and softwares; contribute to the 
advancement of the cadres of the Ministry through undertaking training needs assessment exercises 
recommending and supervising development of capacity building programmes, and ensuring training 
of local technical teams and engineering staff; provide advise pertaining to urban project planning and 
offer support on the work plans for projects’ implementation; supervision and follow up of urban planning 
studies carried out by the specialized technical teams or by consulting firms.
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PART THREE
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Financial Position as of 31/12/2008:
Total net assets of BADEA amounted to $ 3150.1 million at the end of 2008, compared to 3257.1 

million at the end of 2007. The decrease of $ 107.0 million represents the net loss for the year 
2008 amounting to $ 90.6 million plus the grant of $ 16.4 million, allocated in accordance with the 
resolution of the Board of Governors.

Capital:
BADEA’s paid-up capital stood at $ 2200 million as at 31/12/2008, with no change from the 

previous year.

General Reserve:
The balance of the general reserve at the end of 2008 stood at $ 1040.7 million, compared to

$ 892.9 million at the end of 2007. The increase of $ 147.8 million represents net income during 2007 
amounting to $ 164.2 million, which was transferred to general reserve after allocation of a grant of 
10% of the net income in accordance with the Board of Governors Resolution No (3) for the year 
2008.

Special Reserve:
The balance of the special reserve at the end of December 2008 amounted to $ 84.9 million 

compared to $ 120.2 million at the end of 2007. The decrease of $ 35.3 million reflects the commitment 
of the countries benefiting from BADEA’s financing to regularly pay its dues in accordance with the 
arrangements for payment of arrears under new amortization schedules. The amount of $ 35.3 
million was deducted from the net loss of 2008.

Income:
BADEA’s total income for the year 2008 was negative and amounted to $ 74.4 million, compared 

with a positive total income during 2007 amounting to $ 179.7 million. The details of income for 2008 
and 2007 are as follows:

The global financial crisis has affected the performance of equity markets during 2008, as these 
witnessed a record decline in the indices, with an average decline of about 42% and a loss of about 
$ 30 trillion.

It is clear from the data on income that investment income decreased during the year 2008 by 
$ 281.5 million and 183.9% compared with its level during 2007. Interest on loans also decreased by 
$ 1.8 million and 9.4% during the same period. However, income from the reversal of special reserve 
increased by an amount of $ 30.5 million. The negative investment income during 2008 amounting 

2008 2007 Difference

($ million) ($ million) ($ million)

Investment income (128.4) 153.1 (281.5)

Interest on Loans 17.4 19.2 (1.8)

Other income 0.5 1.7 (1.2)

Recovery of claim 0.8 0.9 (0.1)

Reversal of special reserve 35.3 4.8 30.5

Total (74.4) 179.7 (254.1)
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to $ 128.4 million represents about 5% of BADEA’s total investment at beginning of the year 2008 
which amounted to $ 2551.1 million. Given the conditions that prevailed in the financial markets 
during 2008, this rate is considered acceptable. This result (i.e. limited loss) was achieved as a result 
of the conservative investment policy adopted by BADEA. 

It is worth noting that the policy adopted by BADEA with regard to investment of its liquid resources 
and which was adopted by the Board of Directors, aims at maintaining its capital and increasing its 
resources, without exposing its assets to any risks. With these objectives in mind, liquid assets are 
invested in short term bank deposits and portfolios, in accordance with the investment policy and 
directives established by the Board of Directors and taking into consideration liquidity requirements 
the diversification of instruments and the realization of highest possible return. With this policy 
BADEA was able to maintain the value of its assets, while achieving a return higher than what would 
have been achieved had all its liquid assets been invested exclusively in one of the instruments, i.e. 
a lower performance by one investment instrument is offset by a higher performance of the other.

The reasons for the decrease of investment income during the year 2008 can be explained by an 
analysis of its components as illustrated by the data below. It is clear from this data that income from 
time deposits and call accounts decreased by $ 9.6 million and by 42.5% compared to its level during 
2007, and income from portfolios also decreased by $ 271.9 million during the same period and 
by 208.4% compared to its level during 2007, which resulted in the decrease of income generated 
by BADEA’s investment of liquid resources during the year 2008 by about $ 281.5 million and by 
183.9% compared with its level during 2007.

It is worth mentioning in this respect, that the average rate of interest on bank deposits increased 
from about 5.3% in 2006 to 5.6 % during 2007. The volume of deposits and call accounts amounted 
to $ 428.7 million at the end of 2007 compared to $ 375.5 million at the end of 2006, an increase of 
$ 53.2 millions corresponding to an increase of 14.2% of its level in 2006, which represents the net 
amount added to deposits and call accounts.

The decrease in portfolio’s income was due to a decrease in prices of shares in global markets 
during 2008 in comparison with 2006 . The details of portfolios income of year 2008, compared to 
that of 2007, are as follows:

Particulars
2008 2007 Difference

($ million) ($ million) ($ million)

Income from deposits and call accounts 13.0 22.6 (9.6)

 Income from portfolios (141.4) 130.5 (271.9)

Total (128.4) 153.1 (281.5)

Portfolio Income
2008 2007 Variation

($ million) ($ million) ($ million)

Fixed Income:

Interest on Bonds 55.4 53.8 1.6

Interest on Time Deposits and Call Accounts 0.6 2.7 (2.1)

Profit/Loss on Bond Purchases & Sales 78.9 23.9 55.0

Profit/Loss on Valuation of Other Currencies (8.7) 8.0 (16.7)

Total 126.2 88.4 37.8

Equities: 

Dividends 10.9 9.9 1.0

Interest on Call Accounts 0.1 0.2 (0.1)

Profit/Loss on Equity Purchases & Sales (274.1) 25.0 (299.1)

Profit / loss on Valuation of Other Currencies (7.1) 4.7 (11.8)

Total (270.2) 39.8 (310.0)

Securities Lending 2.6 2.3 0.3
Total (141.4) 130.5 (271.9)
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It is worth noting that a large part of the losses accounted for are in fact unrealized losses ,which 
resulted from the valuation of shares held by the portfolio managers at market value on 31st December 
2008. In this respect, the unrealized losses amounted to $ 173.7 million, corresponding to 63.4% of 
the losses on equity purchases and sales.

Expenditures :

Total expenditure during the year 2008 amounted to $ 16.2 million, compared to $ 15.6 million 
during 2007. It includes grants of $ 5.0 million compared to $ 5.5 million in 2007. Net Loss for the 
year 2008 amounted to $ 90.6 million, compared to $ 164.2 million for 2007, declining by $ 254.8 
million and by 155.2%. 

Financial Commitments:

BADEA’s total financial commitments to beneficiary countries during the year 2008 amounted to 
$ 190.0 million, of which $ 183.2 million were allocated to project loans and $ 6.8 million to technical 
assistance, compared to $ 179.6 million, of which $ 173.1 million were allocated to project loans 
and $ 6.5 million to technical assistance during 2007. As of end 2008, BADEA’s total cumulative 
net commitments amounted to $ 2724.1* million, of which $ 2640.3 million were allocated to project 
loans and $ 83.8 million to technical assistance. The corresponding figures at the end of 2007 were 
$ 2554.6** million, $ 2476.3 million, and $ 78.3 million. Adding the amount of loans extended through 
SAFAA, BADEA’s total cumulative net commitments at the end of 2008 would amount to $ 2938.4* 
million, compared to $ 2768.8* million at the end of 2007.

The liquidity ratio (i.e. the ratio of liquid assets to disbursable commitments) at the end of 2008 
stood at about 242% compared to 273% at the end of 2007. This means that the liquid assets 
represent more than double the amount of disbursable commitments, which reflects BADEA’s sound 
financial position and its ability to meet its financial obligations.

0 500.000 1.000.000 1.500.000 2.000.000 2.500.000 3.000.000

Graph 8
Financial resources at 31/12/2008

$ million

2.938.358

2.200.000

1.965.984

1.040.700General Reserve

Disbursements

Paid-Up Capital

Total Cumulative Net Commitments

* Includes technical assistance financed out of income, totalling 65.1 million at the end of 2008 and 60.1 million at the end of 2007.
** Includes technical assistance financed out of income, totalling 60.1 million at the end of 2007.
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* Includes technical assistance financed out of income, totalling 65.1 million at the end of 2008 and 60.1 million at the end of 2007.
** Includes technical assistance financed out of income, totalling 60.1 million at the end of 2007.

Disbursements and Repayments:

Loan disbursements during the year 2008 amounted to $ 135.8 million, compared to $ 142.4 
million during 2007, i.e. it decreased by $ 6.6 million and by 4.6% over its level in 2007. It is worth 
noting that the increase of disbursements in 2007 was the result of the revival of some projects that 
were in difficulties prior to this date. Technical assistance grants disbursements during the year 2008 
amounted to $ 5.0 million, compared to $ 5.5 million during 2007 corresponding to a decrease of
$ 0.5 million, i.e. by 9.1% compared to its level in 2007.

As of end 2008, total cumulative loan disbursements reached $ 1686.7 million, compared to
$ 1550.8 million at the end of 2007. If SAFAA loan disbursements and technical assistance grants 
are included, total cumulative disbursements at the end of 2008 will amount to $ 1966.0* million 
compared to $ 1825.1** million at the end of 2007. Thus, the percentage of cumulative disbursements 
to net cumulative commitments amounted to 67% during 2008 compared with 66% during 2007.

Repayment of installments on loans during 2008 amounted to $ 38.2 million, against $ 42.1 million 
during 2007, i.e. it decreased by $ 3.9 million and by 9.3%. Income from interest and commitment 
charges during 2008 amounted to $ 17.4 million compared to $ 19.2 million during 2007; declining 
by $ 1.8 million representing 9.4%. On the other hand, the total amount of interest and commitment 
charges received during 2008 amounted to $ 14.2 million compared to $ 16.2 million during 2007; i.e. 
it decreased by $ 2 million and by 12.3% compared to its level of 2007. This is due to the improvement 
of financing terms applicable to loans in the framework of the policy aimed at control of the external 
debt of African countries. Total repayments on loans, including interest and commitment charges 
amounted to $ 52.4 million during the year 2008, compared to $ 58.3 million during 2007, declining 
by $ 5.9  million and corresponding to a decrease of 10.1% compared to their level during 2007.

Cumulative repayments of principal installments at the end 2008 amounted to $ 987.3 million 
against $ 949.1 million at end 2007, whereas cumulative interests and administrative charges paid 
amounted to $ 406.9 million at end 2008 compared to $ 392.7 million at the end of 2007.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

  
The Board of Governors 
  of Arab Bank for Economic Development in Africa 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arab Bank for Economic 
Development in Africa (“BADEA”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
December 31, 2008, and the statement of income and expenditure, statement of changes in 
members’ countries equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.  
  
The financial statements of BADEA for the year ended December 31, 2007 were prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards appropriate to the requirements 
and nature of BADEA, were audited by other auditors whose report dated March 5, 2008, 
expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards appropriate to the 
requirements and nature of BADEA as explained in Note 2 in the accompanying financial 
statements.  This responsibility includes:  designing, implementing and maintaining internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate 
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the 
circumstances.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.  Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control 
relevant to BADEA’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of BADEA’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements.  
 

 KPMG Al Fozan & Al Sadhan, a partnership registered in Saudi Arabia 
and a member firm of KPMG network of independent member firms 
affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.

 
 

  KPMG Al Fozan & Al Sadhan 
Al Dainy Plaza 
Al Madinah Road 
P. O. Box 55078 
Jeddah 21534 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 

Telephone   +966 2 658 1616 
Fax  +966 2 605 0597 
Internet www.kpmg.com.sa 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the BADEA as at December 31, 2008, and of its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards appropriate to the requirements and nature of BADEA as explained in Note 2 in the 
accompanying financial statements.  
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ARAB BANK FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN AFRICA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2008

(Expressed in thousands of United States Dollars)

The accompanying notes 1 through 22 form an integral part of these financial statments.

Notes 2008 2007

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks 2,997 286   

Net investments 4 2,312,635 2,551,095  

Investment in AFREXIM Bank 5  4,000 4,000 

Investment in IAIGC 6 17,300 13,840  

Export finance 7  13,530 10,671  

Loan balances 8  913,649 816,003 

Net accrued interest on loans 9  18,658 15,807 

Other assets 10  634 443 

Net fixed assets 11  393 281 

Total 3,283,796 3,412,426 

LIABILITIES

Other liabilities
45,271 31,581   

Provision for end of service benefits 12  3,516 3,505   

48,787 35,086    

Special reserve 3(d), 8(c) 84,957 120,212 

Total 133,744 155,298     

Net assets 3150,052 3,257,128 

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Subscribed and paid-up capital 13   2,200,000 2,200,000  

General reserve 14  1,040,712 892,972   

Net income for the year (90,660) 164,156  

Total shareholders’ equity 3150,052 3,257,128  

Financing and other commitments 21
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STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

(Expressed in thousands of United States Dollars)

The accompanying notes 1 through 22 form an integral part of these financial statments.

Notes 2008 2007

INCOME

Net (loss) income from investments 15   (128,361) 153,108 

Income from loans 17,381 19,176  

Recovery of provision for claim 10   763 915  

Other 540 1,721   

Total (loss) income (109,677) 174,920 

EXPENDITURE

Board of Governors 199 190  

Board of Directors 881 718  

Salaries and staff related benefits 7,583 6,736  

Travel and services 1,661 1,601   

Utilities 722 691  

Depreciation 11   146 111   
11,192 10,047 

Other expenditure 27 60 

Grants disbursed to beneficiary countries 3(i) 5,019 5,476 

Total expenditures 16,238 15,583   

Net (loss) income before special reserve (125,915) 159,337  

Reversal of special reserve 8(c) 35,255 4,819  

Net (loss) income for the year (90,660) 164,156 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

(Expressed in thousands of United States Dollars)

The accompanying notes 1 through 22 form an integral part of these financial statments.

Notes
Subscribed
& paid-up

capital

General
reserve

Net
income

for the year
Total

Balance, December 31, 2006

Appropriations

Transfer to general reserve

Net income for 2007

14

2,200,000 755,698 152,527 3,108,225

- - (15,253) (15,253)

- 137,274 (137,274) -

- - 164,156 164,156

Balance, December 31, 2007

Appropriations

Transfer to general reserve

Net income for 2008

14

2,200,000 892,972 164,156 3,257,128

- - (16,416) (16,416)

- 147,740 (147,740) -

- - (90,660) (90,660)

Balance, December 31, 2008 2,200,000 1,040,712 (90,660) 3,150,052
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

(Expressed in thousands of United States Dollars)

The accompanying notes 1 through 22 form an integral part of these financial statments.

Notes 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net (loss) income for the year (90,660) 164,156

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Recovery of provision for claim 763 915

Depreciation 146 111

Reversal of special reserve (35,255) (4,819)

Net (increase) decrease in operating assets:

Net investments (185,931) (22,700)

Export finance (2,859) 10,934

Loans balances (97,646) (100,262)

Net accrued interest on loans (2,851) (2,960)

Net other assets (954) (1,059)

Net (decrease) increase in operating liabilities:

Other liabilities, net of appropriation (2,726) (13,708)

Provision for end of service benefits 11 719

Net cash (used in)  provided by operating activities (46,100) 31,327

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment in AIECGC (3,460) (3,460)

Net purchase of fixed assets (258) (138)

Net cash (used in) investment activities (3,718) (3,598)

Net (decrease) increase  in cash and cash equivalents 49,818 27,729

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 126,564 98,835

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 16 76,746 126,564
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ARAB BANK FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN AFRICA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
(Expressed in thousands of US dollars)

1. ESTABLISHMENT AND OBJECTIVES
The Arab Bank for Economic Development in Africa (“BADEA”) was established by a resolution of 
the Sixth Arab Summit Conference held on November 28, 1973 following the recommendations 
of the Economic Council of the League of Arab States with a capital of $ 231 million. The capital 
was subsequently increased in accordance with resolutions issued by the Board of Governors 
until it reached $ 2.2 billion as of December 31, 2008 and 2007. 
BADEA is an autonomous international institution domiciled in Khartoum, Sudan. It has 
international legal status, enjoys total administrative and financial independence and is governed 
by the articles of its Establishing Agreement (the “Establishing Agreement”) and by the principles 
of International Law.  BADEA is located at the following address:

Arab Bank for Economic Development in Africa
P.O. Box 2640
Khartoum 11111
Sudan

BADEA aims at consolidating economic, financial and technical cooperation between African 
countries and the Arab world.  In order to achieve its objectives, BADEA undertakes the following 
functions:
1. Participation in the financing economic development in Africa;
2. Encouraging the participation of Arab capital in African development; and
3. Contribution in providing the technical assistance necessary for development in Africa.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
a) Statement of compliance

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards appropriate to the requirements and nature of BADEA (see 
Note 2 (d) below).

b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the 
measurement at fair value of investments held for trading and derivatives.

c) Functional and presentation currency
BADEA’s functional and presentation currency is the United States Dollar (“$”). The financial 
statements are expressed in $ and are rounded off to the nearest thousands. 

d) Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting policies adopted 
by the Board of Governors requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
as at the year end and the reported amounts of income and expenditure for the year then 
ended. Such estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually reviewed, based on 
historical experience and other factors.
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The significant items in which estimates are used comprise the following:

i)  Special reserve
BADEA’s method for determining the special reserve is described in the “loans and 
special reserve” (Note 3(d)) and further explained under credit risk (Note 19(b)).

ii)  Fair value of unquoted financial instruments
The financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets and for which their 
fair market value cannot reliably be measured are carried at cost less any impairment 
provision. 

3.   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent 
with those used in the previous year. 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the accompanying financial 
statements are set out below:

a) Settlement date accounting
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized 
on the settlement date.  Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial 
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by 
regulation or convention in the market place. 

b) Financial assets 
BADEA’s financial assets are composed of financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss (fixed income and equity securities), available-for-sale and loans and receivables as 
under: 

i)  Fixed income and equity securities
All investments in fixed income and equity securities are classified as held for trading and 
are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration given including acquisition 
charges associated with the investment. 
Such securities are re-measured at fair value represented by quoted market prices at 
the financial position date. Movements in fair value are recognized in the statement of 
income and expenditure. 

ii)  Available-for-sale
Financial assets whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are classified as Available 
for sale investments and are carried at cost less provision of impairment (if any).

iii) Loans balances
Financial assets having fixed payments that are not quoted in an active market are 
classified as loans with amounts disbursed after deduction of repaid amounts.

c) Investment in AFREXIM Bank and AIECGC
Investment in African Export-Import Bank (“AFREXIM Bank”) and Arab Investment & Export 
Credit Guarantee Corporation (“AIECGC”), for which fair values are not available, classified 
as available-for-sale, are reported at cost less provision for impairment, if any. 
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d) Loans and special reserve
All loans provided by BADEA are considered as assets when disbursed.
BADEA excludes from income, interest on loans which is overdue for 180 days and over. 
The amount of special reserve for overdue loans is calculated in accordance with the Board 
of Governors’ Resolution No.1 for 1989.  According to the resolution, the reserve should be 
equal to the sum of (a) half of the amount of due and unpaid instalments of principal loans 
which at the end of the financial year, remain overdue for a period of time exceeding one 
year and less than two years and (b) all instalments of principal of loans which, at the end 
of financial year, remain overdue for a period of two years or more. 
BADEA believes that the separate presentation of the special reserve in the statement of 
financial position is appropriate to the nature of its operations. 

e) Loans with repayment arrangements
Loans which have their original terms renegotiated, and are governed by agreements of 
arrangements for repayment of arrears or rescheduling of instalments, including loans under 
the Initiative for Highly Indebted Poor Countries (HIPC), so that their instalment payments 
are no longer in arrears, are treated as new loans. 

f) Impairment of financial assets
An assessment is made at the date of each statement of financial position to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets may 
be impaired.  If such evidence exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is 
determined and any impairment loss is recognized for changes in its carrying amount as 
follows: 
-   For financial assets, other than those described in Note (c) above, carried at amortized 

cost, the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted either directly or through the use of 
an allowance account and the amount of the adjustment is included in the statement of 
income and expenditure.

-   For financial assets carried at fair value, the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted and 
the amount of the adjustment is included in the statement of income and expenditure. 

g) Income recognition
Income from interest on bank deposits, fixed income securities and loans is recognized in 
accordance with accrual basis. 

h) Dividends
Dividend income is recognized when declared. 

i) Grants
Cost of projects’ study and preparation and technical assistance are classified as grants 
and charged to expenditure when incurred. 

j) Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation. The cost of fixed assets is 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
The estimated useful lives for the current period are as follows:
buildings   30 years
Fixtures and fittings  5 years
Vehicles   5 years
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k) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when BADEA has an obligation, legal or constructive, arising 
from a past event and the costs to settle the obligation are probable and may be measured 
reliably. 

l) Derivative financial instruments and hedging
Derivative financial instruments, including forward contracts and futures, are initially 
measured at cost and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair values are generally 
obtained by reference to quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models and pricing 
models as appropriate. Any changes in the fair values of derivatives that are held for trading 
purposes are directly included in the income of the year.

m) Foreign currency translation
Transactions denominated in currencies other than United States Dollars are translated into 
United States Dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction date.  Monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into United States Dollars 
at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the statement of financial position. Exchange 
adjustments are charged or credited to the statement of income and expenditure. 

n) End of service benefits
End of service benefits for the Director General are computed in accordance with Article
No. 6 of the Resolution of the Ministerial Committee selected to review the salaries and 
benefits of the presidents and directors general of Arab financial institutions. End of service 
benefits for employees are calculated in accordance with Article No. (13/1) of  BADEA’s 
Employees Regulations as amended by the  Board of Directors’ resolutions. 

o) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of preparation of the cash flows statement, cash and cash equivalents 
comprise cash and balances with banks; call deposits and time deposits maturing within 
three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

4. NET INVESTMENTS
BADEA’s portfolio investments which are kept for trading purpose, and which are managed in 
accordance with guidelines set by BADEA, as at December 31, are comprised of the following:

($ 000)

2008 2007

Time deposits and call accounts 435,017 515,383

Fixed income securities 1,464,168 1,348,756

Equity securities (listed) 406,256 665,259

Fair value of derivative instruments, net (Note 18) (14,443) (1,245)

Accrued interest on deposits and securities 21,637 22,942

Net investments 2,312,635 2,551,095
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a) Time deposits and call accounts at December 31 were as follows:

($ 000)

Managed by
Total

BADEA Portfolio Managers

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Time deposits 361,268 405,605 3,700 1,742 364,968 407,347

Call accounts 22,088 23,135 47,961 84,901 70,049 108,036

Total 383,356 428,740 51,661 86,643 435,017 515,383

b) The sectorial distribution of fixed income securities at December 31 were as follows:

($ 000)

2008 2007

Amount % Amount %

Government 1,112,395 76 1,025,700 76

Corporate 130,698 9 175,516 13

Governmental agencies 127,269 9 87,068 6

Supranational 93,806 6 60,472 5

Total 1,464,168 100 1,348,756 100

c) The geographical distribution of fixed income securities at December 31 were as follows:

($ 000)

2008 2007

Amount % Amount %

United States and Canada 940,494 64 859,916 64

Europe 344,286 24 342,028 25

Japan 142,407 10 96,057 7

South East Asia 3,132 - 4,953 -

Other 33,849 2 45,802 4

Total 1,464,168 100 1,348,756 100
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d) The sectorial distribution of equity securities at December 31 were as follows:

($ 000)

2008 2007

Amount % Amount %

Consumable commodities 77,068 19 126,863 19

Energy 48,967 12 77,972 12

Financials 65,741 16 127,010 19

Healthcare 57,216 14 51,053 8

Industrials 37,835 9 85,150 13

Information technology 47,473 12 85,720 13

Materials 17,859 5 50,076 7

Telecommunication services 32,579 8 36,774 5

Utilities 21,518 5 24,641 4

Total 406,256 100 665,259 100

e) The geographical distribution of equity securities at December 31 were as follows:

($ 000)

2008 2007

Amount % Amount %

United States and Canada 206,863 51 299,396 45

Europe 126,602 31 237,974 36

Japan 36,577 9 51,053 8

South East Asia 16,983 4 35,118 5

Other 19,231 5 41,718 6

Total 406,256 100 665,259 100

5. INVESTMENT IN AFREXIM BANK

In accordance with Resolution No. 4 of the Board of Governors in its 19th annual meeting for 

1994, approved that BADEA subscribes $ 10 million, representing approximately 1.3% of the 

authorized capital of AFREXIM Bank, of which $ 4 million was paid during 1995 (see Note 21).

6. INVESTMENT IN INTER-ARAB INVESTMENT GUARANTEE CORPORATION (AIECGC)

In accordance with Resolution No. 6 the Board of Governors in its 27th annual meeting for 

2002, approved that BADEA subscribes $ 17.3 million, representing approximately 9.2% of the 

authorized capital of AIECGC. BADEA paid the amount in full.
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7. EXPORT FINANCE
At its 22nd annual meeting for 1997 and 27th annual meeting for 2002, the Board of Governors 
approved that BADEA allocates $ 100 million to finance foreign trade between Arab and African 
countries. 

An agreement was signed between BADEA and the Islamic Development Bank (“IDB”), under 
which IDB was entrusted the task of managing an amount of $ 75 million under this export 
finance scheme between Arab countries and non-Arab African countries. Since February 2008 
this task has been entrusted to International Islamic Trade Finance Corporation (ITFC).  Amounts 
advanced under this scheme through a revolving bank account are recognized as export finance, 
at cost, which represents the amounts disbursed to the relevant countries. 

At December 31, 2008, the aggregate amount of finance outstanding under this scheme is 
approximately $ 13.5 million (2007: $ 10.7 million) and the balance of the revolving bank account 
used for this scheme is $ 220 thousand (2007: $ 13.1million) which is included under “time 
deposits and call accounts” deposits in the statement of financial position. 

8. LOAN BALANCES

a) Details of the loan balances as at December 31, were as follows:

($ 000)

2008 2007

Project SAAFA

Loan Loans Total Total

Approved loans 2,640,344 214,244 2,854,588 2,690,520

Less: Unsigned loans (26,000) - (26,000) (49,700)

Total signed loans 2,614,344 214,244 2,828,588 2,640,820

Less: Loans not declared effective (164,850) - (164,850) (123,700)

Total loans declared effective 2,449,494 214,244 2,663,738 2,517,120

Less: Un-disbursed loans (762,838) - (762,838) (752,060)

Total disbursed loans 1,686,656 214,244 1,900,900 1,765,060

Less: Loan installments repaid (808,664) (178,587) (987,251) (949,057)

Balance outstanding at

December 31 877,992 35,657 913,649 816,003

SAAFA (the “Fund”) loans represent amounts advanced by the Fund to non-Arab African 
countries prior to the merging of its loans in  BADEA’s capital during 1977.

b) The Board of Directors approved BADEA’s participation in the IMF / World Bank Debt Initiative 
for Highly Indebted Poor Countries (“HIPC”). The Board of Directors considers each case 
separately in the light of the negotiations with the concerned beneficiary country. BADEA’s 
participation involves reduction of interest rates on instalments due and/or concessional 
rescheduling of outstanding debt or arrangements for repayment of arrears.
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Total loans rescheduled under HIPC during the year ended December 31, 2008 amounted to 
$ 28.67 million (2007: $ 8.31 million).  Total loans rescheduled under HIPC as at December 
31, 2008 amounted to $ 237.99 million (2007:  $ 209.32 million).

c) The special reserve, as at December 31, is detailed below:

($ 000)

2008 2007

Balance at January 1 120,212 125,031

Transfer to income (35,255) (4,819)

Balance at December 31 84,957 120,212

At December 31, 2008, the total special reserve for the countries with arrangements for 
repayment of arrears or under the Initiative for Highly Indebted Poor Countries (HIPC) which 
are performing regularly amounted to $ 33.860 million and $ 28.268 million respectively 
i.e. with a total amount of $ 62.128 million.  Since by virtue of such arrangements, the 
arrears have been transferred to new amortization schedules, as stated in Note (3(e)) 
such schedules should be considered in calculating the special reserve in accordance 
with the Board of Governors Resolution No. (1) for the year 1989, BADEA’s management 
decided to transfer 50% (amounting to $ 31.064 million) of the special reserve relating to 
those arrangements to income during the year 2008 with the remaining 50% balance to be 
transferred during the year 2009.

d) The movement of the loans during the years ended December 31, as follows:

($ 000)

Total

Project SAAFA
2008 2007

Loan Loans

Balance at January 1 779,268 36,735 816,003 715,741

Disbursements during the year 135,840 - 135,840 142,358

Repayments during the year (37,116) (1,078) (38,194) (42,096)

Balance at December 31 877,992 35,657 913,649 816,003

9. NET ACCRUED INTEREST ON LOANS

Net accrued interest on loans at December 31 was as follows:

($ 000)

2008 2007

Accrued interest on loans 87,184 83,252

Less - Interest in suspense (68,526) (67,445)

Net accrued interest on loans 18,658 15,807



80

ARAB BANK FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN AFRICA

10. NET OTHER ASSETS
Net other assets at December 31 comprised of the following:

($ 000)

2008 2007

Receivable from BCCI 4,118 4,880

Other 634 443

4,752 5,323

Less - Provision for impairment (see below) (4,118) (4,880)

Net other assets 634 443

During 1999, an agreement was concluded between BADEA and the liquidators of the Bank of 
Credit and Commerce International (“BCCI”) through which BADEA agreed to limit its claims against 
its balances with BCCI to $ 30.5 million.  According to the agreement, which was subsequently 
approved by a special court, BADEA received $ 18.3 million, $ 4.6 million, $ 1.8 million, $ 915 
thousand and $ 763 thousand during the years 2000, 2003, 2006, 2007 and 2008 respectively.

Provision for impairment at December 31, 2008 and 2007 represents provision against the remaining 
balance outstanding with BCCI.

11. NET FIXED ASSETS
Net fixed assets at December 31 comprised of the following:

($ 000)

Building
Furniture 

and 
equipment

Vehicles Total

Cost

At January 1, 2008 7,615 2,728 192 10,535

Additions during the year - 170 88 258

At December 31, 2008 7,615 2,898 280 10,793

Accumulated depreciation

At January 1, 2008 7,575 2,525 154 10,254

Charge for the year 2 104 40 146

At December 31, 2008 7,577 2,629 194 10,400

Net book value

At December 31, 2008 38 269 86 393

At December 31, 2007 40 203 38 281

The lease of the land on which the building is constructed was renewed for a 30-year period 
commencing January 1, 1997.

12.  PROVISION FOR END OF SERVICE BENEFITS
The balance of the end of service benefits is deposited in a separate interest bearing time 
deposit account managed by BADEA.
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13. SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
Subscription of each member country in BADEA’s capital at December 31, 2008 and 2007 is as shown below:

Country’s subscription

($ 000)

Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan 4,485

United Arab Emirates 269,088

Kingdom of Bahrain 4,485

Republic of Tunisia 18,687

People’s Democratic Republic of Algeria 89,696

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 538,177

Republic of Sudan 4,485

Arab Republic of Syria 2,990

Republic of Iraq 313,936

Sultanate of Oman 26,909

Palestine 4,485

State of Qatar 179,392

State of Kuwait 328,886

Great Arab Libyan People’s Socialist Jamahiriya 358,785

Republic of Lebanon 14,949

Arab Republic of Egypt 4,485

Kingdom of Morocco 32,888

Islamic Republic of Mauritania 3,192

Total 2,200,000

14. GENERAL RESERVE
Under the provision of Article 36 of the Establishing Agreement, the Board of Governors shall, on 
the recommendation of the Board of Directors, determine annually the portion of net income that 
should be allocated to general reserve or to shareholders’ equity capital or any other purposes 
conducive to the objectives of BADEA.

15. NET INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
Interest from time deposits and call accounts for the two years ended December 31 were 
comprised of the following:

($ 000)

Managed by
Total

BADEA Portfolio Managers

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Time deposits 12,796 22,004 496 2,392 13,292 24,396

Call accounts 203 637 189 475 392 1,112

Total 12,999 22,641 685 2,867 13,684 25,508
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Net (loss) income from the portfolio investment held for trading purposes for the two years 
ended December 31 were comprised of the following:

($ 000)

2008 2007

Interest from fixed income securities 60,706 58,671

Dividend from equity securities 12,189 11,600

Foreign exchange, net (15,788) 12,688

Net trading income (195,164) 48,879

Portfolio managers’ fee (3,988) (4,238)

Total (142,045) 127,600

Net income from investments (128,361) 153,108

Net trading income for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 includes unrealized loss 
of approximately $ 103 million and unrealized income of approximately $ 33 million, respectively 
resulting from the use of fair value at year end as follows:

($ 000)

2008 2007

Unrealized income on valuation from equity securities (173,682) 14,277

Unrealized income (loss) from fixed income securities 70,788 18,794

Net (102,894) 33,071

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents at December 31 comprise 
the following:

($ 000)

2008 2007

Cash and balances with banks 2,997 286

Time deposits and call accounts 73,749 126,278

76,746 126,564

17. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled between 
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. Consequently, differences can 
arise between carrying values and fair value estimates.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, except for loans under export finance, are not 
significantly different from the carrying values included in the financial statements.  BADEA does 
not currently sell its loans nor it believes that there is a comparable market for these products.  
Accordingly, it is impractical to determine the fair value of these loans with sufficient reliability.
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18. DERIVATIVES
Forwards and futures are contractual agreements to either buy or sell a specified currency 
commodity or financial instrument at a specified price and date in the future. Forwards are 
customized contracts transacted in the over-the-counter market.  Futures are transacted in 
standardized amounts on regulated exchanges and changes in futures contract values are 
settled daily.

The table below summarizes the positive and negative fair values of derivative financial 
instruments, together with the notional amounts analyzed by the term of maturity.  The notional 
amounts, which provide an indication of the volumes of the transactions outstanding at the 
year end, do not necessarily reflect the amounts of future cash flows involved.  These notional 
amounts, therefore, are neither indicative of BADEA’s exposure to credit risk, which is generally 
limited to the positive fair value of the derivatives, or market risk.

($ 000)

Notional amounts by term to maturity

Positive
fair value

Negative
fair value

total 
Notional
amount

Within 3
months

3-12
months

1-5
years

Over 5
years

2008

Forward contracts 13,519 27,962 945,200 945,200 - - -

Futures - - 3,360 3,360 - - -

13,519 27,962 948,560 948,560 - - -

2007

Forward contracts 6,574 7,819 1,202,096 1,202,096 - - -

Futures - - 5,172 5,172 - - -

6,574 7,819 1,207,268 1,207,268 - - -

19. RISK MANAGEMENT
The investment policy adopted by BADEA as established by its Board of Directors, considers 
BADEA a specialized developmental institution, whose objective is to preserve its capital and 
increase its resources without exposing its assets to any risks. Therefore, the nature of BADEA 
necessitates the adoption of a conservative investment policy that mitigates investment risk, in 
the same manner as adopted by similar development finance institutions.  Therefore, BADEA’s 
investment policy relied on a combination of investment in short-term bank deposits and securities 
portfolios along with changing the proportions of resources employed in each of deposits and 
portfolios in the light of the prevailing and expected developments in the financial markets 

a) Custodial risk

BADEA has entrusted the task of safekeeping of the components of its portfolio investment 
to a major custodian bank. The custodian safeguards the components of the portfolio, 
maintains separate accounts for each sub-portfolio, and settles the investment transactions 
entered into by the portfolio managers.

b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as the inability of a counter-party to pay amounts in full when due. 



84

ARAB BANK FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN AFRICA

In respect of deposits and trading securities, credit risk is managed by establishing investment 
guidelines including setting exposure limits based on credit ratings and the size of individual 
counter-party and the country or the currency.  BADEA’s Management and an Investment 
Committee, established by the Board of Governors, monitor such limits regularly. 

The geographical distribution of investments is mentioned in Note 4. 

BADEA’s lending program aims at helping the implementation of development programs 
in non-Arab African countries.  Credit approvals are subject to a study by BADEA.  Loans 
are extended to or guaranteed by governments and are considered as sovereign debts.  
BADEA monitors regular payments of loan instalments by the borrowing country, and new 
lending is ceased for countries that fall in arrears.  BADEA prepares periodical reports on 
the position of all loan repayments.

($ 000)

Country No. of loans
Total 

approved 
loans*

Unsigned 
loan amount

Loans not 
declared 
effective

Undisbursed 
balances

Outstanding 
balances

% of total 
outstanding 

loans

Benin 21 57,526 -- 1,550 27,960 28,016 3.07

Botswana 15 25,554 -- -- 15,620 9,934 1.09

Burundi 9 20,194 -- -- 10,000 10,194 1.12

Burkina Faso 24 99,574 -- 18,000 10,526 71,048 7.78

Central Africa 6 10,287 -- -- 3,330 6,957 0.76

Republic of Chad 15 74,499 -- -- 45,221 29,278 3.20

Cameroon 10 56,156 6,000 8,000 13,019 29,137 3.19

Congo Brazzaville 4 12,436 -- -- 3,700 8,736 0.96

Democratic 
Republic of Congo 4 26,579 -- -- 13,500 13,079 1.43

Comoros 4 18,307 -- -- -- 18,307 2.00

Cap Verde 14 49,721 -- 9,000 12,040 28,681 3.14

Equatorial Guinea 5 4,740 -- -- 3,319 1,421 0.16

Eritrea 4 22,279 -- -- 4,500 17,779 1.95

Ethiopia 12 82,249 -- -- 43,200 39,049 4.27

Gabon 2 11,295 -- -- 11,295 -- --

Ghana 20 80,169 6,000 -- 30,054 44,115 4.83

Gambia 16 55,413 -- 7,500 14,747 33,166 3.63

Guinea Bissau 4 6,997 -- -- -- 6,997 0.77

Guinea 22 75,228 -- 13,500 23,365 38,363 4.20

Cote d Ivoire 7 44,019 -- 28,783 15,236 1.67
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($ 000)

* Except paid and cancelled loans.

Country No. of loans
Total 

approved 
loans*

Unsigned 
loan amount

Loans not 
declared 
effective

Undisbursed 
balances

Outstanding 
balances

% of total 
outstanding 

loans

Kenya 13 55,596 -- -- 37,014 18,582 2.03

Liberia 4 9,861 -- -- -- 9,861 1.08

Lesotho 12 36,237 -- -- 18,670 17,567 1.92

Madagascar 20 63,256 -- -- 37,393 25,863 2.83

Malawi 6 46,407 -- 10,000 15,346 21,061 2.31

Mauritius 13 50,334 -- 10,000 19,294 21,040 2.30

Mali 26 76,790 -- -- 29,727 47,063 5.15

Mozambique 23 101,644 -- -- 37,470 64,174 7.02

Namibia 6 35,900 -- 12,700 6,700 16,500 1.81

Nigeria 1 8,000 -- -- 8,000 -- --

Niger 17 60,858 -- 10,000 13,871 36,987 4.05

Rwanda 14 37,736 -- 10,000 5,750 21,986 2.41

Senegal 34 118,261 -- 8,000 52,108 58,153 6.36

Seychelles 11 39,504 -- 6,000 23,569 9,935 1.09

Sierra Leone 11 50,952 -- 10,000 28,707 12,245 1.34
Sao Tome and 

Principe
5 6,517 -- -- 3,297 3,220 0.35

Swaziland 7 32,700 9,500 6,600 1,139 15,461 1.69

Tanzania 14 64,020 -- 6,000 45,204 12,816 1.40

Togo 4 17,274 -- -- 16,095 1,179 0.13

Uganda 10 34,280 4,500 -- 9,373 20,407 2.23

Zambia 9 35,310 -- 8,000 10,823 16,487 1.80

Zimbabwe 10 42,678 -- -- 29,109 13,569 1.49

Other 4 10,000 -- 10,000 -- -- --

Grand total 492 1,867,337* 26,000 164,850 762,838 913,649
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BADEA follow up its dues from the borrowing countries and assesses the position of payment 
in accordance with Board of Governors Resolution No. 1 for the year 1989.  The following 
schedule shows the regularity of the countries in payment of dues. 

($ 000)

a) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that BADEA will be unable to meet its funding requirements primarily 
for loan commitments.  BADEA maintains adequate funding to meet such obligations when 
they become due. 

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the potential impact of future interest rate fluctuations on 
BADEA’s financial position and cash flows.  Interest income may increase because of such 
fluctuations but may decline in the event that unexpected movement arise. 

Description
Number of 
countries

Project loans SAFAA loans Total
Special 
reserve

Performing(a)  Counties  with regular payments

Without arrears 16 310,961 4,659 315,620 --

Arrears less than one year 8 322,044 -- 322,044 --

Sub-total 24 633,005 4,659 637,664 --

Countries(b)  with arrangements for settlement of 
arrears with regular payments

Arrears for one year and less -- 145,518 -- 145,518 --

Arrears more than one year and less than two years 1 1,292 -- 1,292 323

Arrears for two years and more 11 46,747 15,381 62,128 30,741

Sub-total 12 193,557 15,381 208,938 31,064

Countries(c)  with arrangements for settlement of 
arrears but not performing

Arrears for one year and less -- 975 -- 975 --

Arrears more than one year and less than two years 2 1,864 -- 1,864 932

Arrears for  two years and more 3 37,235 15,617 52,852 52,852

Sub-total 5 40,074 15,617 55,691 53,784

Countries(d)  with no arrangements for settlement 
of arrears and not performing 

Arrears  for one year and less -- 11,137 -- 11,137 --

Arrears for more than one year and less than two years 2 219 -- 219 109

Arrears for two years and more -- -- -- -- --

Sub-total 2 11,356 -- 11,356 109

Grand total 43 877,992 35,657 913,649 84,957
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In respect of deposits and fixed income securities, BADEA’s main objective is to maintain 
security and liquidity of assets.  Subject to these factors, BADEA seeks the highest possible 
return.  Performance is monitored regularly and adjustments are made to the portfolios in 
the light of market developments. 

Regarding loans and export finance, interest rate is determined independent of market 
forces by the Board of Directors and at levels consistent with BADEA’s strategic orientation 
within the framework of its development goals. 

($ 000)

Within 
3 

months

3-12
months

1-5
years

Over 5
years

Non-interest
bearing Total

2008

Assets

Cash and balances with bank 2,997 - - - - 2,997

Net investments 1,673,227 237,483 - - 401,925 2,312,635

Investment in AFREXIM Bank - - - - 4,000 4,000

Investment in AIECGC - - - - 17,300 17,300

Export finance - - - - 13,530 13,530

Loan balances 136,707 29,719 187,592 559,631 - 913,649

Net accrued interest - - - - 18,658 18,658

Other assets, net - - - - 634 634

Property and equipment - - - - 393 393

Total assets 1,812,931 267,202 187,592 559,631 456,440 3.283,796

2008

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Other liabilities - - - - 45,271 45,271

Provision for end of service benefits - - - - 3,516 3,516

Special reserve - - - - 84,957 84,957

Members’ countries equity - - - - 3,150,052 3,150,052

Total liabilities and shareholder equity - - - - 3,283,796 3,283,796

On balance sheet gap 1,812,931 267,202 187,592 559,631 (2,827,356) -



88

ARAB BANK FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN AFRICA

($ 000)

19.   RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

e) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is defined as the fluctuations in the rates of exchange of foreign 
currencies and its effects on BADEA’s financial position and cash flows.  BADEA has an 
established policy regarding foreign currencies to be used in transactions as well as their 
percentage composition, which are monitored regularly by BADEA.  BADEA uses the US 
Dollar in its lending operations and placements with banks.  In respect of portfolios for 
trading, a limited number of other currencies are allowed.  Nevertheless, the US Dollar 
represents the main currency with a weight of not less than 65% of the total portfolio held 
for trading including derivatives. 

Within 3 
months

3-12
months

1-5
years

Over 5
years

Non-
interest
bearing

Total

2008

Assets

Cash and balances with bank 286 - - - - 286

Net investments 1,778,021 100,269 672,805 2,551,095

Investment in AFREXIM Bank - - - - 4,000 4,000

Investment in AIECGC - - - - 13,840 13,840

Export finance - - - - 10,671 10,671

Loan balances 137,069 30,745 180,785 467,404 - 816,003

Net accrued interest - - - - 15,807 15,807

Other assets, net - - - - 443 443

Property and equipment - - - - 281 281

Total assets 1,915,376 131,014 180,785 467,404 717,847 3,412,426

2008

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Other liabilities - - - - 31,581 31,581

Provision for end of service benefits - - - - 3,505 3,505

Special reserve - - - - 120,212 120,212

Members’ countries equity - - - - 3,257,128 3,257,128

Total liabilities and shareholder equity - - - - 3,412,426 3,412,426

On balance sheet gap 1,915,376 131,014 180,785 467,404 (2,694,579) -
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The following analysis shows assets and liabilities by currency as at December 31:

20. TAXATION IMMUNITY

In accordance with Article 40 of its Establishment Agreement, BADEA is exempted from all taxes 
and fees in the member countries.  In addition, BADEA is exempted from restrictions on import 
of goods necessary for its operations and from custom duties thereon.  This is not applicable 
to any dues payable for services actually rendered to BADEA.  BADEA is also exempted from 
any responsibility related to collection or payment of any tax or duty. 

21.   FINANCING AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

a) Loans and grants commitments

All loans and grants are governed by agreement and letters of understanding with sovereign 
countries.  The total amount of such commitments do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements, as many of these commitments may be ineffective either for non-signature of 
agreements or cancellation of letters of understanding or non-completion of effectiveness 
procedures.  Details of these commitments as at December 31, are as follows:

b) Other commitments

At December 31, 2008, BADEA is committed to subscribe the remaining balance amounting 
to $ 6 million (2007:  6 million) of its contribution in the capital of AFREXIM Bank upon call 
(see Note 5).

22.   BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVAL

On March 11, 2009, the Board of Directors recommended to issue and present the accompanying 
financial statements to the Board of Governors for final approval.

($ 000)
Currency composition

Description $ Euro GBP Other Total % of $

2008

Total assets 2,527,711 347,764 115,958 292,363 3,283,796 77%

Total liabilities 48,787 - - - 48,787 100%

2007

Total assets 2,533,951 422,089 152,458 303,928 3,412,426 74 % 

Total liabilities 35,086 - - - 35,086 100 %  

($ 000)

2008 2007

Unsigned loans 26,000 49,700

Loans not declared effective 164,850 123,700 

Un-disbursed loan 762,838 752,060 
Un-disbursed grants 18,686 18,248  

Total 972,374 943,708 
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BADEA pays special attention to the role of 
women in the development of African countries
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ANNEX I

EVOLUTION OF BADEA’S FINANCING OPERATIONS (1975-2008)

(1) Since the beginning of the Third Five Year Plan (1995-1999) it has been decided that technical assistance funds earmarked for feasibility studies are 
to be considered as grants, whether the study resulted in viable project or otherwise. Up to 1994, technical assistance grants used to be considered as 
part of the loan in case BADEA decides to contribute to the financing of the project whose feasibility study was financed through the technical assistance 
operation.

(2) The Special Arab Aid Fund for Africa (SAAFA) started operations in 1974, and then its resources were incorporated into BADEA’s capital in 1997.
(3) BADEA’s financing includes allocations to technical assistance and grants charged to annual revenue as well as cancelled commitments.
(4) Being amount of loans cancelled as requested by beneficiary countries, or remaining balances after project completion and cancelled with reference to 

the year in which the loan was approved.
(*) Including an amount of $ 19.943 millions (cancelled grants and balances of operations amounted to $ 17.923 millions, executed during 1976-2008) and 

the amount of $ 2.020 millions allocated to finance 8 feasibility studies of some projects financed by BADEA and included in the loans.

Item / year 1975-2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total

Loans Approved 313 22 21 23 25 25 23 450

Lines of Credit Approved 16 - 1 - - 2 2 21

Special Programme Operations 14 - - - - - - 14

Technical Assistance Operations 
Approved (1)

278 22 24 28 24 31 31 438

SAAFA Loans (2) 59 - - - - - - 59

Signed Loan Agreements 312 17 27 22 21 23 26 448

Effective Loan Agreements 280 21 22 24 23 20 23 413

Technical Assistance charged 
against Income annually ($million)

32.711 4.997 6.013 5.694 5.174 5.476 5.019 65.084

Technical Assistance Charged 
against income of the year of 
approval ($million)

47.033 3.496 4.577 3.773 3.360 2.288 0.557 65.084

Total technical assistance ($million) 66.879 5.600 5.770 5.989 6.225 6.500 6.750 103.713*

Amount of Cancelled Grants and 
Feasibility studies  ($million)

15.832 0.684 0.685 0.313 0.211 0.144 0.054 17.923

Amount of BADEA Financing 
($million) (3)

2.345.439 139.990 144.970 159.939 169.945 179.600 190.000 3.329.883

Amount of Cancelled Commitments 
including grants charged against 
income  ($million) (4)

576.747 15.612 5.688 7.313 0.211 0.144 0.054 605.769

Amount of BADEA Loans ($million) 1.719.665 119.462 134.197 146.950 163.720 173.100 183.250 2.640.344

BADEA’s total net commitments 
including technical assistance 
($million)

1.768.724 124.378 139.282 152.594 169.734 179.456 189.946 2.724.114

SAFAA loans ($million) 214.244 - - - - - - 214.244

SAFAA disbursement ($million) 214.244 - - - - - - 214.244

Total disbursement excluding 
SAFAA ($million)

1.062.124 72.725 84.376 84.988 104.227 142.358 135.840 1.686.656

Paid up capital 1.500.000 - 700.000 - - - - 2.200.000
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ANNEX II
DETAILS OF DISTRIBUTION OF BADEA’S COMMITMENTS BY

 BENEFICIARY COUNTRIES (1975-2008)
(US$ MILLION)

Countries 1975-200٢ 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total

Angola 10.146 - - - - - - 10.146

Benin 71.024 - 6.900 5.000 1.850 10.000 1.550 96.324

Botswana 54.078 10.000 - 0.01 0.195 10.000 - 74.283

Burkina Faso 104.84 0.310 10.000 - 2.688 12.450 18.60 148.888

Burundi 28.026 - - - - - 10.40 38.426

Cameroon 58.899 10.000 - - - 8.000 6.000 82.899

Cap Verde 43.895 4.500 3.600 1.750 - 8.000 9.400 71.145

Central African Republic 8.200 - - - 3.330 - - 11.530

Chad 41.113 11.987 - 11.800 6.898 13.000 84.798

Congo Brazzaville 21.921 - - 6.350 - - 0.24 28.511

Democratic Republic of Congo 10.000 - - - 13.500 - - 23.500

Cote d’Ivoire 30.107 - 10.000 - - 12.000 - 52.107

Eritrea 23.851 - - - 4.500 - 0.235 28.586

Ethiopia 46.280 6.240 13.001 10.100 0.104 - 9.000 84.725

Gabon 8.850 - - - - 10.000 - 18.850

Gambia 54.171 - 10.220 - 0.400 0.029 7.720 72.540

Ghana 104.643 10.000 4.000 0.300 8.000 - 6.000 132.943

Guinea 110.011 3.200 8.400 0.091 0.580 4.040 13.500 139.822

Guinea Bissau 10.584 - - - - - - 10.584

Equatorial Guinea 10.068 0.270 - - - - - 10.338

Kenya 35.166 5.000 15.309 10.000 4.550 8.000 78.025

Lesotho 31.283 6.000 10.080 0.002 3.700 10.235 - 61.30

Liberia 7.011 - - - - - - 7.011

Madagascar 69.989 5.200 - 15.300 5.350 5.001 - 100.840

Malawi 23.032 6.400 - 0.349 10.000 - 10.000 49.781

Mali 88.355 3.411 - 7.200 15.830 12.555 0.450 127.801

Mauritius 54.257 - 5.500 - 4.000 3.335 10.000 77.092

Mozambique 87.935 9.000 10.882 4.015 6.261 9.000 8.635 135.728

Namibia 18.622 6.525 - - 12.700 - - 37.847

Niger 43.207 0.300 - 7.790 2.420 7.900 10.000 71.617

Nigeria - - - - 8.078 - - 8.078

Uganda 37.269 - 0.205 7.091 - - 4.885 49.450

Rwanda 54.602 2.046 0.059 - 10.440 67.147

Sao Tome &Principe 4.847 0.180 0.250 5.277

Senegal 104.63 14.200 15.065 16.406 7.300 6.542 14.33 178.473

Seychelles 28.784 4.200 6.500 1.500 6.000 46.984

Sierra Leone 11.488 7.352 6.000 8.000 11.330 10.179 54.349

Swaziland 19.18 6.600 1.630 8.35 35.760

Tanzania 26.231 5.600 9.600 14.919 8.540 6.000 6.000 76.890

Togo 11.517 - - 13.000 0.095 0.300 24.912

Zambia 31.452 0.215 4.300 6.800 8.000 50.767

Zimbabwe 75.053 0.200 75.253

Group of countries (Private sector) - - - - - - 10.000 10.000

Comoros 7.996 - - - - - - 7.996

Regional Organizations - - 0.002 0.230 0.163 1.880 2.455 4.730

Grants deducted against income 47.033 3.496 4.577 3.773 3.360 2.288 0.557 65.084

Grand Total 1768.724 124.378 139.282 152.594 169.734 179.456 189.946 2724.114
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ANNEX IV
DETAILS OF SUB-SECTORAL BREAKDOWN OF BADEA’S ANNUAL COMMITMENTS 

(1975-2008)  
($ MILLION) 

* Intended to mean lines of credit extended to the private sector through National Development Banks.

Total2008200720062005200420031975-2002Sector

Infrastructure & Environment :

927.89083.00074.10048.05064.26883.80046.625528.047Roads

30.796------30.796Railways

18.2456.000-----12.245River Transport

132.419-26.00016.7007.000-8.50074.219Air Transport 

27.117------27.117Telecommunications 

218.8868.0004.30028.30015.4007.00024.837131.049Water Supply and Drainage

87.147-17.00016.000---54.147Dams and Bridges

47.788-13.100----34.688 Public Services 

1.490.28897.000134.500109.05086.66890.80079.962892.308Sub-Total

300.833-14.00020.04028.80026.8987.500
203.595

Agriculture and Rural
Development

222.07537.000-----185.075 Food Production 

43.3846.200----9.00028.184 Livestock and Poultry 

71.904-2.9006.800--9.00048.004Fishing 

23.749------23.749Food Industry 

19.50019.500Forestry Development

681.44543.20016.90026.84028.80026.89825.500513.307Sub- Total

Industry :

49.80649.806Building Materials

3.122------3.122Chemical Industries 

52.92852.928Sub- Total

Energy :

174.995
9.0009.0007.00014.500

2.000-
133.495

Electric Power Infrastructure 
and  Production 

150.11319.5509.70020.83014.20014.50014.00057.333The Social sector

77.94014.5003.000-2.750--57.690The private Sector*

The Special Programme

12.635------12.635Emergency Aid 

Technical Assistance

15.6214.2653.2692.4941.6730.5051.4201.995Countries

3.0651.8740.7990.1600.2300.002--Regional Organizations

65.0840.5572.2883.3603.7734.5773.49647.033Grants deducted against income

83.7706.6966.3566.0145.6765.0844.91649.028Sub Total

2.724.114189.946179.456169.734152.594139.282124.3781.768.724Grand Total
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ANNEX V
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE OPERATIONS (1975-2007)

($ MILLION) 

Recipient Country/Institution Operations
Date of

Approval
Amount

A- Feasibility Studies

Benin Clinker grinding factory 1976 0.072

Guinea Cement factory 1977 0.092

Benin Extension of Cotonou port 1978 0.100

Guinea Bissau Sugar complex 1978 0.100

Group of African Countries Pan – Africa telecommunications 1978 0.315

Uganda Poultry & fisheries 1978 0.150

Guinea Sugeta cement 1979 0.079

Sahel Countries Arab Aid for Development of Sahel 1981 0.266

Sahel Countries Study for sahel development 1981 0.280

Senegal Livestock development 1981 0.046

Benin Rural development 1983 0.462

Sao Tome & Principe Fruit complex 1983 0.150

Chad Polder Mamdi 1983 0.150

Uganda Development of poultry & fisheries 1983 0.100

Group of East African Countries Under water cable network 1983 0.085

Cape Verde ** Development of fisheries 1984 0.150

Cape Verde Development of fisheries 1985 0.300

Niger ** Niamey & Gaya ports 1985 0.250

Togo * Water supply for agriculture 1985 0.300

Central African Republic * Four hydroelectric projects 1986 0.310

Guinea Bissau Rehabilitation of water supply system in Bissau 1986 0.250

Niger Construction of a dam and Land reclamation 1986 0.270

Ghana * Tamali water supply extension 1986 0.175

Senegal * Rehabilitation of industrial fisheries 1987 0.125

Burkina Faso Development of animal production 1987 0.250

Niger** Rehabilitation of Dakoro region 1987 0.250

Lesotho ** Extension of Maseru international airport 1988 0.200

Burkina Faso * Ouagadougou – Leo – Ghana border road 1988 0.300

Mali ** Keneiba – Sadiola _ Kayes road 1989 0.250

Gambia * Sorrekunda – Mandinaba road 1990 0.250

Botswana * Rural electrification 1990 0.252
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ANNEX V (cont.)

Recipient Country/Institution Operations
Date of

Approval
Amount

Zimbabwe Development of state forests 1990 0.250

Guinea Reclamation of cultivable lowlands 1990 0.270

Gambia * Extension of Yandum international airport 1990 0.150

Mozambique * Water supply & sewerage system for Quelimane town 1990 0.250

Ghana Rain water drainage system 1990 0.277

Burkina Faso ** Rural & village water supply 1990 0.200

Ghana ** Buipe cement factory 1991 0.275

Madagascar * Tamatave airport modernization 1991 0.250

Mozambique ** Chissano – Chibuto – Xai Xai road 1991 0.215

Uganda * Vegetable oil production 1991 0.245

Seychelles * Dry dock project 1991 0.145

Mali Integrated economic development in Diri 1991 0.190

Uganda * Leather industries 1991 0.210

Lesotho * Taung – Mokhotlong – Sani pass road 1991 0.220

Mali ** Processing of slaughterhouse by-products 1991 0.250

Sao Tome & Principe
Modernization & extension of Sao Tome Principe 
international airport 

1992 0.150

Burkina Faso **
Pa – Dano – Diebougou – Kampti – Cote d’Ivoire border 
road

1992 0.300

Guinea * Yiriki bridge project on River Niger 1992 0.150

Burkina Faso Study of irrigated plots in Sourou basin 1992 0.292

Chad
Rural development project in Faya Largeau, Ain Galaka 
& Fada area

1992 0.290

Rwanda Nyabisindu – Kibunga road 1992 0.300

Mali *
Rural and pastoral development project in Diri, Goudam 
& Timbuktu

1992 0.324

Senegal ** Extension and connection of rural water supply facilities 1993 0.350

Rwanda Kigali Municipal road 1993 0.380

Uganda ** Small ruminants development project 1993 0.320

Zimbabwe Construction and rehabilitation of three roads 1993 0.340

Mali ** Kidal water supply 1993 0.350

Burkina Faso ** Bazon plain development project 1993 0.240

Chad * Bolong bridge project 1994 0.150

Cape Verde ** Rehabilitation of fish canning industry 1994 0.220

Guinea Water supply of five towns 1994 0.350

Mali * Sikasso – Koloko road 1994 0.200

Senegal * Rehabilitation of Oro – Sojo – Bakil road 1994 0.220

Chad
Rehabilitation of 1000 h. land in Ouadis & Polder areas 
n Lake Chad

1994 0.220

Cape Verde * Construction of Bovista port 1994 0.220

Mali ** Development of fish resources in Lake Selingue 1994 0.250

Mozambique ** Electric Supply to three towns 1994 0.220

Senegal Wadi Kamobol – Bolon development 1995 0.245

Guinea Rural development in Dubreka, Boffa and Fria regions 1995 0.240
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ANNEX V (cont)

Recipient Country/Institution Operations
Date of 

Approval
Amount

Mali ** Rural pastoral water supply in Timbuktu and Diri 1995 0.150

Madagascar Reclamation of Maintirano plain 1995 0.220

Uganda Water supply in pastoral areas 1995 0.310

Senegal ** Construction of Tambakoundu – Bakil road 1995 0.300

Burkina Faso Production of, marketing and processing of groundnuts 1995 0.320

Equatorial Guinea Rehabilitation of roads in Bioko 1995 0.080

Eritrea * Assab – Tio road project 1995 0.300

Madagascar Reclamation of Bialanana & Mavaerano plain 1995 0.250

Malawi Irrigation of small holders farms in Littoral Lake region 1995 0.260

Namibia Provision of water for irrigation at Orange river plain 1995 0.250

Guinea Small dams 1995 0.350

Ethiopia * Rehabilitation of seven feeder airports 1996 0.340

Senegal ** Kolda Diana – Malari – Djenda road 1996 0.150

Gabon * Lalara Koumameyong – Makoukou road 1996 0.330

Mali** Development of animal in Kais region 1996 0.250

Malawi Production of fertilizers 1996 0.250

Guinea ** Cogon bridge 1996 0.170

Equatorial Guinea 
Development of production, processing and marketing of 
pineapples

1996 0.200

Senegal Rehabilitation of agricultural lands at Lampasar 1996 0.250

Cote d’Ivoire Development of agricultural lands at Bagoue 1996 0.300

Sierra Leone * Lungi airport – Freetown road 1996 0.350

Ghana Development for dairy production 1996 0.250

Guinea Reclamation at Dinguiraye 1996 0.320

Benin ** Natitingou – Porga road (Updating of feasibility study) 1996 0.130

Namibia Orangemund project 1996 0.300

Guinea
Feasibility study for conservation of fruits and vegetables 
in Kindia and Mamou districts

1996 0.270

Equatorial Guinea Feasibility study for development of traditional fishing 1997 0.260

Togo** Rehabilitation of four roads 1997 0.300

Sierra Leone * Agricultural development at Rolaco region 1997 0.260

Lesotho** Metelong dam 1997 0.300

Benin ** Rehabilitation of agricultural land at Dngbon d’Donjoun 1997 0.300

Togo Water supply and sewerage project for four urban centers 1997 0.350

Cote d’Ivoire **
Reclamation of 1600 hectares of cultivable land at two 
central western regions

1997 0.350

Tanzania * Sisal production at lake Victoria region 1997 0.350

Togo
Reclamation and rehabilitation of agricultural land at 
Mission Tove

1997 0.250

Malawi Jenda - Imbagouni  -Rumffi road 1997 0.350

Cameroon Water supply and sewerage project in twelve urban centers 1997 0.400

Zambia Rehabilitation of water supply and sewerage system project 1998 0.400

Senegal** Linguere Matam road 1998 0.400
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ANNEX V (cont)

Recipient Country/Institution Operations
Date of 

Approval
Amount

Mali
Feasibility study for a project for construction of small 
dams at Kayes province

1998 0.400

Senegal** Sewerage project for Tambacounda city 1998 0.400

Burkina Faso Yako – Tougan Gnissan road 1998 0.350

Chad Abeche Adri – Sudan border road 1998 0.340

Kenya**
Rehabilitation and development of Hola irrigation 
scheme

1998 0.400

Kenya Dundori – Olkalou – Njabini road 1998 0.200

Senegal
Rural water project in Andiosmone – Palmeran region 
road

1999 0.400

Cote d’Ivoire
Reclamation of 900 ha of agricultural lands in North – 
Western region

1999 0.350

Mozambique Save Valley irrigation project 1999 0.425

Zambia Feeders roads in Copper – belt region 1999 0.220

Kenya Emali – Oliotokitok road project 1999 0.200

Burkina Faso Kudougou – Didougou road project 1999 0.250

Tanzania Development of agricultural in Zanzibar 1999 0.375

Guinea** Labe-Tougoue-Dingiraye-Siguiri Road 2000 0.300

Angola Rehabilitation of Bom Jesus irrigation project 2000 0.430

Angola * Rehabilitation of Caixito agricultural project 2000 0.430

Cape Verde Rehabilitation of Flamingos and Principal Basins 2000 0.320

Cote d’Ivoire
Rehabilitation of 2700 ha of agricultural land in the 
mountains region

2000 0.350

Madagascar
Electrical connection of Ambositra town with Antsirape 
hydropower 

2000 0.255

Regional
Ways of protection of plants and agricultural produce in 
Liptako Gourma region

2000 0.200

Burundi** Gitega – Bururi   Makamba road project 2001 0.450

Cote d’Ivoire Development of 2500h in Sikila province 2001 0.300

Guinea Rural development project in Foricaria region 2001 0.350

Senegal Construction of a new airport in Dakar 2001 0.315

Seychelles Development of fisheries sector 2001 0.150

Tanzania Production and industry of sisal 2001 0.370

Uganda** Rehabilitation of 66 bridges 2001 0.450

Eritrea Rehabilitation of the road Asmara - Kern 2002 0.400

Chad Masakori – Paul – Niger Borders Road 2002 0.840

Tanzania
Power transmission line from “Mochuchuma”  to 
“Mufindi”

2002 0.420

Lesotho Development of water supply and sanitation in five towns 2002 0.450

Mozambique Water disposal in “Maputo” town 2002 0.350

Tanzania Sanitation in “Singida” town 2002 0.280

Mozambique Electricity transmission lines in “ Cabo Delgado” province 2002 0.265

Burkina Faso ** Yegrissou –Debougou-Léo   road 2003 0.400

Sao Tome &Principe* Rehabilitation of the international airport of Sao Tome 2003 0.300

Equatorial Guinea
Rehabilitation and maintenace of Bioco Isle roads 
(Additionnel)

2003 0.270
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Uganda
Water disposal  and sanitation in 8 towns in the North 
East of Uganda

2003 0.480

Zimbabwe Alaska – Copper Queen – Nimbudzia  road 2003 0.290

Mali Zantibougou - Kolindiba- Côte d’Ivoire Borders road 2003 0.260

Zambia Rehabilitation of Chipata – Londezi road 2003 0.290

Senegal Rehabilitation of irrigated loands of Lampsar 2004 0.300

Lesotho Thaba Tseka – Mokhotolong Road 2004 0.350

Niger ** Rehabilitation of the Slauhterhouse of Niamey 2004 0.240

Eritrea Mossawa – Assab Road 2004 0.500

Senegal Construction of the New Dakar Airport (Supplementary grant) 2004 0.065

Uganda Rehabilitation of Kampala – Antebe Road 2004 0.375

Ghana Feasibility Study for Tema-Akwasombo Railway line 2005 0.300

Congo Feasibility Study for Oboya-Okoyo-Gabon Borders Road 2005 0.350

Uganda Feasibility Study for Masak-Bukakata Road 2005 0.150

Kenya
Feasibility study for Water supply and sanitation for Seven 
Towns Project

2005 0.400

Malawi Feasibility study for “Rumphi-Cheteba” Road 2005 0.350

Madagascar Feasibility Study for Rice De-husking and Fodder Production 2005 0.300

Senegal 
Techno- Economic Feasibility Study for Rural Water Supply 
Project in « Kazmans» and Sen- Salom» Rivers Delta

2006 0.300

Guinea
Techno – Economic Feasibility Study and Preliminary 
Engineering Design for «Kankan»- «Yomo» - Liberia 
Border Road Project   

2006 0.350

Madagascar
Techno – Economic Feasibility Study for «Sant Meri» 
Island Power Supply Project  

2006 0.350

Mozambique
Techno – Economic Feasibility Study for Storm Water Drainage 
Project for parts of Southern and Northern «Bera» City 

2006 0.350

Burkina Faso
Techno – Economic Feasibility Study and Engineering Design 
for «Konjosi – Geibo – Paraboli « - Mali Border Road Project

2006 0.250

Tanzania 
Techno–economic Feasibility Study for an Airport Project 
in Masalato 

2006 0.440

Gambia
Techno – Economic Feasibility Study for Rural 
Electrification in the Western Region and «Greater 
Banjul» Region Project 

2006 0.400

Guinea 
Techno – Economic Feasibility Study for «Conakry» 
Storm Water Drainage Project  

2006 0.300

Group of African Countries Telecommunications Seminar 1976 0.080

Togo
Feasibility Study for the project of Land Reclamation in 
“Djablé” Plain

2007 0.300

Kenya
Feasibility Study for the Construction of a Central 
Abattoir in Northern Area

2007 0.250

Regional
Feasibility Study of the rural Roods project in the region 
of “Liptako-Gourma”

2007 0.330

Regional
Study on the Economic effects of  the trans Saharan 
Road project

2007 0.400

Burkina Faso
Feasibility study for Milk Production Development 
Programme

2007 0.280

Rwanda
Feasibility study for the Provision of Drinking Water 
Supply Project for Seven Towns

2007 0.440
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Guinea Feasibility study for the construction of four bridges. 2007 0.440

Madagascar
Feasibility study for the moderation of Ivato Airport in the 
Capital Antananarivo

2007 0.470

Burkina Faso
Techno-economic feasibility study for the land reclamation 
project on the Right Bank of River «Nakabi»

2008 0.300

Burundi
Techno-economic feasibility study for the Development of 
the Livestock Sector

2008 0.400

Cape Verde
Techno-economic feasibility study for the expansion of 
the International Airport in «Praia» town

2008 0.400

Swaziland
Techno-economic feasibility study for the Irrigation 
Project in «Lovamisa» area

2008 0.350

Regional
Study on the Mechanisms to promote Arab investments 
in Africa

2008 0.170

Mozambique
Techno-economic feasibility study for the Rural 
Electrification Project in «Niasa» Province

2008 0.400

Burkina Faso
Techno-economic feasibility study for the «Yako-
Koudougo» Road Project

2008 0.300

Mali
Techno-economic feasibility study for the Irrigation 
Development Project in «Dire-Ansongo» area

2008 0.450

B- Institutional support

PANAFTEL Under sea cable network for countries of East Africa 1978 1.000

OCLALAV Environment protection 1978 0.300

OICMA Environment protection 1978 0.050

DLCO – EA Environment protection 1978 0.050

AFAA Fifth Conference 1983 0.020

ICPE Training & upgrading 1984 0.165

CAFRAD Training & upgrading 1984 0.100

Comoros Support to the Department of National Planning & 
Development 1984 0.100

IDEP Vocational Training 1984 0.095

AFCEDEM * Development of manufacturing industries 1984 0.150

PANA ** Support for activities 1984 0.150

Sudan Exceptional aid 1985 3.000

ICRISAT Regional Center for Sahel 1985 0.500

Zimbabwe * Support for Ministry of Transport 1985 0.100

Comoros * Administration of development and planning 1986 0.050

Botswana Support for Ministry of Works 1986 0.200

DLCO-_EA* Support for activities 1986 0.750

ACSAD Support for the Center’s activities 1987 0.125

Angola * Support for National Bank of Angola 1987 0.120

RCSSMRS (Nairobi) Support for activities 1987 0.300

Burkina Faso * Support to the General Admin. For International Cooperation 1988 0.120

DLCO-WA Support of the Organization activities 1988 0.200

DLCO-EA Environmental protection 1989 0.300

CAFRAD
Consolidation of Economic & Financial Administration in 
African Countrie3s

1990 0.100

Lesotho ** Support of the Services of Water and Sewerage 1991 0.167
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Mozambique ** Support of the department of Roads and Bridges 1991 0.145

Rwanda Consolidation of the General Admin. For Roads & Bridges 1991 0.125

Equatorial Guinea **
Institutional Support to the Ministry of Economy, Trade & 
Planning

1992 0.140

Sao Tome & Principe *
Institutional Support to the General Administration of 
Industry, Energy and Tourism

1992 0.120

Mauritius ** Support of the activities of the Department of Sewerage 1992 0.150

Namibia Support to the Ministry of Finance (Training) 1993 0.200

Mali **
Contracting services of an expert to the Autonomous 
Fund for Debt Settlement

1993 0.190

Botswana ** Contracting services of an expert to the Ministry of Agriculture 1993 0.190

Chad Support of the National Directorate for Water 1993 0.100

Rwanda
Contracting services of an Arab expert to the Ministry of 
Works

1993 0.190

Zimbabwe
Contracting services of an Arab expert (architect) to the 
Ministry of Public Construction

1993 0.150

Burkina Faso **
Contracting services of an Arab expert (agriculturist) for 
Soro Basin Authority

1994 0.157

Guinea ** Arab expert for the Ministry of Planning & Finance 1994 0.095

Senegal Support of CEREEQ activities 1994 0.185

Chad
Arab expert (engineer) for Lake Chad Development 
Company

1994 0.160

Chad
Arab expert (agriculturist) for Lake of Chad development 
Company

1994 0.160

Uganda **
A development economist for Uganda Development 
Bank

1994 0.190

Eritrea * Support to the Ministry of Agriculture 1995 0.190

Mozambique
Arab expert (microbiologist) for the National Institute for 
Veterinary Research

1995 0.230

Namibia Training of cadres 1995 0.150

Botswana ** Arab expert (irrigation engineer) Ministry of Agriculture 1995 0.160

Cape Verde * Arab expert (fisheries) Directorate of Fisheries 1995 0.160

Mali **
Provision of equipment for the National Lab. Directorate 
of Water

1995 0.155

Mali ** Training program for the Ministry of Labour 1995 0.160

Madagascar**
Arab expert (statistician) an provision of equipment for the 
Ministry of Agriculture

1995 0.170

Lesotho ** Arab expert in the field of Labour Legislation 1995 0.120

Mozambique
Arab expert in post-harvest technology for the National 
Agricultural Resources Institute 

1995 0.160

Burkina Faso ** Arab expert (irrigation engineer) Ministry of Water 1996 0.160

Seychelles *
Arab expert in marketing of agricultural products, Ministry 
of Agriculture & Maritime Resources 

1996 0.160

Int. Develop. Law (I.D.L.I.) ** Training of ten African Development Lawyers 1996 0.218

Burkina Faso *
Arab expert (Economist), Ministry of Economy, Finance 
& Planning

1996 0.160

Gabon
Arab expert (agronomist), Ministry of Agriculture, Animal 
Resources & Rural Development

1996 0.160

Congo Arab expert economist 1997 0.160

Chad Arab expert in education 1997 0.190
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Regional
Contribution in holding the Second Week of Arab African 
Businessmen in Mauritania

1997 0.050

Mozambique* Arab expert on sugar economics 1997 0.190

Burkina Faso** Arab expert (civil engineer) 1997 0.160

Regional
Contribution in holding the Third Arab African Commercial 
Fair in Sharjah – U.A.E.

1997 0.100

Cote d’Ivoire
Arab expert on agricultural statistics, provision of equipment 
to the Ministry of Agriculture and Animal Wealth

1997 0.185

Malawi** Arab expert economist 1997 0.190

Namibia* Arab expert economist 1997 0.190

Regional **
Training of African Agriculturists in the field of sensing up 
wind barriers in tropical zones

1997 0.095

Regional **
Training of African Agriculturists in the field of production 
of fruits and vegetables destined for export

1997 0.110

Regional **
Training of African agriculturists in the field of beef 
production

1997 0.090

Togo*
Arab expert (agronomist) Ministry of Agriculture and 
Animal Resources

1998 0.190

Lesotho
Arab expert (civil engineer) Ministry of Agriculture 
Cooperative, Marketing and Youth Affairs

1998 0.160

Gambia** Arab expert in airport management, Civil Aviation Authority 1998 0.190

The International Development Law 
Institution (I.D.L.I.) ** 

Training of 20 African lawyers in the field of procurement 
of goods & services and international contracts 

1998 0.380

Regional **
Training of African Agriculturists in the field of development 
of dairy cow’s production

1998 0.150

Regional **
Training of African Agriculturists in the field of preservation 
packing and quality guarantee of fresh products

1998 0.250

Malawi Arab expert (civil engineer) Ministry of Works & supplies 1998 0.160

Regional **
Training of African technicians in the field of use of modern 
technology in control and combat of desertification in 
African countries 

1998 0.135

Regional **
Training of African technicians in the field of operation and 
maintenance of water pumps

1998 0.180

Regional **
Participation in the cost of holding the Fourth Arab African 
Commercial Fair in Dakar

1998 0.150

Regional 
Participation in the cost of holding the Second Week of 
Arab African businessmen in Burkina Faso 

1998 0.025

Regional **
Training of African technicians in the field of quality control 
in textile industries

1998 0.130

Regional ** Training of quality control of cement production 1999 0.125

Benin
Institutional support of Regional Rural Development 
Center in Oueme region

1999 0.185

Niger**
Supporting Programme and Planning Department at the 
Ministry of Planning

1999 0.250

Regional ** Training in Agricultural policy analysis in Africa 1999 0.250

Regional ** Training in food industry 1999 0.100

ANNEX V (cont)
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Gambia Supporting fisheries Department 1999 0.350

Rwanda**
Additional assistance in support of the General Adm. For 
Roads and Bridges

1999 0.095

Rwanda Additional Assistance to support Water Administration 1999 0.030

Regional **
Training in mixed farming systems management in the 
Sahel countries

1999 0.210

Regional ** Training in textile industries quality control 1999 0.150

Angola*
Support to the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural 
Development

1999 0.375

Burkina Faso**
Support to the Central Administration for Supervision of 
Works

1999 0.160

Sao Tome & Principe Support to the National Institute for Meteorology 1999 0.370

Regional ** Training in the field of modern technology for the monitoring 
and control of desertification in African countries

2000 0.135

Regional ** Training in the field of quality control in textile industries 2000 0.135

Tanzania
Institutional support for Zanzibar Institute of Financial 
Management 

2000 0.285

Cape Verde 
Institutional support for the High Institute of Physical 
Education 

2000 0.350

Rwanda
 Institutional support for the National Meteorological 
Department 

2000 0.330

Regional **
Training in the field of modern technology for the monitoring 
and control of desertification in African countries

2000 0.135

Regional** Training in quality management systems 2000 0.250

Chad** Institutional support for IUSTA of Abeche 2000 0.240

Chad** Supporting Teaching Centre (additional grant) 2000 0.075

Regional (less developed countries)** The Fifth Arab African Fair 2000 0.150

Regional **
Training in irrigation water management and utilization of 
fertilizers in agriculture

2000 0.140

Regional **
Training in the use of biotechnologies for the development 
of agriculture in African counties

2000 0.180

Regional *
Training in preparation and evaluation of agricultural 
projects 

2000 0.155

Regional ** Training in cement quality control 2000 0.115

Regional**
Training in utilization of modern techniques for monitoring 
and combating desertification

2001 0.340

Regional Training in cement quality control 2001 0.100

Regional** Expert in rural development for Liptako – Gourma region 2001 0.245

Regional*
Support for the Hydroniger Interstate Forecasting Centre 
of the Niger Basin Authority

2001 0.250
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Eritrea Expert in civil engineering (infrastructures) 2001 0.330

Regional**
Training for African lawyers at International Development 
Law Institute

2001 0.390

Regional** Training in quality control of textile industry 2001 0.155

Senegal
Training for the staff of the National Corporation of Land 
Reclamation and Development of the Senegal river basin

2001 0.130

Uganda Institutional support for the Department of Meteorology 2001 0.300

Niger Institutional support for the High Commission of Kandadji dam 2001 0.265

Regional** Training session in credit and finance 2001 0.170

Kenya Institutional support for the Ministry of Finance and Planning 2001 0.140

Regional Training course in  the field of meteorology 2002 0.255

Regional Training course in the field of utilization of sugar by-products 2002 0.130

Regional
Training course in preparation, evaluation and 
implementation of agricultural projects

2002 0.180

Regional** Training course in provision of water for rural settlements in Africa 2002 0.140

Regional** All Africa 8th Fair 2002 0.155

Botswana
Provision of the services of an Arab expert specialized in 
water and sanitation

2002 0.190

Regional Institutional support to Lake Chad Basin Commission 2002 0.250

Regional Arab-African Fair in and Conference on construction industry 2002 0.170

Tanzania Support to the Meteorological Agency 2002 0.460

Niger**
Institutional support for Early Warning System and 
Disaster Management 

2002 0.300

Uganda
Institutional support to the Ministry of Works, Housing and 
Communications

2002 0.185

Madagascar The services of an Arab expert in the field of Agricultural statistics 2002 0.160

Niger ** Institutional support to the Ministry of Finance and Economy 2002 0.180

Regional Training session in the field of irrigation and fertilizing irrigation 2003 0.160

Regional**
Training session in the field of renewed  energies for  
production of electricity  in rural regions

2003 0.110

Regional** Training session in the field of sub-products in sugar industry 2003 0.160

Regional**
Training session in the field of control of quality in the 
industry of cement

2003 0.190

Burkina Faso*
Assistance for achievement  of special  programme of 
food security (included services of an Arab  expert )

2003 0.310

Niger*
Assistance for achievement  of special  programme of 
food security (included services of 2 Arab  expert )

2003 0.300

Regional Training session in the field of economic integration 2003 0.330

Regional** 6th  Arab African Commercial Fair (Dar Es Salam) 2003   0.220

Chad Institutional support for IUSTA of Abeche 2003   0.350

Sierra Leone
Institutional support for Standard Bureau (included 
services of an Arab  expert)

2003 0.365

Regional Training session in the field of environment management  (in French) 2003 0.135

Regional Training session in the field of irrigation management  (in French) 2003 0.135

Benin
Training session in the field of goods and services 
procurement

2003 0.120
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Gambia
Institutional support for the Ministry of Agriculture 
(services  of an Arab expert)

2003 0.215

Niger
Institutional support for the Unity of Monitoring of Special 
Programme of President 

2003 0.300

Ethiopia Training program for Ethiopian Development Bank 2004 0.430

Regional Training Session in Debt Management 2004 0.150

Regional
Training Session in the field of the Use of Bio-Technology 
in the Agricultural Development (Anglophone countries)

2004 0.200

Regional Training Session in the field of Plant Protection 2004 0.130

The Gambia
Institutional Support to the Ministry of Agriculture
 (Arab Expert in Agriculture)

2004 0.220

Zimbabwe
Institutional Support to the Ministry of Transports and
Communications (Arab Expert In Quantity Surveying)

2004 0.225

Niger
Institutional Support to the Niger Basin Authority “
“NBA” – (Arab Expert – Economist)

2004 0.280

Eritrea
Institutional Support to the National Institute of
Agricultural Research “NIAR” – (Arab Expert in the
field of Horticultural Research)

2004 0.085

Regional
Training Session in the field of Maintenance of
Textile Machineries : Spinning and Weaving Tools
(Francophone countries)

2004 0.160

Regional
Institutional Support to BDEAC (Arab Expert Financial 
Analyst) 

2004 0.240

Regional
Participation of the Least Developed African
Countries in the Regional Summit about Micro-
Credits in the Middle-East and Africa (cost sharing)

2004 0.160

Regional
Training Session about the Design and Manufacturing
Of Leather Shoes (COMESA countries)

2004 0.190

Regional
Institutional Support for Combating the Migrating
Locust

2004 0.600

Chad An Arab Expert (Agronomist) at SODELAC 2004 0.080

Rwanda An Arab Expert (Public Works) 2004 0.080

Democratic Congo
Institutional Support to the Public Debt Management
Authority (OGEDEP) – Ministry of Finance

2004 0.250

Chad An Arab Expert (Civil Engineer) in Bridges and Roads 2004 0.080

Chad
Institutional Support to the Faculty of Exact and Applied 
Sciences ( FSEA ) at the University of N’djamena

2004 0.270

Regional
Training Course –Management Of Public Debt-
Francophone Countries Participants

2005 0.155

Regional
Training course-Use of Satellite Imagery in Weather 
Forecasting

2005 0.155

Regional
Training course- Desert Locust Combating for Sahel 
Countries

2005 0.150



107

BADEA
2 0 0 8

Annual Report

ANNEX V (cont)

Recipient Country/Institution Operations
Date of 

Approval
Amount

Regional Funding Participation in Seventh Arab-African Trade Fair 2005 0.270

Burkina Faso Institutional support for the National Public Health Laboratory 2005 0.260

Senegal Institutional Support for Women Groups in Senegal River Basin 2005 0.260

Lesotho
Extension of the Services of Civil Engineer for the Ministry 
of Forestry and Land Reclamation

2005 0.190

Eritrea
Extension of the services of the Expert for National 
Agricultural Research Institute

2005 0.190

Regional Training Course in Credit and Finance 2005 0.175

Regional
Training Course in Irrigation Management and Design 
and Installation of Fertigation systems

2005 0.340

Regional Training Course in Rural Development and Extension 2005 0.130

Regional Training Course in Economic Integration and coordination 2005 0.370

Regional Training Course in Procurement of Goods and Services 2005 0.115

Guinea Institutional support for the Ministry of Planning 2005 0.100

Malawi
Extension of the Services of Civil Engineering Expert to 
the Ministry of Transport and Public Works

2005 0.084

Mozambique
Revision and Up-dating of the Feasibility Study for Maputo 
Coastal Protection

2005 0.150

Regional
Training Course Diagnosis and Assessment of the impact 
of Biological , organic  and air pollutants

2005 0.165

Botswana Extension of the services of Water supply and sanitation Expert 2005 0.190

Tanzania
Extension of the Services for the Expert for Zanzibar 
Institute of Financial Administration

2005 0.190

Rwanda
Extension of the Services of the Water Supply and 
Sanitation Expert

2005 0.190

Senegal
Expert in Small-scale and Micro-finance for Economic 
Development Fund

2005 0.130

Niger*
Institutional Support for the Development Commission of 
the Ministry of Economy and Finance 

2005 0.190

Regional
Training Programme in the field of Environmental  
Management Systems and Combating Marine Pollution 
for Anglophone African Countries 

2006 0.270

Regional Institutional Support to the Road Maintenance Training Center 2006 0.315

Togo
Institutional Support to the Ministry of Agriculture, Animal 
Wealth and Fisheries 

2006 0.245

Gambia 
Institutional Support to the Department of Fisheries in the 
Field of Quality Control

2006 0.105

Sierra Lione
Institutional Support to the Chemical Laboratory of « 
Forbay» College

2006 0.330

Tanzania Training Workshop on the Procurement of Goods and Services  2006 0.175

Liberia  Training Workshop on Credit and Foreign Exchange Markets 2006 0.180

Nigeria raining Programme for the National Programme for Food Security  2006 0.380

Ethiopia Training Programme for the Ethiopian Roads Authority (ERA)  2006 0.220

Regional Training Programme on Potable Water Quality control 2006 0.180

Ethiopia Training Workshop on the Procurement of Goods and Services 2007 0.150

Regional Establishment of  the First Afro-Arab Consultancy Firms Forum  2007 0.050

Regional
 Training Course in the field of Collection and Treatment of 
Waste Water  collection for French Speaking Countries 

2007 0.140

Regional
Training Workshop in the field of Biosaline Agriculture for 
Anglophone African countries

2007 0.150

Regional
Training Programme on Economic Coordination and 
Integration  for the African Union Experts

2007 0.320

Regional
Training course in the field of Water Harvesting for 
Irrigation for Francophone African countries

2007 0.140

Regional
Extension of an Arab Expert in Financial Analysis for the 
Development Bank of Central African States 

2007 0.195
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Regional
Training Course in quality control of cement industry for 
Anglophone African Countries

2007 0.100

Burkina Faso
Provision of an Arab Expert in the field of Roads and 
Bridges to support the General Directorate of Roads for 
two years

2007 0.235

Togo
Feasibility Study for the project of Land Reclamation in 
Djablé Plain

2007 0.300

Sierra Leone
Extension  of an Arab expert to support the National 
Power Authority (NPA) for two years

2007 0.235

Kenya
Feasibility Study for the Construction of a Central Abattoir 
in Northern Area

2007 0.250

Madagascar
Extension of the services of an Arab expert civil engineer 
to the Roads Authority

2007 0.235

Regional
training session on the sound use of pesticide in agriculture 
for francophone African countries

2007 0.130

Regional
Training course in the design, implementation and 
maintenance of agricultural draining systems

2007 0.135

Regional
Financing an orientation programme for African authorities 
in charge of supervising BADEA’s operations.

2007 0.165

Regional
training session on loans to small and medium sized 
enterprises for francophone African countries

2007 0.140

Kenya
Feasibility study for Water supply and sanitation for Seven 
Towns Project

2007 0.330

Malawi Feasibility study for “Rumphi-Cheteba” Road 2007 0.060

Lesotho
Provision of an Arab experts in the field of Water and 
sanitation to support the Water Authority

2007 0.235

Regional Training course in the field Livestock 2007 0.105

Regional Training course in the field of Treatment of Minerals Raw materials 2007 0.100

Regional
Study on the Economic effects of  the trans Saharan 
Road project

2007 0.400

Burkina Faso
Feasibility study for Milk Production Development 
Programme

2007 0.280

Rwanda
Feasibility study for the Provision of Drinking Water 
Supply Project for Seven Towns

2007 0.440

Senegal
Extension of Arab Expert in  micro finance Micro-finance 
for Economic Development Fund

2007 0.050

Swaziland
Training Programme for the benefit of some cadres in 
Ministries and Governmental Institutions

2007 0.130

Guinea Feasibility study for the construction of four bridges. 2007 0.440

Mali
Institutional Support to the general administration for Debt 
in the Ministry of Economic and Finance

2007 0.155

Madagascar
Feasibility study for the moderation of Ivato Airport in the 
Capital Antananarivo

2007 0.470

Mauritius
Extension of an Arab Expert in the field of sanitation for 
the support of the Ministry of Public Utilities.

2007 0.235

Eritrea Institutional support to the Ministry of Finance 2008 0.235

Regional
Training Session in the Area of Procurement of Goods 
and Services for the benefit of  cadres from Lesotho, 
Swaziland, Botswana, and Namibia

2008 0.200

Regional Training Session on remote sensing and the application 
of Geographic Information Systems in Agriculture 2008 0.150
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* Cancelled operations
** (Cancelled balances)
*** Includes a sum of $ 18.650 millions including cancellations of $ 16.631 millions representing the value of grants and cancelled 

balances of some operations during the period 1976-2006, it also includes a sum of $ 2.019 millions representing 8 feasibility 
studies which yielded projects in whose financing BADEA has contributed.

Recipient Country/Institution Operations
Date of 

Approval
Amount

Mozambique
The provision of the services of an Arab Expert in the field 
of water and sanitation as an Institutional support to the 
Ministry of General Facilities and Housing

2008 0.235

Uganda
Institutional support to the «Uganda Investment Authority» 
through financing studies on investment promotion

2008 0.140

Regional
Training Session in the field of Small and Medium-Sized 
Enterprises Credit Risk Management

2008 0.165

Regional
Training Session in the Area of Regional Economic 
Coordination and Integration for Staff of the African Union 
Secretariat and Regional Economic Commissions

2008 0.150

Regional
Training Session on the Maintenance and Management 
of Roads

2008 0.170

Regional
Training Session in the field of Maintenance of Electrical 
Power Networks

2008 0.170

Regional
Meeting of High Level Experts on Agriculture Development 
and Food Security in Africa and the Arab world

2008 0.050

Regional
First Forum for Arab and African Contracting Firms- 
Senegal

2008 0.145

Regional
Second Forum for Arab and African Consultancy Firms-
Tunisia

2008 0.090

Regional
Institutional support to the Meteorology Division of the 
Department of State for Fisheries and Water Resources

2008 0.220

Senegal
Institutional support to the National Authority For Land 
Reclamation & Development of the River Basin of 
«Senegal» area

2008 0.130

Congo
Institutional Support to the Ministry of Economy, Finance 
and Budget

2008 0.240

Regional
First Meeting of the Chambers of Commerce and Industry 
in Africa and the Arab World

2008 0.075

Regional
Training Programme in the area of Integrated Rice 
Management for Rice Production

2008 0.320

Regional
Training Session in the Area of Procurement of Goods 
and Services

2008 0.190

Regional
Training session to support the Tsetse-Trypanosomiasis 
Control and Eradication initiative

2008 0.170

Regional
Training session in the area of livestock census-taking 
for cadres from the CILSS Countries and from the West 
Africa Economic Community

2008 0.090

Regional
Training session in the area of Surface Water and Waste 
Water Treatment Technology

2008 0.150

Sao Tome and Principa Institutional Support to the Water and Electricity Authority 2008 0.250

Uganda Institutional Support to the Ministry of Local Government 2008 0.245

Sub-Total 50.671

Grand Total ***103.713
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Item / Year 1975-2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total

Total Project Costs 12233.788 300.075 315.647 240.707 315.571 677.295 1029.368 15112.451

BADEA 1740.380 82.600 95.800 94.300 90.250 127.300 145.750 2376.380

Arab Funds, ISDB and OFID 
Fund 

2129.885 67.580 154.375 103.670 138.345 289.530 488.070 3371.455

World Bank Group 1476.890 26.000 - - - 13.000 25.000 1540.890*

ADB Group** 1263.210 83.250 26.540 12.750 46.500 44.710 116.630 1593.590***

European Union Group 744.960 - - - - - - 744.960

Industrialized Countries 1591.180 - - - - 53.400 - 1644.580

Beneficiary Governments & 
Local Institutions

3287.283 40.645 38.932 29.987 40.476 149.355 253.918 3840.596

* Including $ 20.09 million provided by the International Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD)
** Including the contribution of the Development Bank of West Africa, the Development Fund for West African Countries, the South 

African Bank for Development, the African Fund of Development and the Development Bank for Central Africa.
*** Includes $ 8.13 million provided by Development and Investment Bank for West Africa, $ 8 million from West Africa Bank to Samindini 

Dam Project in Burkina Faso, $ 40 million from African Development Bank, $ 8 million from West Africa Bank, $ 7.5 million from African 
Development and Investment Bank to the Development of Niger River Basin at Kandadaji Dam in the year 2008. 

ANNEX VI

DETAILS OF BADEA’S JOINT FINANCING (1975-2008)
($ MILLION)
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Member States
Subscription Voting Power

Amount
(in $)

Number of 
shares Percentage Number of 

Votes
Percentage

Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan 4484807.66 44.84808 0.203855 244.84808 0.956438

State of the United Arab 
Emirates 269088460.08 2690.88460 12.231294 2890.88460 11.292518

Kingdom of Bahrain 4484807.66 44.84808 0.203855 244.84808 0.956438

Republic of Tunisia 18686698.60 186.86698 0.849395 386.86698 1.511199

People’s Democratic Republic 
of Algeria 89696153.36 896.96153 4.077098 1096.96153 4.285006

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 538176920.17 5381.76920 24.462587 5581.76920 21.803786

Republic of Sudan 4484807.66 44.84808 0.203855 244.84808 0.956438

Arab Republic of Syria 2989871.78 29.89872 0.135903 229.89872 0.898042

Republic of Iraq 313936536.76 3139.36537 14.269843 3339.36537 13.044396

Sultanate of Oman 26908846.02 269.08846 1.223129 469.08846 1.832377

State of Palestine 4484807.66 44.84808 0.203855 244.84808 0.956438

State of Qatar 179392306.72 1793.92307 8.154196 1993.92307 7.788762

State of Kuwait 328885895.66 3288.85896 14.949359 3488.85896 13.628355

Republic of Lebanon 14949358.91 149.49359 0.679516    349.49359 1.365209

Great Arab Libyan People’s 
Socialist Jamahiriya 358784613.44 3587.84613 16.308392 3787.84613 14.79624

Arab Republic of Egypt 4484807.66 44.84808 0.203855 244.84808 0.956438

Kingdom of Morocco 32888589.57 328.88589 1.494936 528.88589 2065961

Islamic Republic of Mauritania 3191710.63 31.91710 0.145078 231.91710 0.905926

Total 2200000000.00 22.000.00000 100.000000 25600.00000 100.000000

ANNEX VII

SUBSCRIPTION IN BADEA’S CAPITAL BY MEMBERS STATES 
AND DISTRIBUTION OF VOTES
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